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The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5t floor, Plot # C/1, ‘G’ Block
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051

BSE Limited

Corporate Relations Department

1st Floor, New Trading Ring, Rotunda Building

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001

Dear Sir,

Ref : Regulation 30 and 34(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Sub: Submission of Annual General Meeting Notice and Annual Report of the Company for
the Financial Year 2021-22.

We wish to inform you that 59" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of McNally Bharat
Engineering Company Limited will be held at 3:30 PM (IST) on Wednesday, 7" September 2022
through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Please find enclosed Notice of the 59" AGM and the Annual Report, which has been sent through
electronic mode today to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the
Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent / Depository Participant(s).

The Notice and Annual Report are also available on the Company website at the link
https://www.mcnallybharat.com/investor/annual-reports.

Kindly take the above in your records and host on your website.

Yours faithfully,
For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

bl

-_—

Indrani Ray
Company Secretary

Encl : As above

(McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Interim
Resolution Professional, Mr. Anuj Jain, appointed by the National Company Law Tribunal by order dated
29" April 2022 under the provisions of the Code.)

An IS0 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 & ISO 45001:2018 Certified Company
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McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L45202WB1961PLC025181
Registered Office: 4 Mangoe Lane, 7th Floor, Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal, India
Tel: +9133-6628 1212, Fax No: +9133 3014 1212,
E-mail: mbecal@mbecl.co.in | Website: http://www.mcnallybharat.com

Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty Ninth (59*") Annual General Meeting of the Members of McNally Bharat Engineering
Company Limited will be held at 3:30 p.m. IST on Wednesday, 7*" September 2022, through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following business:

Background:

The Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the Order dated 29%April 2022 (“CIRP Commencement Date”) of the
National Company Law Tribunal, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) has been initiated against the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”) and the related rules and regulations
issued thereunder. As a result, pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Board of Directors”) stand suspended from the CIRP Commencement Date and are vested with Mr. Anuj Jain (having IP
registration number IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-2018/10306), who was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional of
the Company in terms of the Order.

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022, and the Reports of the
Directors and the Auditors thereon and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To consider non-declaration of dividend on Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares for the Financial Year ended

31%*March 2022:
In absence of profit for the current year (2021-22), it is considered prudent not to recommend any dividend on Equity
Shares for the year under review. Further, in view of accumulated losses, no dividend be rewarded to the Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shareholders, though they are entitled to receive dividend at a fixed rate of 11.50% on the Non-
convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aditya Khaitan (DIN: 00023788) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, has sought
for his re-appointment, provided that pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, his powers as a Director shall stand suspended
during the continuance of the CIRP Process.

Special Business:

4. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending31** March 2023
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditor M/s. A. Bhattacharya & Associates, Cost Accountants, appointed as the Cost Auditor of the
Company, by the Interim Resolution Professional under the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) as
per provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code) in terms of Order dated 29th April 2022 passed by
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, for conducting audit of cost accounting records maintained
by the Company as applicable, for the financial year 2022-23, the details of which are given in the explanatory statement
in respect of this item of business annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, be and is hereby ratified;
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Interim Resolution Professional has all powers under the Code to take such actions, and
execute all such documents, as may be necessary and applicable to give effect to this Resolution.”
For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain
Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306

22" July 2022 Indrani Ray
Kolkata Company Secretary
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Notes

1.

10.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Secretarial Standard-2 on
General Meetings and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Special
Business is annexed hereto.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to the
Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8 April 2020, Circular N0.17/2020 dated 13 April 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5™ May 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13% January 2021, Circular No.
02/2022 dated 5" May 2022 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members
to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual
means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate at the ensuing 59" Annual General Meeting (59" AGM / AGM)
through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8t April 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the bodies corporate are entitled
to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes
through e-voting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members seeking any information / clarification with regard to the accounts or any matter to be dealt at the AGM, are
requested to write at mbecal@mbecl.co.in on or before 30" August 2022.

All the documents referred to in the Notice and Statutory Registers maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013, will be available for electronic inspection during the AGM.

The relevant details in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM in terms of Regulations 26(4)
and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, is annexed.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being
sent only through electronic mode at the email addresses of members as registered with the RTA / Depositories as on
30™ August 2022. Physical Copy of Notice and/or Annual Report will not be sent to any member.

Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available at the Company website www.
mcnallybharat.com and websites of the Stock Exchanges, viz. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and also the e-voting agency, viz. National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) website at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, the equity share(s) of the Company can be transferred only in dematerialized
form. In view of this and to eliminate risks associated with physical shares, members holding shares in physical form are
advised to convert their holdings into dematerialized form.

(A) Members holding shares in physical mode are:

i) required to submit their Bank Account details, E-mail ID and PAN to the Company/ RTA, as mandated by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) including the change, if any;

ii) requested to opt for the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) mode for instant and secured receipt of dividend in future;
iii) advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in Form SH13;

iv) requested to send their share certificates to RTA for consolidation, in case shares are held under two or more folios;
and

v) informed that the shares in physical mode will not be accepted for transfer.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

(B) Members holding shares in electronic mode are:

i) requested to submit their address, Bank Account Details, E-mail id and PAN to respective DPs with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts including the change, if any, as mandated by SEBI; and

ii) advised to contact their respective DPs for availing the nomination facility.

Members may note that registration/ updation of their E-mail addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode, or
with their DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode would ensure delivery of all future communications from the Company
including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., without delay or, as the case may be, loss in postal transit.

Members are requested to note that, dividends not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 (seven) years from the date of
transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (“IEPF”) of the Government of India. The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred
to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.

In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividend(s) from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The
Members, whose unclaimed dividend(s)/share(s) have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online
application to the IEPF Authority in prescribed Form No. IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.

The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial years 2011-12, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government.

Unpaid / Unclaimed Final Dividend FY 2012-13 (declared on 27" September 2013) having completed the period of 7 years
during FY 2020-21 and thereby transferred to the IEPF Authority on 315 December 2020.

Members are requested to address all correspondence relating to the shareholding and dividend to the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company i.e. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, Account MBECL, 23, R. N. Mukherjee
Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, Telephone: 033 2243-5029/5809, Fax: 033 2248-4787, Website: www.mdpl.in, E-mail:
mdpldc@yahoo.com.

However, keeping in view the convenience of the Members, documents relating to shares including complaints/grievances
shall also be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 4 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata- 700 001, e-mail:mbecal@mbecl.
co.in.

E-Voting:

1.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, the Rules made there under and Regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through remote e-voting
services provided through NSDL on all Resolutions set-forth in this Notice.

The remote e-voting period will commence on 4% September 2022 at 10:00 hours IST and end on 6% September 2022 at
17:00 hours IST. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 30" August 2022 i.e.
cut-off date, may cast their votes electronically. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.

Those Members, who will be attending AGM through VC/OAVM facility, if not cast their votes on the Resolutions through
remote e-voting, and are otherwise not barred from voting so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the
AGM.

The Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM through VC / OAVM but
shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

The Company has appointed Mr. Prakash Kumar Shaw (Membership No. ACS 32895, COP No. 16239), Practicing Company
Secretary, Kolkata, to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
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7. Members can join the AGM in VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/
OAVM will be made available for 1000 Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 8" April 2020, 13t April
2020, 5™ May2020 and 5% May 2022, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of
the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility
of casting votes by a Member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided
by NSDL.

9. Members are requested to carefully read all the instructions regarding attending the AGM through VC/OAVM, casting votes
through remote e-voting and other guidelines / instructions as given below.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on 4" September 2022 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on 6" September 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 30" August 2022, may cast their vote electronically.
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date, being 30*" August 2022.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9" December 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access
e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding|1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.
securities in demat mode with com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click
NSDL. on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section

, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com.Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store

P Google Play

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will also be able to see the E Voting Menu.
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast
your vote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESP i.e. NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode)
login through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you
will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password

option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through

Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
securities in demat mode with NSDL | request atevoting@nsdl.co. in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990and1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
securities in demat mode with CDSL | a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-

23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) Your User ID is:

or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12%*****

then your user ID is IN3QQ*** 2% *****,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12*******k*x*%x** then your
user |D is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the
company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then
user ID is 101456001 ***

a)

b)

c)

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system
will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.


mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/

Notice of the 59th AGM

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids

7.
8.
9.

are not registered.
If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

6.
7.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote
during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies)
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csprakashshaw@gmail.comwith a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.
co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab
in their login.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e.29%"
July, 2022 may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if
you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting
your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical
User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44
30. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes
a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 30" August 2022 may
follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM underStep 1 :“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).
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It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password.
In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual
for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password
and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the Resolutions set out in this Notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to mbecal@mbecl.co.in.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to mbecal@mbecl.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9t December 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible
to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of
the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members
may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see
link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned
in the Notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.
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4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker
and may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
mbecal@mbecl.co.in latest by 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, 30™ August 2022.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at mbecal@mbecl.co.in latest by 5:00 p.m. (IST) on
Tuesday, 30" August 2022. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

8. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next speaker will be
invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video/ camera along with good
internet speed.

9. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth
conduct of the AGM.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@
nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 990/ 1800 22 44 30.
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Items of Special Business set
out in the Notice convening the Meeting:

Item No. 4

The Interim Resolution Professional under the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) as per provisions
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code) in terms of Order dated 29th April 2022 passed by Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, at the Meeting held on 30" May 2022, approved the re-appointment of M/s A.
Bhattacharya & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company, subject to approval(s) as may be necessary, to
conduct audit of Cost Records maintained by the Company in respect of products as applicable for the financial year 2022-23 at
a remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000/- plus taxes as applicable and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses at actuals.

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration of
the Cost Auditors needs ratification by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the Notice for approval of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year ending 31t March 2023.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in
this Resolution.

The Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 is hereby recommended for approval of the Members.

Information of the Director offering themselves for appointment / re-appointment, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1. Mr. Aditya Khaitan (DIN: 00023788)

Name of Director Mr. Aditya Khaitan

Date of Birth 30/01/1968

Qualification B. Com (Hons)

Expertise in specific Industrialist, Entrepreneurship, Management, Accounts & Finance, Leadership,
functional areas Strategic Planning, etc.

Brief Profile Mr. Aditya Khaitan hails from a renowned family of industrialists, having interest in

diverse business activities. Mr. Khaitan has in-depth exposure to and involvement in
steering diverse business and has gained considerable experience and expertise in
management, production, marketing, corporate finance and other related areas of tea
industry and also in the matter of restructuring, mergers, de-mergers and acquisitions
of corporate entities.

Listed entities in which the Director also|Non-executive Non-independent Director:

holds directorship and membership of
Committees of board of such entities

Kilburn Engineering Limited

McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited
Williamson Financial Services Limited
Managing Director:

McLeod Russel India Limited

Audit Committee:

McLeod Russel India Limited
Relationships between directors inter- |Nil

se
Shareholding in the Company Nil
For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Anuj Jain
Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306
227 July 2022 Indrani Ray
Kolkata Company Secretary
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The facts and information provided in these financial statements relates to a period prior to appointment of the
Interim Resolution Professional (IRP). Therefore, the IRP can neither verify nor provide any representation whatsoever
on the veracity of the information provided herein. The IRP gives no representation regarding the figures contained
herein being true or providing fair and accurate view of the financial position or performance of the Company.
The IRP has taken note of these statements only for the purposes of compliance.
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Vision & Mission Statement

VISION

We shall be a growth-oriented global organization, delighting our stakeholders through
innovation and excellence in all our activities.

We shall be a learning organization, focused on competence enhancement and people
involvement.

We shall demonstrate high standards of corporate governance and commitment towards
environment and society.

MISSION

Grow continually in terms of the expanding ambit of our business, making forays into
newer and newer areas.

Maintain high standards of quality in all our products and services.
Employ, develop and retain high standards of human resources.

Enable and empower our people at all levels to enrich themselves as individuals and as
members of a team, guided by a set of standards for accountability & integrity.

Serve the society within which we operate to enhance the quality of life around.
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McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L45202WB1961PLC025181
Registered Office: 4 Mangoe Lane, 7th Floor, Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal, India
Tel: +9133-6628 1212, Fax No: +9133 3014 1212,
E-mail: mbecal@mbecl.co.in | Website: http://www.mcnallybharat.com

Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty Ninth (59*") Annual General Meeting of the Members of McNally Bharat Engineering
Company Limited will be held at 3:30 p.m. IST on Wednesday, 7*" September 2022, through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following business:

Background:

The Members are hereby informed that pursuant to the Order dated 29%"April 2022 (“CIRP Commencement Date”) of the
National Company Law Tribunal, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) has been initiated against the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”) and the related rules and regulations
issued thereunder. As a result, pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Board of Directors”) stand suspended from the CIRP Commencement Date and are vested with Mr. Anuj Jain (having IP
registration number IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-2018/10306), who was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional of
the Company in terms of the Order.

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022, and the Reports of the
Directors and the Auditors thereon and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To consider non-declaration of dividend on Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares for the Financial Year ended

31%*March 2022:
In absence of profit for the current year (2021-22), it is considered prudent not to recommend any dividend on Equity
Shares for the year under review. Further, in view of accumulated losses, no dividend be rewarded to the Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shareholders, though they are entitled to receive dividend at a fixed rate of 11.50% on the Non-
convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aditya Khaitan (DIN: 00023788) who retires by rotation and, being eligible, has sought
for his re-appointment, provided that pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, his powers as a Director shall stand suspended
during the continuance of the CIRP Process.

Special Business:

4. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending31** March 2023
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditor M/s. A. Bhattacharya & Associates, Cost Accountants, appointed as the Cost Auditor of the
Company, by the Interim Resolution Professional under the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) as
per provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code) in terms of Order dated 29th April 2022 passed by
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, for conducting audit of cost accounting records maintained
by the Company as applicable, for the financial year 2022-23, the details of which are given in the explanatory statement
in respect of this item of business annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, be and is hereby ratified;
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Interim Resolution Professional has all powers under the Code to take such actions, and
execute all such documents, as may be necessary and applicable to give effect to this Resolution.”
For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain
Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306

22" July 2022 Indrani Ray
Kolkata Company Secretary
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Notes

1.

10.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Secretarial Standard-2 on
General Meetings and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Special
Business is annexed hereto.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to the
Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8 April 2020, Circular N0.17/2020 dated 13 April 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5™ May 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13% January 2021, Circular No.
02/2022 dated 5" May 2022 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members
to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual
means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate at the ensuing 59" Annual General Meeting (59" AGM / AGM)
through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8t April 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the bodies corporate are entitled
to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes
through e-voting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members seeking any information / clarification with regard to the accounts or any matter to be dealt at the AGM, are
requested to write at mbecal@mbecl.co.in on or before 30" August 2022.

All the documents referred to in the Notice and Statutory Registers maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013, will be available for electronic inspection during the AGM.

The relevant details in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM in terms of Regulations 26(4)
and 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, is annexed.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being
sent only through electronic mode at the email addresses of members as registered with the RTA / Depositories as on
30™ August 2022. Physical Copy of Notice and/or Annual Report will not be sent to any member.

Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available at the Company website www.
mcnallybharat.com and websites of the Stock Exchanges, viz. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and also the e-voting agency, viz. National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) website at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, the equity share(s) of the Company can be transferred only in dematerialized
form. In view of this and to eliminate risks associated with physical shares, members holding shares in physical form are
advised to convert their holdings into dematerialized form.

(A) Members holding shares in physical mode are:

i) required to submit their Bank Account details, E-mail ID and PAN to the Company/ RTA, as mandated by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) including the change, if any;

ii) requested to opt for the Electronic Clearing System (ECS) mode for instant and secured receipt of dividend in future;
iii) advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in Form SH13;

iv) requested to send their share certificates to RTA for consolidation, in case shares are held under two or more folios;
and

v) informed that the shares in physical mode will not be accepted for transfer.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

(B) Members holding shares in electronic mode are:

i) requested to submit their address, Bank Account Details, E-mail id and PAN to respective DPs with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts including the change, if any, as mandated by SEBI; and

ii) advised to contact their respective DPs for availing the nomination facility.

Members may note that registration/ updation of their E-mail addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode, or
with their DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode would ensure delivery of all future communications from the Company
including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., without delay or, as the case may be, loss in postal transit.

Members are requested to note that, dividends not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 (seven) years from the date of
transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (“IEPF”) of the Government of India. The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred
to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.

In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividend(s) from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The
Members, whose unclaimed dividend(s)/share(s) have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online
application to the IEPF Authority in prescribed Form No. IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.

The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial years 2011-12, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government.

Unpaid / Unclaimed Final Dividend FY 2012-13 (declared on 27" September 2013) having completed the period of 7 years
during FY 2020-21 and thereby transferred to the IEPF Authority on 315 December 2020.

Members are requested to address all correspondence relating to the shareholding and dividend to the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company i.e. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, Account MBECL, 23, R. N. Mukherjee
Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, Telephone: 033 2243-5029/5809, Fax: 033 2248-4787, Website: www.mdpl.in, E-mail:
mdpldc@yahoo.com.

However, keeping in view the convenience of the Members, documents relating to shares including complaints/grievances
shall also be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 4 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata- 700 001, e-mail:mbecal@mbecl.
co.in.

E-Voting:

1.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, the Rules made there under and Regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through remote e-voting
services provided through NSDL on all Resolutions set-forth in this Notice.

The remote e-voting period will commence on 4% September 2022 at 10:00 hours IST and end on 6% September 2022 at
17:00 hours IST. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 30" August 2022 i.e.
cut-off date, may cast their votes electronically. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.

Those Members, who will be attending AGM through VC/OAVM facility, if not cast their votes on the Resolutions through
remote e-voting, and are otherwise not barred from voting so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the
AGM.

The Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM through VC / OAVM but
shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

The Company has appointed Mr. Prakash Kumar Shaw (Membership No. ACS 32895, COP No. 16239), Practicing Company
Secretary, Kolkata, to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
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7. Members can join the AGM in VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/
OAVM will be made available for 1000 Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 8" April 2020, 13t April
2020, 5™ May2020 and 5% May 2022, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of
the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility
of casting votes by a Member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided
by NSDL.

9. Members are requested to carefully read all the instructions regarding attending the AGM through VC/OAVM, casting votes
through remote e-voting and other guidelines / instructions as given below.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on 4" September 2022 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on 6" September 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 30" August 2022, may cast their vote electronically.
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date, being 30*" August 2022.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9" December 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access
e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding|1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz. https://eservices.nsdl.
securities in demat mode with com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click
NSDL. on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section

, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com.Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

HEOL Magile App s ovallable &m

‘hpp Store B Google Ploy

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will also be able to see the E Voting Menu.
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast
your vote.

3. |If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESP i.e. NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode)
login through their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you
will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password

option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
securities in demat mode with NSDL | request atevoting@nsdl.co. in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990and1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
securities in demat mode with CDSL | a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-

23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) Your User ID is:

or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12%*****

then your user ID is IN3QQ*** 2% *****,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12*******k*x*%x** then your
user |D is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the
company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then
user ID is 101456001 ***

a)

b)

c)
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Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system
will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids

7.
8.
9.

are not registered.
If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

6.
7.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote
during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies)
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csprakashshaw@gmail.comwith a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.
co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab
in their login.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e.29%"
July, 2022 may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if
you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting
your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical
User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44
30. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes
a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 30" August 2022 may
follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under Step 1 :“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).
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3. ltis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password.
In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

4. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual
for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password
and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the Resolutions set out in this Notice:

1. Incasesharesare held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to mbecal@mbecl.co.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to mbecal@mbecl.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Interms of SEBI circular dated 9" December 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through
e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible
to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of
the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members
may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see
link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned
in the Notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.
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4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker
and may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
mbecal@mbecl.co.in latest by 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, 30% August 2022.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at mbecal@mbecl.co.in latest by 5:00 p.m. (IST) on
Tuesday, 30" August 2022. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

8. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next speaker will be
invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video/ camera along with good
internet speed.

9. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth
conduct of the AGM.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@
nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 990 / 1800 22 44 30.
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Items of Special Business set
out in the Notice convening the Meeting:

Item No. 4

The Interim Resolution Professional under the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) as per provisions
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code) in terms of Order dated 29th April 2022 passed by Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, at the Meeting held on 30" May 2022, approved the re-appointment of M/s A.
Bhattacharya & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company, subject to approval(s) as may be necessary, to
conduct audit of Cost Records maintained by the Company in respect of products as applicable for the financial year 2022-23 at
a remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000/- plus taxes as applicable and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses at actuals.

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration of
the Cost Auditors needs ratification by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the Notice for approval of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year ending 31t March 2023.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in
this Resolution.

The Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 4 is hereby recommended for approval of the Members.

Information of the Director offering themselves for appointment / re-appointment, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

1. Mr. Aditya Khaitan (DIN: 00023788)

Name of Director Mr. Aditya Khaitan

Date of Birth 30/01/1968

Qualification B. Com (Hons)

Expertise in specific Industrialist, Entrepreneurship, Management, Accounts & Finance, Leadership,
functional areas Strategic Planning, etc.

Brief Profile Mr. Aditya Khaitan hails from a renowned family of industrialists, having interest in

diverse business activities. Mr. Khaitan has in-depth exposure to and involvement in
steering diverse business and has gained considerable experience and expertise in
management, production, marketing, corporate finance and other related areas of tea
industry and also in the matter of restructuring, mergers, de-mergers and acquisitions
of corporate entities.

Listed entities in which the Director also|Non-executive Non-independent Director:

holds directorship and membership of
Committees of board of such entities

Kilburn Engineering Limited

McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited
Williamson Financial Services Limited
Managing Director:

McLeod Russel India Limited

Audit Committee:

McLeod Russel India Limited
Relationships between directors inter- |Nil

se
Shareholding in the Company Nil
For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Anuj Jain
Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306
227 July 2022 Indrani Ray
Kolkata Company Secretary
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors and the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) present the 59th Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements (“the Financial Statements”) and the Auditors Report for
the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2022.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP)

The Company is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (the Code) in terms of Order dated 29th April 2022 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), Kolkata Bench. Pursuant to initiation of CIRP effective 29th April 2022 vide the aforesaid Order, the adjudicating authority
appointed Mr. Anuj Jain (having IP registration number IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/ 2017-18/10306) as the Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP).

In terms of Section 17 to 23 of the Code, on commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company and
its Committees stand suspended and the same are vested with the IRP. The management of the affairs of the Company has
devolved upon the IRP.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 forming part of this Annual Report have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The highlights of Standalone Financial Statements are set out below:

Particulars Rs in Lakhs
2021-22 2020-21
(A) PROFITABILITY
1. Gross Total Revenue 31,556.68 35,867.48
2. Total Expenses (except depreciation, amortization and finance costs) 34,000.93 35,969.54
3. Finance Costs 4,660.53 4,227.62
4. Depreciation & Amortizations 609.45 673.90
5. Total Expenses (2+3+4) 39,270.91 40,871.06
6. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional/ Extraordinary items (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
7. Exceptional/Extraordinary items - -
8.  Profit/(Loss) before Tax (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
9. Profit/(Loss) after Tax (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
10.  Other Comprehensive Income 42.79 17.75
11. Total Comprehensive Income (7671.44) (4985.83)
(B) ASSETS & LIABILITIES

1. Non Current Assets 72,447.06 74,751.63
2. Current Assets 1,82,727.23 1,89,578.38
3. Total Assets (1+2) 2,55,174.29 2,64,330.01
4. Equity Share Capital 21,157.08 21,157.08
5. Other Equity (22,796.45) (13,776.18)
6. Non-Current Liabilities 15,080.91 15,947.95
7. Current Liabilities 2,41,732.75 2,41,001.16
8. Total Equity & Liabilities (4+5+6+7) 2,55,174.29 2,64,330.01
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) the Directors hereby confirm that:

i. inpreparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and there has been no material
departure;

ii. theyhave selected accounting policies which were applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022
and of the profits/losses for the year ended on that date;

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern” basis;

v. theyhavelaiddowninternalfinancial controlsto befollowed by the Companyandsuchinternalfinancial controls are adequate
and operating effectively; and

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

The Interim Resolution Professional confirms the Directors’ Responsibility Statement as set out above.
PERFORMANCE

The annexed Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this report and covers, amongst other matters, the performance
of the Company during the financial year 2021-22 as well as the future outlook.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(C) of the Listing Regulations, the report on Corporate Governance
along with the certificate from the Statutory Auditor is attached and forms part of this Annual Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE
No amount is proposed to be transferred to General Reserve during the year.
DIVIDEND

The Company is still recovering from the repeated waves of COVID-19 and there is uncertainty about the future course of the
pandemic. The Board of Directors and the Interim Resolution Professional decided not to recommend dividend to the Equity
Shareholders for the said financial year.

Further, in view of the accumulated losses, no dividend will be rewarded to the Non-Convertible Preference Shareholders,
though they are entitled to receive dividend at a fixed rate of 11.50% on the Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs 100/- each.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met seven times during the Financial Year ie. 30th June 2021, 14th August 2021, 13th November 2021, 7th December
2021, 13th January 2022, 12th February 2022 and 30th March 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Shareholders approved by Special Resolution at the 58th Annual General Meetingon 30th September 2021, the
reappointment of Ms. Arundhuti Dhar (DIN: 03197285) as Non-executive Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation,
for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years effective from the expiry of her first term.

At the first Board meeting for the financial year 2021-22 held on 19th April 2022, the Independent Directors have confirmed,
as required under sub section (7) of Section 149 of the Act read with Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, that they
meet the criteria of independence required under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and clause (b) of sub-regulation
(1) of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. The Board, after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the declaration
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submitted by the Independent Directors under sub section (6) of Section 149 of the Act read with sub-regulation (9) of Regulation
25 of the Listing Regulations, was of the opinion that the Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence.

Mr. Aditya Khaitan (DIN: 00023788) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. The Directors recommend the re-appointment of Mr. Aditya Khaitan as a Director on the Board
provided that pursuant to Section 17 of the Code, his powers as a Director shall stand suspended during the continuance of the
CIRP.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Rahul Banerjee (ACS 32796) resigned from the position of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer effective 21st October
2021, close of business hours.

Ms. Indrani Ray (ACS 16826, ACA 63237) was appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 7th December 2021. Pursuant
to Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) Ms. Indrani
Ray, Company Secretary, also acts as the Compliance Officer of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had 5 (five) committees namely, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Committee ofDirectors during the Financial Year 2021-
22. The Board had a defined set of guidelines, duties and responsibilities and an established framework commensurate with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act and Listing Regulations for conducting the meetings of the said Committees. A
detailed note on the Board of Directors and its committees, their scope etc. is provided under the Corporate Governance Report
section of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy formulated in accordance with Section 135 of the Act read with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021 can be accessed on the Company website at the link https://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/
investor/policy/MBECL-CSR%20Policy-%20Revised%202022.pdf

The Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities during the Financial Year 2021-22 as it had incurred
losses during the 3 (three) immediately preceding financial years.

The Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities for the financial year is attached in the prescribed format as Annexure-1
and forms part of this Report.

COMPANY POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company’s Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Act read with the Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulations can
be accessed on the Company website at the link https://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/investor/policy/remuneration-
policy.pdf

The salient features of the Remuneration Policy are as under:
Aims & Objectives:

1) Theremuneration policy seeks to enable the Company to provide a well- balanced and performance-related compensation
package, taking into account shareholder interests, industry standards and relevant Indian corporate regulations.

2) The remuneration policy will ensure that the interests of Board members & senior executives are aligned with the business
strategy and risk tolerance, objectives, values and long-term interests of the Company and will be consistent with the “pay-
for-performance” principle.

3) The remuneration policy will ensure that remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the company and its goals.
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Principles of Remuneration

a) Support for Strategic Objectives: Remuneration and reward frameworks and decisions shall be developed in a manner that
is consistent with, supports and reinforces the achievement of the Company’s vision and strategy.

b) Transparency: The process of remuneration management shall be transparent, conducted in good faith and in accordance
with appropriate levels of confidentiality.

c) Internal equity: The Company shall remunerate the Board members, KMP and senior management in terms of their roles
within the organisation. Positions shall be formally evaluated to determine their relative weight in relation to other positions
within the Company.

d) External equity: The Company strives to pay an equitable remuneration, capable of attracting and retaining high quality
personnel. Therefore the Company will remain logically mindful of the ongoing need to attract and retain high quality
people, and the influence of external remuneration pressures. Reference to external market norms will be made using
appropriate market sources, including relevant and comparative survey data, as determined to have meaning to the
Company’s remuneration practices at that time.

e) Flexibility: Remuneration and reward offerings shall be sufficiently flexible to meet both the needs of individuals and those
of the Company whilst complying with relevant tax and other legislation.

f) Performance-Driven Remuneration: The Company shall entrench a culture of performance driven remuneration through
the implementation of the Performance Incentive System.

g) Affordability and Sustainability: The Company shall ensure that remuneration is affordable on a sustainable basis.
ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES

The Company maintained highly focussed energy conservation efforts throughout the financial year.

Energy conservation measures taken during the year included:

(i)  routine steps like strict control and monitoring the consumption of energy on a continual basis;

(ii) preventive maintenance of machines like AC units, DG sets etc. resulting in optimal usage of electrical parts;
(iii) installation of LED lamps extensively across all sections of the Head Office and Sites, including flood lights;
(iv) installation of several energy saving equipments progressively throughout the year .

Operational measures included setting of benchmarks with respect to the current year with targets for increased savings,
initiatives by energy conservation committees comprising of cross functional groups, close monitoring and performance
evaluation of plants and machinery by conducting regular self-audit and up gradation of equipments used at the sites.

Some of the actions planned for next year include replacement of remaining conventional lamps with energy efficient LED
lamps.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the foreign exchange earnings of the Company amounted to Rs 321.60 Lakhs as against Rs
1671.16 Lakhs in the previous year. The expenditure in foreign exchange during the Financial Year was Rs 1.42 Lakhs compared
to Rs 981.47 Lakhs in the previous year.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

At the 58th Annual General Meeting of the Company held in year 2021, the shareholders had approved the appointment of
M/s. V. Singhi and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 311017E) as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 58th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion
of the 63rd Annual General Meeting.

The Report of Auditors contains adverse opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements to which clarification of the Board is
furnished hereunder:
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Sl. No.

Adverse opinion

Board'’s clarification

Non-recognition of Interest Expense

The Company has not recognised interest expense on
Bank borrowing amounting to Rs 95,766.40 Lakhs and
Inter-Corporate Borrowings amounting to Rs 706.40
Lakhs till the financial year ended 31st March, 2022
as stated in Note 12(b)(ii) & 46 to the Standalone
Financial Statements. Lenders/ Financial creditors have
submitted their respective claims to the IRP amounting
to Rs 5,75,095.90 Lakhs (including Interest) out of which
claims amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 Lakhs (including
Interest) have been provisionally admitted by IRP. As a
result, finance costs, liability on account of interest and
total comprehensive loss for the year ended 31st March,
2022 are understated to that extent. This constitutes a
material departure from the requirements of Indian
Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”.

The Company has been categorised as Non-Performing Asset
by the lender banks and majority of the lender banks stopped
debiting interest on their outstanding debts. Accordingly,
the Company has not recognised interest expense on the
borrowings including Inter Corporate Deposits. Total interest
not recognised by the Company is Rs 96,472.80 Lakhs ftill
31st March, 2022 as per Management estimates. However,
Lenders/ Financial creditors have submitted the claims
to the IRP amounting to Rs 5,75,095.90 Lakhs (including
interest) out of which claims lodged by lenders banks
amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 Lakhs (including interest) have
been provisionally admitted by IRP and remaining amount is
under verification, the necessary provisions with respect to
such claims shall be made upon final admission of the claims
by IRP with respect to such financial creditors.

Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets

We draw attentionto Note 50 to the Standalone Financial
Statements regarding Trade Receivables, Other Financial
Assets and Other Current Assets being subject to
confirmation and reconciliation from respective parties
and consequential reconciliation, outcomes of pending
arbitration/settlements of claims and adjustments
arising there from, if any. Adjustments/ Impacts with
respect to these are currently not ascertainable and as
such cannot be commented upon by us.

Recoverability of Trade Receivables, Other Financial Assets
and Other Current Assets depends upon the outcome of
Arbitration Orders and confirmation / reconciliation with
parties as stated in Note No. 12. Therefore, adjustments /
impacts with respect to these are currently not ascertainable.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, M/s. A. K. Labh & Co., Company Secretaries, were appointed as
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31 March 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
Financial Year 2021-22 submitted by the Secretarial Auditors contains audit qualifications to which Management response has
been duly furnished. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

The certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the
Listing Regulations with respect to non-disqualification of Directors of the Company as an 31*March 2022 is also annexed and
forms part of the Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
During the year, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards.
COST RECORDS & COST AUDITORS

During the Financial Year, the Company has maintained cost records in accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as specified by the Central Government in this regard.

M/s A. Bhattacharya & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 100255), has been appointed the Cost Auditor of the
Company to audit the cost records for the Financial Year 2021-22 as required under Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The contracts, arrangements and transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year with related parties were
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in the ordinary course of business and were on arm’s length basis. During the year, there has been no materially significant
related party transaction made by Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company which may have a
potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties, referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
the prescribed Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure-2 which forms part of this Report.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions approved by the Board can be accessed on the Company website at the link https://
www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/investor/policy/related-party-transaction-policy.pdf

The details of Related Party Transactions are set out in Note No 26 to the Standalone Financial Statement.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the Annual Return of the
Company in Form MGT-7 has been placed on the Company website at the link https://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/
investor/annual-return/Annual%20Return__2021-22.pdf

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and investments made by the Company during the Financial Year 2021-22, along
with the purpose for which such loan or guarantee or security is utilized/proposed to be utilized are provided in Note No 12 &
5of the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements.

DEPOSITS
During the year, the Company did not accept any deposits from the public.
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In accordance with Section 177(9) of the Act and rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations,
the Company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place for its Directors and Employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Policy provides for protected disclosures for
the Whistle-blower. Disclosures can be made through e-mail or letter to the Whistle Officer or to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Whistle blower Policy can be accessed on the Company website at the link https://www.mcnallybharat.com/
assets/pdf/investor/policy/MBECL-Whistleblower%20Policy-Revised%202022.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has a policy for prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace, which can be accessed on its website at
https://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/investor/policy/MBECL%20Policy%20for%20Prevention%200f%20Sexual%20
Harassment%20(UPDATED).pdf In accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and rules made thereunder, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC).

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the ICC did not receive any complaint. The Company has filed necessary returns as required
to be filed under the POSH Act.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES

The Company has 2 (two) Indian subsidiaries, namely, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited and McNally Bharat Equipments
Limited. McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited has one subsidiary, namely, MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India Private Limited.

The Company has 2 (two) overseas subsidiaries, namely, (i) MBE Mineral Technologies Pte Limited and (ii) MBE Minerals Zambia
Limited.

The Company is the Lead Partner in the following 3 (three) Joint Ventures:
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—  McNally-AML (JV)
—  McNally-Trolex (JV)
—  McNally-Trolex-Kilburn (JV)

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company reviewed the applicability of “material subsidiaries” in
accordance with Regulation 16 read with Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations.

CONSOLIDATION OF ACCOUNTS

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act, the Company, in respect of the Financial Year ended 31 March 2022 has prepared,
in addition to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and all
its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. Further, the report on the performance and financial position of each of
the subsidiaries and joint ventures and salient features of these financial statements in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed
to the Financial Statements of the Company and hence are not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

Information pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding financial highlights of performance of
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the Company during
the period under report is given herein-below:

Figure in Rs. Lakhs

Sl. Subsidiary Companies Business Activities Turnover Profit/(Loss)
No.
1. | McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited |Manufacturer of crushing, screening, grinding, 18116.00 4343.00
material handling and mineral processing
equipment.
2. |McNally Bharat Equipments Limited | There was no business activity during the period 2.43 1.92
under review.
3. | MBE Mineral Technologies Pte There was no business activity during the period - (3.45)
Limited” under review.
4. | MBE Minerals Zambia Limited* There was no business activity during the period - -
under review.
#Loss of SGD $ 6,329, Exchange Rate as on 31.03.2022 — Rs. 56.024
*Loss of ZMK 1,000, Exchange Rate as on 31.03.2022 — Rs. 0.23828

Further, in accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the audited Financial Statement, including the Consolidated Financial
Statement and related information of the Company and audited financial statements of each of the subsidiaries are available
on the website of the Company www.mcnallybharat.com, in a downloadable format.

DIRECTORS & KMP REMUNERATION
All the Directors of the Company are Non-executive Directors, except Mr. Srinivash Singh, who is the Managing Director.

a) the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees during the Financial Year:

Name of Director Remuneration Rs in Lakhs Ratio to median remuneration
Mr. Srinivash Singh-Managing Director 201.84 42.86:1
b) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO,CEO,CS or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year:
SI No | Name Total Remuneration Total Remuneration Percentage Increase/
2021-22 2020-21 (Decrease)
Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
1 | Managing Director 201.84 182.60 10.54%
2 | Chief Financial Officer 64.17 83.57 -23.22%
3 | *Company Secretary 6.46 10.74 N/A
4 | **Company Secretary 12.69 0.00 N/A

* Mr. Rahul Banerjee was the Company Secretary till 21st October 2021.
**Ms. Indrani Ray was appointed Company Secretary w.e.f. 7th December 2021.
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c) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the Financial Year 2021-22 was 0.28%;
d) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as at the end of the Financial Year was 409;

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are as per the Remuneration Policy of
the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

Compliance of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems are given in the Management Discussion & Analysis
report.

BOARD EVALUATION

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Regulation 17(10) of the Listing Regulations, a Board Evaluation Policy is in place
for evaluation of the Chairperson, individual Directors, Committees and the Board. A structured questionnaire developed by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning, Board culture, performance of
specific duties by Directors and contribution to the Board proceedings was circulated to members of the Board for the Financial
Year 2021-22. The Board as a whole, its Committees, the Chairperson and individual Directors were also separately evaluated
in the Meeting of the Independent Directors and at the Meeting of the Board of Directors.

The process of review of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and also its Committees were undertaken in a
separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 30th March 2022, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors
and members of the Management. At the Meeting, the performance of the Chairman of the Company was reviewed taking into
account the views of the Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Meeting also assessed the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information required for the Board to perform its duties properly. The Independent
Directors also discussed the effect and handling of COVID-19, Board processes, feedback given through Board evaluation, future
growth and strategy of the Company and development of future management of the Company.

The entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated, evaluated the performance of each Independent Director. The
Directors have expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process conducted.

Based on the findings from the evaluation process, the Board will continue to review its procedures, processes and effectiveness
of Board’s functioning, individual Director’s effectiveness and contribution to the Board’s functioning as well with a view to
practice the highest standards of Corporate Governance.

As the Company has come under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) effective 29th April 2022, the powers of the
Board of Directors have since been suspended and the affairs of the Company being conducted by the Interim Resolution
Professional.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited is an Occupational Health, Safety & Environment Management System (ISO
45001: 2018, 1SO14001: 2015) Certified Company with a brief scope of Project Management, Design, Manufacturing,
Supply, Construction, Erection & Commissioning of Industrial and Infrastructure Development Projects on Turnkey Basis and
Construction of Industrial and Infrastructure Development Projects.

The Company is committed to Occupational Health, Safety & Environment (OHS&E) within the organization and capable of
meeting the national and international OHS&E requirements. In line with the said OHS&E requirements, the organization has
consolidated ‘OHS&E Management System’ manuals with risk assessment, legal requirement review, periodic audit, training,
inspection, incident reporting and investigation to ensure OHS&E compliance at projects and O&M sites.

There is a robust system in place for updating the ‘Daily OH&S Message’ via email to all users of the Company and build
awareness on OH&S requirements at all its workplaces, a common sharing in-house intranet webpage (MBE Bridge) which
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contains OHS&E policy, manual and procedures, checklists, rewards /certificates and training models for employees to access.
The Company focuses on employees ‘Health & Safety’ awareness training through online mode apart from regular physical
safety drills. During the Financial Year 2021-22, online training was imparted on Job Safety Analysis (JSA), Risk Assessment,
Behavior Based Safety and Industrial Best Safety Practices apart from regular training module by in-house or external faculties.

The Company always strives to achieve Zero Fatality or Environmental Harm and in reality, set target to reduce Total Reportable
Incident Rate (TRIR) which was 0.76 (in 2012) had reduced 0.28 (in 2021). This low incident rate in EPC company shows a
sustainable improvement in Occupational Health, Safety & Environment Management System compared to other EPC firms in
India.

The Company had taken many initiatives to prevent the spread of COVID-19 at office and jobsites, so as to control corona
virus infections among employees and service partners. Initiatives like, following state/central guidelines/protocols related
to COVID-19 viz. restrictions in duty hours, social distancing, thermal checking, wearing of 3-layer mask & hand sanitization,
weekly basis office sanitization, vaccination to all employees at office and rapid testing to all site-based employees. Apart from
these initiatives a separate procedure to prevent corona virus infection was rolled out viz. ‘Resumption of work after lockdown
due to COVID-19’ and strictly followed at all establishments of the Company which was appreciated by many customers.

Several customers have issued ‘Merit Certificate’ or ‘Certificate of Appreciation’ in recognition of the Company’s excellent
safety performance at their project sites (like, BPCL, NTPC, PDCL, TPL, HMEL, Vedanta etc.). The Company has maintained LTI
(Loss Time Injury) free records at prestigious project sites, namely, Zawar Mines, S. K Mines & R. A. Mines (Hindustan Zinc
Ltd), DMRC- Kochi, DGMAP, CPCL-Chennai, Adani Power, OCPL, APGENCO etc. The Company won a ‘5 Star’ rating on ‘Safety
Management System Audit at HMEL — Bhatinda (CHS-O&M) site for best safety performance. The Company received National
Safety Awards in NTPC Bongaigaon, ACC Jamul, TPL-Kalinganagar job sites etc. and International Safety Awards at project sites
viz. RoSPA awards in IISCO Burnpur, RSP-Rourkela, BOP Satpura jobsites etc., which shows a sustainable occupational health &
safety culture within the organization.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS

During the Financial Year 2021-22, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operation in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide Order dated 29th April 2022 approved initiation of Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company pursuant to an application under section 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 filed by Bank of India.

Pursuant to the Order,effective 29th April 2022 the powers of the Board and its Committees stand suspended and the same
vest with Mr. Anuj Jain, Interim Resolution Professional (having IP registration number IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306)
appointed by the Tribunal for carrying out the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rule(2) of Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed and form part of this Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Risks, uncertainties or future actions could differ materially from those expressed in the Directors’ Report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis. These statements are relevant on the date of this report. We have no obligation to update or revise
these statements, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise. Therefore, undue reliance should
not be placed on these statements.
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Kolkata DIN: 00789624 DIN: 02373956

24



Annual Report 2021 - 2022

9S6€L£20 ‘NId
99)HWWO0) Mpny ‘uewiey)
uew.eg Jewny| wisy

90€0T/8T-LT0Z/T¥100d-dI /T00-VdI/198] 'ON uoneilsisay di
|BUOISS3)0.1d UOLIN|OSY W]

uter inuy

pauwi Auedwo) Suiaauidu] jeseyg AjjleNdIN 404

¥¢968£00 :NId
10302.1q SuiSeue
y3uls yseajuus

21 [o)Y]
720z AeIN Yy30g

‘Auedw o) ay3 jo saleys Aunba ay3 Jo Juadiad oMl ueyl $S9| 10U ‘UaJp|Iyd Jusapuadap pue asnods siyl yum Suoje 4o jjpaswiy
Ag spjoy pue Ja3euew 40 1030241p SW-3|o0yMm Jo J03aJIp SuiSeuew ayi Ag umelp 1eyl Jo sSa0x3 Ul S| ‘1edai38e ay3 ul ‘Yoiym a1ed e e g Aew ased ayy se Jo ‘1e8a.33e

9Y1 Ul ‘Yaiym JeaA eyl ul uonessunwal jo 1di9daJ Ul sem ‘Joauay3 1ed Jo Jedh jejpueuy ayl inoy3noays paAojdwsa i ‘oym Auedwo) sy ul asAojdwa ou uaaq pey a4yl (1)
a1
"p11 (elpu) ‘Jueunody
ON - edligeq 9deuiny 9L 91-29Q-€¢ LS 150D JuBUeWSdd | ¥8'T0T 1030841q SuiSeuely Y3uIS YseMuLS U | T
| JoBeuely
[iopaua1a Auedwo)
Aue jo aypul P13y (1eak u) (ye ur -sy)
annedy pI3y saJeys wawAhojdw3 (+1e2A) dduduadx3 wawAhojdw3 [(ELYEREN| ‘oN
Jayym Aunb3 jo % 15e] ady roa |eloL uonesylend Jo aumjeN uopesaunway uoneusisag aweN ‘IS
eak jerpueuy ay3 jo Jed a0y pakojdwa Ji ‘Yuow
J9d 240w 4o Yyeq '8 *sy 10 sedh ay1 Inoy3noayr pakojdwa J1 ‘10w 10 9104) 20T "SY uonesdunwal Jo 1d1da4 ul die oym saahojdwa Jo saweu Suimoys Juswaiels (ji)
"P11"d JUEINSUO) J3g3eue N
ON - Juawdojanag €5 | ¥0-93Q-ST 8¢ [IND-3'9 jusuewlad | 69°9€ [BJ3USH Joluss Ysswey AdN | 0T
P31 (etpul)
ON Balige4 soeuny €9 L1-1dv-€0 0€ [IND-3°g jusuewltad | Ov'LE juaplisaid I\ uag daspues U | 6
‘P17 (BIpU]) BARISEALIS
ON - edligeq doeulny 4] LT-1dv-€0 6 (88u3) 05 'g [enjoesuo) | 17°8E JU3pIsald dejeid nueyg N | 8
ON - ‘P31 uing uJejn S 06-930-01 [43 [1\1D-3'9 jusuewlad | #9'8€ JU3pISaId 3IIA seq Ueluey UN [ /
"p11 (elpu) 3alieypeneyg
ON - ealiqeq aoeuny 99 LT-1dy-€0 T [PO03(F -3 | |enpesuo) | SGH6E 1U3pISaId Jewny sisy U | 9
"1 (Blpu) uapisaid
ON - Baliqe4 ddeuny S LT-4dy-€0 [43 [ND-3°g jusuewlad | 0E'0Y I\ Joluss Aoy yreuedpuigey JN | S
"pa1 (epul)
ON - ealiged aoeuny 89 LT-4dy-€0 Ly [N1D-3°g [Bnyoeuo)y | LTty Juapisaid JEMJBS WEepULY N | ¥
P11 INd [EYEEE JU3pIsald
ON - BIpU| Yaajue|d [391S 81 CC-JBIN-80 9 -'3'd jusuewlad | TL'TS 1A 31e10SSY deyles ueAinS U | €
m 13040
ON - SYI[BIDIN IWysey 18 0z-das-£0 143 YJ jusuewltad | /T'%9 |BldUBUIS J31YD Iuos ueyolN lug IN | ¢
811"
2 ‘JueIUN02Y
ON - ealiged adeuiny 9L 97-29Q-€¢ 1S 150) JUBUBWIdd [ ¥8'TOT J1030841q SuiSeuely ySuIS yseAlulS U | T
| JoBeuely
[ioaug Auedwo)
Aue jo ayrul pIRY (s1eah (sae2A ) (yxe ui'sy)
anyeRy pI3y sateys juawAhojdwy ul douauadxy juawAhojdwy [\ETVEREN| ‘ON
Jayvym Aunb3 jo 9 1se] ady roa |eloL uonesylend Jo aumenN uopesaunway uoneusisag aweN ‘IS
TUMEJIP UoleIaUNWal JO SWw.d] ul saako|dwa ual doj Jo sawieu SUIMOYS JUSWAE]S (])

220C Y24e\ ISTE papua JeaA |erdueuy sy} Joj 1oday
510302417 943 Jo Med Sujwio} 10T ‘S9InY |[duuosIdd |el4aSeuey pue Juawiuloddy saluedwo) Jo (Z)s 3|ny 01 Juensind [3uuosiad |elaSeuel) JO uoneIBUNWY JO S|Ie1dQ

25



McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Annexure-1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1.

26

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects and programs

The Company views to make things better for the communities it operates in by enabling people to develop and improve
their capabilities, taking measures to improve efficient use of available resources and taking initiatives for a greener
environment. With this view, your Company has developed a policy for developing, implementing and monitoring its
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) initiatives.

Your Company has also adopted the measures specified in the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
therefore, has developed its CSR policy in line with its provisions. Accordingly, your Company also supports the activities
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. A separate CSR Committee has been formed, consisting of the
Directors of your Company, under the said provisions.

The CSR committee earmarks the amounts to be spent for CSR activities based on the performance of your Company and
the CSR activities to be undertaken. The Committee monitors the utilization of the budget and the implementation of CSR
activities. The Committee also has the powers to cause unit heads to provide its feedback on such implementation and
engage independent persons to monitor CSR activities.

Your Company actively undertakes activities wherein it utilizes its expertise and the involvement of its employees to take
various initiatives to make contributions to the society.

The Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities during the Financial Year 2021-22 as it had incurred
losses during the 3 (three) immediately preceding financial years.

Composition of CSR Committee

Sl. Name of Director Designation/Nature of Number of meetings Number of meetings of CSR
No. Directorship of CSR Committee held Committee attended during
during the year the year
1 Mr. Asim Kumar Barman | Chairperson, Non- 01 01
executive Independent
Director
2 Mr. Srinivash Singh Managing Director/ 01 01
Executive Director
3 Ms.Arundhuti Dhar Independent Director 01 01

Provide the web-link where the composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board
are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The composition of the CSR Committee, the updated CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on
the Company website at the link https://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/investor/policy/MBECL-CSR%20Policy-%20
Revised%202022.pdf

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR project carried out in pursuance of sub-rule(3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

Not applicable as CSR spent is Nil

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Sl.
No.

Amount available for set-off from
preceding financial years (Rs)

Financial Year Amount required to be set-off for the

financial year, if any (Rs)

Not Applicable
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6. Average Net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5)
Rs (29,897.13)

7. (a) Two-percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): N/A (due to negative Average Net Profit in
last 3 years)

(b) Surplus arising out of CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years - Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b- 7c)- Nil

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Nil

Total amount Amount Unspent (in Rs)
spent for the | Total Amount transferred to Unspent | Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
financial year CSR Account as per Section 135(6) as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
(inRs) Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
N/A
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year — N/A
(1] (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
SI. | Name | Item from | Level Location of the Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | thelistof | area project duration | allocated spentin | transferred to | implement- implementation
Project | activities | (Yes/ for the current Unspent CSR tation through Implementing
in No) project (in | financial Account for Agency
Schedule Rs) year the project as | Direct (Yes/
VIl to the (in Rs) per Section No)
Act 135(6) (in Rs)
State District Name CSR
Registration
No.
TOTAL N/A

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing przojects for the financial year: N/A

1| (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
SI. | Name | Item from | Local | Location of the | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation —
No | ofthe | the list of area project spent |implementation—| Through implementing agency
Project | activitiesin | (Yes/ | State | District | forthe Direct Name CSR Registration
Schedule VII| No) project (Yes/No) No.
to the Act (InRs)
TOTAL N/A

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b + 8c + 8d +8e)- Nil

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Sl. Particulars Amount (in Rs)
No.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
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(ii)

Total amount spent for the financial year

(iii)

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv)

Surplus arising out of CSR projector programs or activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

(a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years — Nil

Sl | Preceding | Amount transferred Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining to
No | Financial in Unspent CSR spent in the | specified under schedule VIl as per be spent in succeeding
Year Account under reporting Section 135(6), if any financial years (in Rs)
section 135(6) (in Financial Name of | Amount (in Date of
Year(inRs) | the Fund Rs) transfer
TOTAL N/A

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing project of the preceding financial year(s)- Nil

1] @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl | Project Name Financial Year Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No ID of the in which the duration amount spent on amount the Project-
Project Project was allocated | the project | spent at the Competed/
commenced for the in the end of the Ongoing
project (in | reporting reporting
Rs) Financial | financial year
Year (in Rs)
(in Rs)
TOTAL N/A

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details):N/A

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address

etc.

Provide details of the capital asset(s) so created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital

asset)

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): N/A

30th May 2022
Kolkata
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Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ IP-P00142/2017-18/10306

Srinivash Singh Asim Kumar Barman
Managing Director Chairman, Audit Committee
DIN: 00789624 DIN: 02373956
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Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto
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Annexure-2

1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transaction entered in to during the year ended 31st March, 2022 which were not arm's
length basis.
2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
Sl Name(s) of the Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Duration Salient terms of the Date of approval | Amount paid
No. | related party of the contracts or arrangements | by the Board: as deposit /
and nature of contracts | or transactions including advances: Rs. In
relationship the value: Lakhs
1 | Mcnally-AML (JV) | South Eastern Coalfields Limited has awarded a contract to 24 The Company is a lead 14-Aug-21 1,686
Dipka McNally-AML (JV) at Dipka, chattisgarh, monetary value of Rs.| Months | partner, having 98%
179 Crore plus applicable GST. MBE is 98% shareholder in the participation share in the
said JV. JV shall place the order to McNally Bharat Engineering Joint
Co. Ltd (MBE) at Rs. 175.42 Crore which is 2% below the contract Venture.
awarded by South Eastern Coalfields Limited. The Contract has
to be executed on back to back basis by MBECL.
2 | Mcnally-AML (JV) | Mahanandi Coalfields Limited has awarded a contract to 15 The Company is a lead 14-Aug-21 1,063
Ananta McNally-AML(JV) at Ananta, at Jagannath Area of Talcher| Months | partner, having 97%
Coalfields, monetary value of Rs.236 Crore plus applicable GST. participation share in the
MBE is 97% shareholder in the said JV. JV shall place the order Joint
to McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd (MBECL) at Rs. 231.28 Venture.
Crore which is 2% below the contract awarded by Mahanandi
Coalfields Limited. The Contract has to be executed on back to
back basis by MBECL.
3 | McNally-Trolex South Eastern Coalfields Limited has awarded a contract to 24 The Company is a lead 14-Aug-21 626
(JV) Chhal McNally-Trolex (JV) at Chhal, Chhattisgarh, monetary value of | Months | partner, having 96%
Rs. 147 Crore plus applicable GST. MBE is 96% shareholder in the participation share in the
said JV. JV shall place the order to McNally Bharat Engineering Joint
Co. Ltd (MBECL) at Rs. 144.06 Crore which is 2% below the Venture.
contract awarded by South Eastern Coalfields Limited. The
Contract has to be executed on back to back basis by MBECL.
4 | McNally-Trolex South Eastern Coalfields Limited has awarded a contract 24 The Company is a lead 14-Aug-21
(JV) Baroud to McNally- Trolex(JV) at Baroud, Raigarh Area, monetary | Months | partner, having 97%
value of Rs. 183.5 Crore plus applicable GST. MBECL is 97% participation share in the
shareholder in the said JV. JV shall place the order to McNally Joint Venture.
Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd (MBECL) at Rs. 179.83 Crore which
is 2% below the contract awarded by South Eastern Coalfields
Limited. The Contract has to be executed on back to back basis
by MBECL.
5 | McNally-Trolex Mahanandi Coalfields Limited has awarded a contract to 15 The Company is a lead 14-Aug-21 774
Kilburn (JV) McNally-Trolex-Kilburn  (JV) at Sardega, Mahalaxmi Area,| Months | partner, having 80%
Sardega monetary value of Rs. 264.14 Crore plus applicable GST. MBECL participation share in the
is 80% shareholder in the said JV. JV shall place the order to Joint
McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd (MBECL) at Rs. 258.86 Venture.
Crore which is 2% below the contract awarded by Mahanandi
Coalfields Limited. The Contract has to be executed on back to
back basis by MBECL.

30th May 2022
Kolkata

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain

Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ IP-P00142/2017-18/10306

Asim Kumar Barman
Chairman, Audit Committee
DIN: 02373956

Srinivash Singh
Managing Director
DIN: 00789624

29



McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:

India faced two deadly waves of Covid-19 in FY 21-22 and it’s economy was in the nascent stages of recovery when Russia
decided to invade Ukraine. Business around the globe has never encountered such unprecedented levels of macro risks and
uncertainties in the last decade. An agile India Government drive for the 2nd dose of vaccination and a silent work for the 3rd
dose has brought the country into a working mode. As on 14th May-2022 63.4% of Indian Population was fully vaccinated.
(Data, 2022)
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However, fear of another wave still lurks as incidents of rising cases come from North Korea and China.

The Russia Ukraine war has ramifications for business and our country. The research report, Ecowrap, from State Bank of India’s
(SBI) stated that 59% of the rise in inflation was due to the war. Rural areas are disproportionately affected in food prices while
urban in fuel prices due to the inflation. The present inflation is hovering around 7.79% and this is worrisome. Correction is not
expected in short term stated the report.

Geopolitics has changed after the war. India banned export of wheat and with the US sanctions on Russia, Europe is forced to
take sides. While Europe is putting pressure on India, silently they are still importing gas from Russia. Italy has given permission
to its gas suppliers to buy gas in Rubels from Russia, while it is trying to decouple by importing from Africa. At present they
buy 38% of the gas from Russia. Other European nations are also on crossroads. India is witnessing the impact with the stock
market index falling.

3 future scenarios are possible, a difficult short-term when the war subsides in 2 months, a more adverse if it goes for 6-9
months and the worst if it goes for 12-18 months. 3 Impacts are likely, direct by trade with Russia and Ukraine, Indirect by global
commodity and energy shift and third by macroeconomic policies.

Businesses with factories and offices in Russia and Ukraine are worst hit, including pharma companies which is leading to
increase in medicine prices. Payment issue is another. Increase in steel prices has hit the infrastructure very strongly.
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In this grave uncertainty, there is great potential for companies like McNally Bharat Engineering Company Ltd (MBECL).
Manufacturing and construction will take front seat in coming days and MBECL has presence in multiple sectors.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

1. Technology—In most of the sectors MBECL has its own technology in terms of basic and detail design, thereby self-sufficient.
In absence of such dependence on services of outside consultants and technology providers it can bring in optimization of
cost and fast execution, saving time. This is crucial to secure tenders at competitive prices.

2.  MBECL has its own equipment and process designs. It has more than 55 years of experience in manufacturing various
mining, port handling, cement mill machinery and processing equipment and they have manufactured many stacker
reclaimers, bucket wheel excavators, spreaders etc. in their factories.

3. Company’s long presence in executing projects more than 500 nos most of which are in record time brings in customers
confidence.

4. Ability to deploy resources all over India to execute large scale projects upto INR 1500 cr. single project value in sectors
like power, steel, cement etc. with multidisciplinary engineers , supervising personnel and highly skilled or semi-skilled
workmen.

5. Large vendor base for construction material and equipment supply for last few decades working as partners.

6 In house NABL accredited QA laboratory and a QA/QC department with highly qualified and experience engineers.

The Company lost its subsidiary McNally Sayaji Engineering Ltd. which has entered NCLT proceedings. This has made it loose its
control in manufacturing in-house. However, the intellectual property remains with the Company.

The Company itself entered IBC on 29th April 2022.
SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

This Company is engaged in turnkey projects in infrastructure and related manufacturing activities and therefore the question
of segment-wise performance does not arise.

OUTLOOK & BUSINESS STRATEGY:

Keeping in view the overall business scenario, both domestic and overseas, Company has relooked at business strategy and
trying to align its resources as follows:

e Initiate steps to finish the Coal India projects won in Joint Venture (JV) companies and the old legacy projects with an order
backlog of Rs. 1400+ Crs. This will bring in positive inflows to the Company and maintain its references valid to bid in new
projects.

e Finishing old projects will keep customer confidence for having MBECL as a trusted partner and EPC contractor. This will also
protect the lenders (stakeholder) interest by protecting the bank guarantees from being invoked by customers.

e Retain employees by giving them assurance of future prospects with new investors coming in. Attrition in the Company is
high and to control it, is top priority.

e MBECL has been pursuing JV partners in Europe and Middle East primarily, for aggressively executing projects in smart
cities, social sector buildings, renewable power, water management and infrastructure building.

e Its core competence in mines and mineralogy, solar power, material handling and providing engineering and project
management services in Middle East, Europe and Africa particularly in the ferrous and non-ferrous metals and gypsum,
fluorspar, rock phosphate, Graphite, etc. For domestic projects, The Company has made up its strategy to secure shorter
duration project, faster turnover of its resources to maximize benefit of its available resources. Any investor who takes the
Company through NCLT bidding process gets a debt free company with strong technology backbone and scale multi-fold.

e Create confidence in the mind of lenders by speedy completion of the project and safeguarding guarantees and investments
of the lenders.
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e With the strategy of expanding business by JV partners from overseas and entering in the global market on the inherent
strength and expertise of MBECL, the new management will reap the benefits of this advantage.

STRATEGY & RESILIENCE IN VIEW OF COVID-19 DISRUPTIONS AND FORTHCOMING WAVES

The Company’s operations is majorly concentrated in Odisha and Chattisgarh, but projects in other states pan India is still
operating. A focussed approach can bring cost advantages and tax savings.

RISKS & CONCERNS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Due to the IBC proceedings, suppliers and vendors are worried. Some are panicky. The procurement and service teams have
been advised to pacify such vendors and suppliers and give them confidence about proper communication that IBC proceedings
provide that a company stays a going concern. Only as the last stage does it enter liquidation. The communication is sensitive
and has to be done properly.

There is a strong support from the IRP to communicate with clients. He has already spoken to Coal India and OCPL the two
major clients and open to approach other clients like NTPC, GMDC etc.

The risk management system architecture by KPMG in 2010 covers from initiation of tender, bid decision and transfer of the
risks envisaged to the project execution team. For the other operational and fraud risk control the Internal Audit team has
already commenced the process last year and its integration with the ERM is underway.

As an improvement of the risk management system, supply chain risk has been developed in further detail. This coupled
with the Oracle Cloud Infrastructure (OCI) Analytics Solutions to capture macro risks like commodity price variations, WPI
Indices which impact our projects can be a great asset and intellectual property for the Company. This digital transformation
to the cloud opens opportunities to create value with data enabled solutions and also increasing operational efficiencies by
monitoring the Key Performance Indices (KPIs) of your Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Your Company has a detailed well spelt internal control system in place to ensure that all financial, commercial and legal
transactions are fully authorized, recorded and correctly reported. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, chaired
by an experienced Independent Director, reviews the adequacy of the Internal Control System. The Company’s Internal Audit
Department is in charge for periodically carrying out detailed audit of the transactions of the Company at various project sites,
manufacturing locations and offices in order to ensure that recording and reporting are adequate and as per the policy of the
Company. The Internal Auditors periodically physically verify the Company’s assets and ensure that there is no unauthorized
usage. The assets are kept in proper conditions and are covered under adequate insurance.

Business strategy of the organization has guided the formation of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) for the Company.
The process started one year back and is under implementation. Considering the flexibility and execution requirements for a
projects driven company the system is being continuously revaluated to establish a robust system.

The risks are broadly categorized into Strategic, Operational, Financial (Compliance & Reporting) & Hazardous Risks. The
Components of Enterprise Risk Management include:

a)Entity level controls

b)Process Risks & Controls
v’ Internal controls over financial reporting
v’ Operational controls
v' Fraud risk controls

¢)IT General Controls

Entity level & IT General controls are being followed as per standard practice of EPC business.
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For the rest of the components, the Implementation of ERM is divided into phases as below:
Phase I: Implementation of Internal controls over financial reporting
Phase Il: Implementation of operational & fraud risk controls

The Companies Act, 2013 mandated Indian Companies to implement internal controls over financial reporting effective from
01st April 2018. The management has documented all key finance and business processes impacting financial reporting, tested
the key controls for adequacy and operating effectiveness during the financial year 2021-22.

Since majority of the business is in Projects, a project risk management framework has been implemented in the ERP and
being monitored periodically for all new projects on the ERP. The risk framework captures Strategic, Operational, Financial and
Hazardous risks. This is supported by an issue management interface.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

Your Company firmly believes that its greatest strength lies in its Human Resources. The organization has been increasingly
emphasizing on development of knowledge and skills of its employees to align with the changing business scenario.

The organization offers a congenial work environment cutting across hierarchy and diverse work groups to foster a healthy work
culture.

In terms of employee care, the organization provides benefits and allowances which are in keeping with market trends. Your
Company also provides comprehensive insurance coverage for employees to take care of medical exigencies and unforeseen
situations. Your Company is continuing with its organizational transformation initiatives with a key focus on restructuring to
become a more agile and robust organization. Employee relations remained cordial throughout 2021-22. As on 31st March,
2022 number of permanent employees of the Company was 409.

The industrial relations during the year have been cordial.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The details of financial performance with respect to operational performance have been provided in the Report of the Board
of Directors.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (i.e. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS
FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS:

Key Financial Ratios 2021-22 2020-21 Change (%) Reasons
Debt Equity Ratio # 34.80 (550.29) | Due to change in Equity on
(Number of times) account of accumulated
loss.
Interest Coverage Ratio (0.66) (0.18) 266.67 | Due to non-recognition of
(Number of times) interest expenses during
financial year 2021-22.
Current Ratio 0.76 0.79 (3.80) | Not applicable.
(Number of times)
Debtors Turnover (Number of times) 3.86 3.18 - |
Inventory Turnover 0.01 0.01 ~|Pueto owerfr.ev:nue- |
(Number of times) oln azlcount of in ustr_lacI
Operating Profit Margin (%) (0.12) (0.02) -| oW ovyn accorTlp_anle
- - by Banking restrictions on
Net Profit Margin (%) (0.31) (0.15) 106.67|,. ...
liquidity management
Return on Net Worth (%) # (0.68) -

# Not calculated as Net worth of the Company is eroded.
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT:

The Board’s Report and the financial statements contain necessary disclosure of accounting treatment, if any, different from
that prescribed in Accounting Standards and management’s explanation regarding adoption of such treatment.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report in regard to projections, estimates and expectations have
been made in good faith. Many unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual results, which could be different
from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. Industry information contained in this Report,
have been based on information gathered from various published and unpublished reports and their accuracy, reliability and
completeness cannot be assured.

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain
Interim Resolution Professional
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ IP-P00142/2017-18/10306

Srinivash Singh Asim Kumar Barman
30th May 2022 Managing Director Chairman, Audit Committee
Kolkata DIN: 00023788 DIN: 02373956
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Report on Corporate Governance

1. The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company’s philosophy on governance is documented in the “Vision Statement”, which is the fundamental code of
conduct for the Company and in its “Mission Statement”.

The texts of the “Vision Statement” and the “Mission Statement” appear on page no. 4 of this Annual Report.

2. Board of Directors:
a) Board Composition

As on 31st March 2022 the Company had six directors on its Board. Mr. Srinivash Singh is the Managing Director of the
Company. of the five Non-executive Directors, four are Independent.

b) Meetings and Attendance
The Board met seven times during the Financial Year ie.30th June 2021, 14th August 2021, 13th November 2021, 7th
December 2021, 13th January 2022, 12th February 2022 and 30th March 2022. All Board Meetings, except the last,
were held through video-conference.
Details of attendance of Directors at Board Meetings held during the Financial Year and at the Company’s Fifty-eighth
Annual General Meeting together with the number of other directorships and committee memberships held by them
are as follows:

Name Designation Category Attendance * No. of other | @No. of Board
Board Last AGM | directorships Committees
Meeting held in Indian | (other than
public limited McNally Bharat
companies Engineering
Company
Limited)
Mr. Aditya Khaitan Chairman Non-executive 7 Yes 5 1
DIN — 00023788 Non-Independent
Mr. Srinivash Singh Managing Executive 7 Yes 1 2
DIN — 00789624 Director
Mr.Asim Kumar Director Non-executive 7 Yes 0 0
Barman Independent
DIN — 02373956
Mr. Nilotpal Roy Director Non-executive 7 Yes 1 2%*
DIN — 00087298 Independent
Ms. Arundhuti Dhar Director Non-executive 7 Yes 4 B***
DIN — 03197285 Independent
Ms.Kasturi Roy Director Non-executive 7 No 2 0
Choudhury Independent
DIN — 06594917

* Excludes directorship, if any, in private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013

** Chairperson of one Audit Committee and one Stakeholders Relationship Committee
*** Chairperson of two Audit Committees and one Stakeholders Relationship Committee

@ Only chairmanship and membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered
as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)
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c) Names of the listed entities where the above persons are Directors and the category of directorship

Name of Director

Name of the listed company

Category of Directorship

Mr. Aditya Khaitan

Kilburn Engineering Limited

Non-executive Non-Independent

McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited

Non-executive Non-Independent

McLeod Russel India Limited

Managing Director

Williamson Financial Services Limited

Non-executive Non-Independent

Mr. Srinivash Singh

McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited

Non-executive Non-Independent

Mr. Asim Kumar Barman

None

Not applicable

Mr. Nilotpal Roy

McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited

Non-executive Independent

Ms. Arundhuti Dhar

Kilburn Engineering Limited

Non-executive Independent

Eveready Industries Limited

Non-executive Independent

McLeod Russel India Limited

Non-executive Independent

Williamson Financial Services Limited

Non-executive Independent

Ms. Kasturi Roy Choudhury

McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited

Non-executive Independent

Window Glass Limited

Non-executive Independent

d) Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se
None of the Directors are related to any other Director.
e) Shareholding of Non-executive Directors
None of the Non-executive Directors hold any shares in the Company.
f) Web-link where details of familiarization programmes for Independent Directors is disclosed
The familiarization program for Independent Directors is given on the Company website at the link https://www.
mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/investor/policy/familarisation-programme-for-IDs.pdf
g) Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of Directors
The matrix setting out the skills/ expertise/ competence of the Board of Directors are given below:
(i) Qualification
= Degree holder in relevant disciplines (e.g. management, accountancy, legal, sales, marketing, administration,
finance, and Corporate Governance and Engineering industry related disciplines); or
=  Recognised specialist.

(ii) Experience
= Experience of management in a diverse organization;
= Experience in accounting and finance, administration, corporate, legal and strategic planning;
=  Ability to work effectively with other members of the Board.
(iii) Skills
= Excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skills;
= Leadership skills;
= Extensive team building and management skills;
= Strong influencing and negotiating skills;
=  Continuous professional development to refresh knowledge and skills;
(iv) Abilities and Attributes
= Commitment to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity;
= Commitment to observe the fundamental code of conduct and the Company’s Mission and Vision Statement.
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(v) Core skills of the Board

The following is a list of core skills/expertise/competencies mapped with every director of the Company identified by
the Board of Directors of the Company as required in the context of the Company’s business(es) and sector(s) for the
Company to function effectively and those available with the Board:

Core skill/ expertise / Aditya Srinivash Asim Nilotpal Roy| Arundhuti Kasturi
competencies Khaitan Singh Kumar Dhary Roy
Barman Choudhury
Adequate knowledge of the v v v v v v

Company’s business and the
Industry in which the Company

operates
Strategy Acumen Vi Vv Vi \ V \
Financial Skills ' Y v ' v v
Communication Skills v v v ' v '
Leadership & Management Skills v \ v v v v

(h) Brief profile of Directors who have these expertise and skills
Sl. Name of the Director Area of Expertise/ Skill and Brief profile
No.
1 Mr. Aditya Khaitan Commerce Graduate, Industrialist, Entrepreneur — Expertise in

Accounts & Finance, General Management and Strategy.

Hails from a renowned family of industrialists having interest in
diverse business activities. Has in-depth exposure, experience
and expertise in management, production, marketing, corporate
finance, restructuring, mergers and acquisitions of corporate
entities in diverse industries.

2 Mr. Srinivash Singh Cost Accountant, Company Secretary, LLB — Expertise in Finance
& Accounting, Legal, Administration, General Management,
Leadership & Strategy.

Has vast experience with more than five decades in steering
business operations of Engineering, Procurement and Construction
(EPC) companies. Previously served as Managing Director of the
Company.

3 Mr. Asim Kumar Barman Science Graduate, I.A.S. (Retired) — Expertise in Administration,
Power & Environment, Urban Governance, Finance & Accounting
and General Management.

Retired as Chairman of Damodar Valley Corporation (DVC),
held posts of Principal Secretary, Department of Environment
and Department of Public Health Engineering (Water Supply &
Sanitation), Government of West Bengal, Principal Secretary,
Department of Health & Family Welfare.

4 Mr. Nilotpal Roy M. Tech.(Chemical Engineering) —

Expertise in Engineering, Management & Leadership, Business
Development and General Administration.

An Engineering professional with vast experience of more than
four decades in various Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs)
and renowned private sector companies. He held the position of
Managing Director, SAIL-IISCO Steel Plant.
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Sl. Name of the Director Area of Expertise/ Skill and Brief profile
No.
5 Ms. Arundhuti Dhar B.A (Political Science) — Expertise in Business Consultancy,

Banking, Finance & Accounts, Strategy and Leadership, General
Administration.

Experience in diversified sectors viz. HR Consultancy, Retail &
Investment Banking, Infrastructure, Real Estate Management &
Research.

A Business Consultant with more than two decades’ experience in
banks and financial institutions namely, American Express Bank,
HDFC Bank, IL & FS Property Management. She developed new
business verticals and winning teams in each assignment. She
promoted Siegwald Leadership Training Acedemy which specialises
in training aspirants for the armed Forces. She also partners with
Lancer Technologies, the largest registered assessing body in India
under the Directorate General of Training, Ministry of Labour.

6 Ms. Kasturi Roy Choudhury B.E.(Electrical), PGDM (lIM-A), DBF (ICFAl) — Expertise in Electrical
Engineering, Accounts & Finance, Strategic Planning, Management
& Leadership.

She has more than two decades of experience in Electrical
Engineering, Strategic Planning and General Management.

(i) Independent Directors

It is confirmed that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and are

independent of the Management.
(j) Confirmation of Compliance with the Codes
All Directors and members of Senior Management have, as on 31st March 2022, affirmed their compliance with:
= The Company’s Code of Conduct, the fundamental code of conduct for the Directors and employees;
= The Company’s Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in its shares;
= Disclosures relating to all material and financial transactions;

= Annual Disclosure(s) as required under the Code of Conduct of Prevention of Insider Trading.

3) Audit Committee
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As on 31st March 2022, the Audit Committee consisted of three Board members, viz. Mr. Asim Kumar Barman, Mr. Srinivash
Singh and Ms. Arundhuti Dhar. Mr. Asim Kumar Barman is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Out of the three members of the Committee, two are Independent Directors and one is an Executive Director. The quorum
for an audit committee meeting is either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is greater,
with at least two independent directors.

Mr. Asim Kumar Barman, IAS (Retired), Chairperson of the Audit Committee, possesses expertise in specific functional areas
such as accounts & finance, administration & management, power, environment and urban governance. Mr. Srinivash Singh
is a member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India, the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and also holds an LLB
degree. Ms. Arundhuti Dhar is a graduate in Political Science and has vast experience and expertise in Business Consultancy
in banking, treasury and real estate management. Accordingly, the Chairperson and all the members of the Committee are
“financially literate” within the meaning of explanation under Regulation 18(1)(c) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

The Committee met five times during the Financial Year 2021-22, ie. on 30th June 2021, 14th August 2021, 13th November
2021, 12th February 2022 and 30th March 2022. All meetings of the Committee, except the last, were held through video-
conference.The attendance of members at the Committee Meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 is given below:
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4)

5)

Name Number of meetings attended
Mr. Asim Kumar Barman 5
Mr. Srinivash Singh 5
Ms. Arundhuti Dhar 5

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditor and the Chief Financial Officer attend the Audit Committee Meetings. At the
invitation of the Company, representatives from various divisions of the Company also attend the Audit Committee
Meetings to respond to queries raised at the meetings.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
Role of Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is in accordance with those specified in Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule Il to the
Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Composition, Meetings and Attendance

As on 31st March 2022, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”) comprised of three Board members viz.
Mr. Asim Kumar Barman, Mr. Srinivash Singh and Ms. Arundhuti Dhar. Mr. Asim Kumar Barman, Non-executive Independent
Director is the Chairperson of the Committee. Ms. Indrani Ray, Company Secretary, who is also the Compliance Officer of
the Company, acts as Secretary to the Committee. The quorum for a meeting of SRC is two Directors.

The Committee met only once during the Financial Year 2021-22 ie. on 30th March 2022. All the Committee Members
attended the meeting.

Role of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance with Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule Il to the Listing
Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee monitors the Company’s response to investor
complaints. It has also been authorised to approve the issue of duplicate share certificate in lieu of those lost or destroyed.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(2) of the Listing Regulations, the power to approve transfers, transmissions, etc. of shares in
the physical form has been delegated to the Share Transfer Agent (“STA”) to the extent permissible under the Listing
Regulations.

As on 31st March 2022 there were no request pending for dematerialization and no physical transfer remained pending.
During the Financial Year 2021-22, no complaint was received from any shareholder and therefore no complaint was
pending as on 31st March 2022.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) comprises of three Directors, viz. Mr. Asim Kumar
Barman, Mr. Srinivash Singh and Ms. Arundhuti Dhar. Mr. Asim Kumar Barman is the Chairperson of the Committee.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting is two members. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Committee.

The Committee met only once during the Financial Year 2021-22 ie. on 30th March 2022. The attendance of members at
the Committee Meeting is given below:

Name Number of meetings attended
Mr. Asim Kumar Barman 1
Mr. Srinivash Singh 1
Ms. Arundhuti Dhar 1

Role of CSR Committee

The role of the CSR Committee is to formulate the CSR Policy and to take CSR initiatives in accordance with Section 135 read
with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policies) Rules, 2014.
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6)

7)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Composition, Meetings and Attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) comprises of three Directors, viz. Mr. Asim Kumar Barman,
Mr. Aditya Khaitan and Ms. Arundhuti Dhar. All members of the Committee areNon-executive Directors. Mr. Asim Kumar
Barman is the Chairperson of the Committee.

The quorum for a meeting of the NRC is either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is
greater, including one independent director yin attendance. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee met twice during the Financial Year 2021-22 ie. 14th August 2021 and 7th December 2021. Both the
meetings were held through video-conference. The attendance of members at the Committee Meetings held during the
year 2021-22 is given below:

Name Number of meetings attended
Mr. Asim Kumar Barman 2
Mr. Aditya Khaitan 2
Ms. Arundhuti Dhar 2

Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The role of the NRC is in accordance with Regulation 19 and Part D of Schedule Il to the Listing Regulations and sub-sections
(2), (3) and (4) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has adopted a policy on remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial personnel and other employees and has
laid down performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors. The criteria of making payments to non-executive
directors may be accessed on the Company’s website at the following link: http://www.mcnallybharat.com/assets/pdf/
investor/policy/criteria-non-executive-directors.pdf.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is as per the approved Board Evaluation Policy of the Company.
Remuneration of Directors

Apart from sitting fee, no remuneration is paid to the Non-executive Directors. Directors who attend Board or Committee
meetings are paid a sitting fee of Rs 20,000 per meeting. Independent Directors are paid sitting fee for attending Independent
Directors’ Meeting required to be statutorily held at least once during the financial year.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the total amount paid to the Directors for attending meetings of the Board, Committees
and that of the Independent Directors amounted to Rs. 11,80,000/-. No stock option was given to any Director.

8) General Body Meetings
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(i) Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and Special Resolutions passed at these Meetings

Financial Year ended |Location Date Time
31st March 2019 Auditorium, Club Eco Vista, Ecospace Business Thursday, 11 AM
Park,Plot No: 2-F/11, 26" September 2019

New Town, Rajarhat,
24 Parganas (North), Kolkata — 700160

315 March 2020 *Held through video conference/other audio-visual Tuesday, 11 AM
means (OAVM) 22" December 2020

31 March2021 *Held through video conference / other audio-visual | Thursday, 11 AM
means (OAVM) 30" September 2021

*In compliance with the MICA circulars dated 8th April 2020, 13th April 2020, 5th May 2020, 15th June 2020, 28th September
2020 and 31st December 2020, the AGM was held through video conference/other audio-visual means (OAVM).
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(ii) Details of Special Resolutions passed in previous three AGMs

The following special resolutions were adopted in the Annual General Meeting of the Company during the past three
financial years and e-voting facilities were made available to the shareholders:

Resolution No. of shares No. of shares
Particulars of Special Resolution and % of Votes in |and % of Votes

adopted on P .

avour against

Approval for re-appointment of Mr. Srinivash Singh (DIN:|22nd December, |96826371 404
00789624) as the Managing Director (Key Managerial|2020 99.999583% of the | 0.000417% of the
Personnel) of the Company for a period of three consecutive valid votes cast. valid votes cast.
years from 14th December 2019 to 13th December 2022.
Approval of re-appointment of Mr. Asim Kumar Barman (DIN: | 22nd December, | 96826521 254
02373956) as an Independent Director of the Company for|2020 99.999738% of the | 0.000262% of the
a second term of three consecutive years commencing from valid votes cast. valid votes cast.
the day of expiry of his earlier term, upto the date of the 60th
Annual General Meeting or attainment of his 75 years of age
whichever is earlier.
Approval for the re-appointment of Ms. Arundhuti Dhar (DIN: | 30th 105058676 1086
03197285) as an Independent Director of the Company for a | September, 99.9990% of the | 0.0010% of the
second term of five consecutive years 2021 valid votes cast. valid votes cast.

Mr. A. K. Labh (FCS 4848, CP No. 3238), a Practicing Company Secretary was appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
e-voting process for the AGMs held on 26th September 2019, 22nd December 2020 and 30th September 2021.

No Special Resolution was adopted at any Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company during the past three financial
years.

(iii) Resolutions passed through postal ballot/remote e-voting

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the following Ordinary Resolution was passed through postal ballot including
remotee-voting, with requisite majority on 18th February 2022. The details of voting pattern are as under:

Resolution No. of shares No. of shares
Particulars of Special Resolution and % of Votes in |and % of Votes
adopted on .
favour against
Reclassification of two “Promoter Group” companies into|18th February, |71034961 16025
“Public” category under Regulation 31A of SEBI Listing|2022 99.9774% of the | 0.0226% of the
Regulations. valid votes cast valid votes cast

(iv) Person who conducted the postal ballot/e-voting exercise

Mr. A. K. Labh (FCS 4848, CP No. 3238), Practicing Company Secretary, appointed as the Scrutinizer, had conducted the
postal ballot/ remote e-voting exercise.
(v) Procedure for postal ballot/remote e-voting

The postal ballot was conducted pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 read with the General
Circular Nos.14/2020 dated8th April 2020, 17/2020 dated 13th April 2020, 22/2020 dated 15th June 2020, 33/2020
dated 28th September 2020, 39/2020 dated 31st December 2020, 10/2021 dated 23rd June 2021 and 20/2021 dated
8th December 2021 and other relevant Circulars/Notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”),
Government of India, providing relaxations in the process of holding of general meetings and voting through postal
ballot/e-voting, in view of the current extraordinary circumstances due to COVID-19 pandemic.

The voting period commenced at 10.00 AM on 20th January 2022 and ended at 5.00 PM on 18th February 2022 and
the results of postal ballot including e-voting was announced by the Company on 19th February 2022 within 5.00 PM.
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9)
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General Disclosures
(i) Related Party Transactions

(a) A summary of transactions with related parties, in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length is placed
before the Audit Committee;

(b) There were no material individual transactions with related parties which were not in the ordinary course of
business and at arm’s length during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022;

(c) There were no material significant transactions during the financial year with related parties such as Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their Relatives that could have a potential financial conflict of interest
with that of the Company;

(d) The mandatory disclosure of transactions with related parties, in compliance of the Indian Accounting Standard
(IndAS-24), forms part of this Annual Report;

(e) Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company can be accessed on the Company’s website www.mcnallybharat.
com

(ii) Capital market non-compliances, if any

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter relating to the capital markets during the
past three years.

(iii) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistleblower Policy

The Company has a Whistleblower Policy which can be accessed on the Company’s website www.mcnallybharat.com.
It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in terms of the policy.
During the financial year, no complaints were received by the Whistle Committee/Audit Committee.

(iv) Other Policies

In accordance with the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, Company has formulated the following policies which can be accessed on the Company’s website www.
mcnallybharat.com

(a) Policy on Determination and disclosure of material events;
(b) Policy on Preservation and Archival of documents;
(v) Insider Trading

The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the Company for
Directors and other identified persons in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, Code of fair disclosure
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Policy and procedure for inquiry in case of leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information can be accessed on the Company’s website www.mcnallybharat.com.

(vi) Independent Directors’ Meeting

Independent Directors met on 30th March 2022 to discuss the procedure for reviewing the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, performance of the Chairperson and quality, quantity and timeliness
of information exchange between the Company Management and the Board.

(vii) Board Evaluation
The Company has put in place a Board Evaluation process. A note on this is provided in the Directors’ Report.
(viii) Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

In accordance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the
complaints received and resolved during the year is as under:

Number of Complaints filed during the year 00
Number of Complaints disposed of during the year 00
Number of Complaints pending as at the end of the Financial Year 00
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10)

(ix) Internal Controls

The Company has put in place adequate Internal Control Systems and Procedures including adequate financial controls
with reference to the financial statement.

(x) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding Directors debarred under the Act, etc.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Board or the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is attached to and forms part
of this Report.

(xi) Fee to Statutory Auditors

M/s. V. Singhi & Associates, acted as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. The details
of the fees paid/payable to the Statutory Auditors by the Company for the Financial Year are detailed in the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company.

M/s. V. Singhi & Associates also acted as the Statutory Auditor of the Company’s subsidiary, McNally Sayaji Engineering
Limited, for the Financial Year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs27 lakhs.

M/s. V. Singhi & Associates also acted as the Statutory Auditor of the McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited’s subsidiary,
MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India Private Limited for the financial year 2021-22 at a remuneration of Rs 8.5 lakhs.

The Company and/or its Subsidiaries have not availed any services from entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the Statutory Auditor is a part, if any.

(xii) Committee Recommendations

During the Financial Year 2021-22, there has been no instance where the Board had not accepted any recommendation
of/submission by any of its Committees, which is mandatorily required to be accepted.

(xiii) Non-mandatory requirements under Part E of Schedule Il to Listing Regulations

(a) The Company is complying with the non-mandatory requirement of a separate post of Chairperson and Managing
Director; and

(b) The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Means of Communication

The Annual Report for each financial year is mailed to all Shareholders in the month of July of each calendar year. Each
report contains the annual financial statement of the Company for the Financial Year along with the Directors’ Report
and Auditor’s Report and its annexures. Also included in each Annual Report is the notice convening the Annual General
Meeting and the Corporate Governance Report.

The financial results or the extract of the financial results, as the case may be, of the Company were officially released or
will be released in accordance with the following schedule:

Sl. Nature of Media used Dates of Forwarded/tobe forwarded
No | communication for Publication Publication to StockExchanges on
1 Quarterly unaudited financial statement Newspapers 16.08.2021 14.08.2021
(first quarter 2021-22)
5 Half-yearly unaudited financial statement Newspapers 14.11.2021 13.11.2021
(second quarter 2021-22)
3 Quarterly unaudited financial statement Newspapers 14.02.2022 12.02.2022
(third quarter2021-22)
4 Annual audited financial statement (2021- Newspapers On or before 30.05.2022
22) 02.06.2022

The financial results are published in Mint (English),Financial Express (English) and SuKhobor (Bengali).

All corporate information filed by the Company with the stock exchanges are uploaded on www.connect2nse.com/LISTING/
(NSE) and www.listing.bseindia.com (BSE)and can be viewed on the website of stock exchanges i.e www.nseindia.com and
www.bseindia.com. The information is also available on the Company website www.mcnallybharat.com

The Management Discussion & Analysis for the Financial Year 2021-22 forms part of the Directors’ Report.
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11) General Shareholder Information

a. The Fifty-ninth Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held at 4:30 PM on Wednesday, 7th September 2022 at Four
Mangoe Lane, Kolkata-700001. In view of the massive outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to
be followed and pursuant to Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April 2020 and Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April 2020
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May 2020, Circular No.
02/2021 dated13th January 2021 and Circular No. 02/2022 dated 5th May 2022 and all other relevant circulars issued
from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and the general meeting to
be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). In compliance with the said Circulars the
Annual General Meeting is being held through Video Conference without the physical presence of the members.

b. The tentative financial calendar is as follows:

Audited Financial Statement for2021-22

Monday, 30th May 2022

Mailing of Annual Report for 2021-22

On /before Thursday, 7th July 2022

Unaudited First Quarter Financial Result 2022-23

Wednesday, 3rd August 2022

Fifty-ninth Annual General Meeting

Wednesday, 3rd August 2022

Payment of Dividend for 2021-22

Not applicable

Unaudited Second Quarter Financial Results 2022-23

Thursday, 3rd November 2022

c. Register of Shareholders

The Register of Shareholders will remain closed from Thursday, 28th July 2022 to Wednesday, 3rd August 2022, both

days inclusive.
d. Payment of Dividend

In view of the prevailing business conditions, no dividend payment has been recommended for the Financial Year 2021-

22.
e. Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges

As on 31st March 2022, the shares of the Company were listed on Stock Exchanges with their respective stock codes as

follows:
Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
BSE Limited 532629
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited MBECL
Reuters Code MCNL.BO
Bloomberg Code MCNA:IN

The International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”) of the Company’s shares in the dematerialized mode is
INE748A01016. There are no arrears of listing fees and custodial fees.

f. Market Price data

The details of the monthly highest and lowest closing quotations of the equity shares of the Company at BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited during the Financial Year 2021-22 are as under:

Month BSE Ltd. National Stock Exchange of India Limited
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April, 2021 8.20 6.43 8.25 6.25
May, 2021 8.45 6.75 8.45 6.60
June, 2021 9.70 7.45 9.70 7.25
July, 2021 13.13 9.13 12.95 9.10
August, 2021 11.50 5.80 11.50 5.80
September, 2021 7.55 5.81 7.50 5.75
October, 2021 7.30 6.22 7.25 6.10
November, 2021 7.20 6.60 7.20 6.50
December, 2021 7.85 6.63 7.85 6.55
January, 2022 10.86 7.60 10.85 7.65
February, 2022 11.40 5.42 11.35 5.35
March, 2022 7.06 4.88 7.00 4.95
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g. Market Price of Company’s share versus Sensex and Nifty (in Rupees)

A. The Company’s Share Price vs. Sensex

Tha Compangs fhare Frice vloos eis B Canaerin Bigees)
1. 83 TR L0
i i e e e 335300
. = |
! 1080 4 009,00 I
5,53 4 s 3
L]
4.0 o 0040, B0 !
'RCY B399, 11
| 5§ o 15545, i
e T | My | [ e | e | e [ 0 38 [ w3 [ Dk ST P [ ]
I.H [ ]
Eﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁlﬂmm
[F075 W EEEEI[EEE]_EEII[EIEIIIEE:IEEI]EEEI
B. The Company’s Share Price vs. Nifty
Tha Company’s Shass Prics vins" s NIFTY
! TT 00500 10
e e e 55000 [
: -
zm T———— 58, 261 [}
105088 200 [0
PRy I3 500 00 _i
0000 O
= n080 00
s am 8 060,50
L= A S0 o0
i s ma k)
i 00 . . i
ape T | Ry T (e E | Jul T g T (Sl T | Ot T pHigy . T | Dec T | i TT | Feb TT | M T
e Bh Prcetigry 26 | 04k | RT3 | 150G | ke | Tae | 706 iaek | 1036 | 1w
memSh Priceilow) | B35 | BED | 725 | 900 | 580 | 57E | &40 sw 5-,-5 TRE | 535 | 498
-rempragrny | esced | n0n | 159 | 1sees [arom [ raer s ez | e [ o | e (1o
——Peftyilow) | 04,151 | 14,416 | 15,850 | 16,603 | 15654 | 17085 | 17 42 | 16,763 | 1 410 | MEE36 | 16,200 | 16 471 |

h. Means of Communication

In accordance with Section 20, 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Annual
Report, Notice of the Annual General Meeting, postal ballot notice, circulars, etc. are being sent by electronic means
to those shareholders whose e-mail addresses are made available to the Company by the shareholders and the
depository. Documents e-mailed to shareholders are available on the Company website www.mcnallybharat.com to
enable shareholders read and download a copy, if required.

12) Share Transfer Agent
The Company has engaged the services of Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23 R.N Mukherjee Road, Kolkata
— 700001, a SEBI registered Share Transfer Agent with Registration No.INROOO000353, for processing the transfers,
sub-division, consolidation, splitting of securities, etc. Since trading in Company’s shares can now be done only in the
dematerialized form, request for dematerialization and re-materialization should be sent directly to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent at the following address:
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata — 700 001
Telephone: 91-11- 2248 2248  Facsimile: 91-11- 2243 5029 e E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com
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Shareholders have the option to open their Accounts with a Depository Participant having connectivity with either NSDL or
CDSL as the Company has entered into Agreements with both these Depositories.

13) Share Transfer

As already stated, the Company’s shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in Demat mode. Therefore,
Investors/Shareholders are requested to kindly note that physical documents, viz. Demat Request Form (DRF) and Share
Certificates, etc. should be sent by their Depository Participants (DPs) directly to the Share Transfer Agents.Any delay on
the part of the DPs to send the DRF and the Share Certificates beyond 7 days from the date of generation of the DRF by the
DP will be rejected/ cancelled. This is being done to ensure that no Demat requests remain pending with the Share Transfer
Agents beyond a period of 15 days. Investors/Shareholders should, therefore, ensure that their DPs do not delay in sending
the DRF and Share Certificates to Share Transfer Agents after generating the DRF.

14) Dematerialization

As on 31st March 2022, 17,20,90,158 Equity Shares representing 81.34% of the total shares, were held in dematerialized
form and the balance 3,94,80,599 shares representing 18.66% of the total issued shares were in physical (share certificate)
form. A total of 23518 (99.71%) Shareholders have up to 31stMarch 2022, dematerialized their shareholdings, while the
balance 307 (1.28%) Shareholders continue to hold shares in the physical form.

15) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2022

Share Holding No. of Holders % age No. of Shares % age
Upto 500 15635 65.6271 2413037 1.1405
501 to 1000 3050 12.8022 2678268 1.2659
1001 to 2000 1971 8.2732 3183152 1.5045
2001 to 3000 826 3.4671 2178070 1.0295
3001 to 4000 397 1.6664 1445053 0.6830
4001 to 5000 510 2.1407 2460606 1.1630
5001 to 10000 683 2.8669 5245044 2.4791
Above 10000 752 3.1565 191967527 90.7344
Grand Total 23825 100.0000 211570757 100.0000
16) Pattern of Shareholding as on 31st March 2022
Sl. No. Category No. of Holders No. of Shares
1 Promoter & Promoter Group
- Individual/HUF(Indian) 3 32021
-Bodies Corporate (Indian) 8 69342025
-Individual/HUF (Foreign) - -
-Bodies Corporate (Foreign) - -
2 | Mutual Funds - -
3 Financial Institutions/Banks - -
4 Insurance Companies 1 92719
5 Foreign Institutional Investors - -
6 |Domestic Companies 207 85844308
7 |Foreign Companies - -
8 Resident Individual/HUF 23355 53641418
9 Non-Resident Individual 205 1259370
10 |Foreign National - -
11 | NBFCs registered with RBI 1 750
12 |Clearing Member 44 1232629
13 | IEPF Authority 1 125517
Total 23825 211570757
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17) Convertible Instruments (outstanding)
There was no convertible instrument outstanding as at the end of the Financial Year on 31st March 2022.
18) Reclassification of two Promoters Group companies into Public category

The Company has obtained the approval of shareholders by means of postal ballot through e-voting on 18th February
2022 for Re-classification of two “Promoter Group” companies into “Public” category under Regulation 31A of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and filed an application
thereafter with both the Stock Exchanges for their approval which is in process with them.

19) Commodity or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging

During the year, the Company had managed its foreign exchange risk and had not entered into any hedge contract against
its exposures related to exports & imports and receivable balances & payable balances in connection thereto. Management
monitors the commodities/raw materials whose prices are volatile and suitable steps are taken to minimize the risk.

20) Address for Correspondence

The Company’s Registered Office is located at:
4 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata — 700 001

Shareholders may correspond with the Company at the Registered Office of the Company or at the office of Registrar and
Transfer Agent of the Company:

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

Share Department

4 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata — 700 001

Compliance Officer:Ms. Indrani Ray, Company Secretary
Telephone No: +91-33-4459 1111, Fax No: +91-33- 4459 1009
E-mail: mbecorp@mbecl.co.in

E-mail for Investors Grievances: invcom@mbecl.co.in

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

Unit: McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor

Kolkata — 700001

Contact person: Mr. S. Rajagopalan, Vice President
Telephone Nos.: 2243-5029/ 5809

Fax No: 2248-4787

E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com

21) Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations

Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations pertaining to particulars of Directors to be appointed or re-
appointed at the forthcoming Fifty-ninth Annual General Meeting is enclosed as an annexure to the Notice convening the
Annual General Meeting.

22) Compliance Certificate of the Auditors

The certificate obtained from M/s. V. Singhi & Associates, Chartered Accountant Statutory Audit of the Company, regarding
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations is annexed and forms part of
this report.

23) Admission under National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

The National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (NCLT) vide its Order dated 29th April 2022, (“Admission Order”)
ordered the commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) in respect of McNally Bharat Engineering
Company Limited under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and subsequent amendments thereof
(the “Code”).
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The Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench by the said Order has appointed Mr. Anuj Jain (having IP registration number IBBI/IPA-
001/I1P-P00142/2017-18/10306) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) for carrying out the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company.

In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stands
suspended and the same are vested with the IRP. The management of the affairs of the Company devolves upon the IRP.

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ IP-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

Srinivash Singh

30th May 2022 DIN: 00789624
Kolkata Managing Director

Declaration by the Managing Director under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations
regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct

In accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, | hereby confirm that all
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Mission
and Vision, the Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022.

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(A Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Anuj Jain
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ IP-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

Srinivash Singh

30th May 2022 DIN: 00789624
Kolkata Managing Director
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To the Members of
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company for the year ended on 31st
March, 2022 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C,
D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the Regulations) and as amended (‘SEBI LODR’).

Management’s Responsibilities

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with
the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Regulations

Auditors’ Responsibilities

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance
of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria.

6. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this
certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standards on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control
for Firms that Perform Audits and Review of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Service
Engagements.

Opinion

8. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the
written representations provided to us by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and
para C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI LODR for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Other matters and Restrictions on use

9. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

10. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with the
requirement of the SEBI LODR, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do
not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)

Partner

Date: 30th May, 2022 Membership No. 050051
Place: Kolkata UDIN: 22050051AJXMLY7581
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 7th Floor
Kolkata — 700 001

West Bengal

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of McNally Bharat
Engineering Company Limited having CIN: L45202WB1961PLC025181 and having registered office at Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra
Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 7th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub
clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its
officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
No. in Company
1. |Aditya Khaitan 00023788 27.06.2011
2. |Srinivash Singh 00789624 14.12.2016
3. |Asim Kumar Barman 02373956 01.12.2009
4. | Arundhuti Dhar 03197285 23.08.2016
5. |Nilotpal Roy 00087298 14.02.2020
6. |Kasturi Roychoudhury 06594917 14.02.2020

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This Certificate has been issued
relying on the documents and information as mentioned herein above and as were made available to us or as came to our
knowledge for verification without taking any cognizance of any legal dispute(s) or sub-judice matters which may have effect
otherwise, if ordered so, by any concerned authority(ies). This certificate is also neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Note:

1. The Company has been admitted to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) vide an Order pronounced by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata on 29” April 2022 in Company Application No. C.P.(IB)No0.891/
KB/2020 under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC);

Pursuant to the said Order, the Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Mr. Anuj Jain (Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-
2018/10306) as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) as proposed by the Financial Creditor. Consequently, the Board of
Directors of the Company stands suspended as on date.

2. Ms. Kasturi Roychoudhury (DIN: 06594917), Independent Director of the Company is yet to appear for the online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Asit Kumar Labh

Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata ACS—32891 / CP No.- 14664
Dated: 30.05.2022 UDIN: 032891D000424843
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Secretarial Audit Report

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Four Mangoe Lane

Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 7* Floor
Kolkata — 700 001

West Bengal

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited having its Registered Office at Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan
Ghosh Sarani, 7th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended 31.03.2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on existence of adequate Board process and compliance management system, commensurate to the size of the
Company, based on these secretarial records as shown to me during the said audit and also based on the information furnished
to me by the officers’ and the agents of the Company during the said audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of my understanding to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed, provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial records, books of accounts and decisions taken by
the Board and by various committees of the Company during the period under scrutiny. | have checked the Board process and
compliance management system to understand and to form an opinion as to whether there is an adequate system of seeking
approval of respective committees of the Board, of the Board, of the members of the Company and of other authorities as per
the provisions of various statutes as mentioned hereinafter.

Wherever required | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibility
of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of compliance procedures on test basis.

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness or accuracy with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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| report that, | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended 31.03.2022 according to the provisions of (as amended) :

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii) Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(

(

(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under;
(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(

v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992:
(@ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulation, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has specifically complied with the provisions
of the following Acts:

1. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central Rules,
1972;

2. The Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of service) Act, 1979; and
3. Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1996

to the extent of its applicability to the Company during the financial year ended 31.03.2022 and my examination and reporting
is based on the documents, records and files as produced and shown to and the information and explanations as provided to
me by the Company and its management and to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the different
enactments upon the Company. Further, to the best of my knowledge and understanding there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operation to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws
including general laws, labour laws, competition law, environmental laws, etc.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisionsof the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. as mentioned above, except:

Matter of Emphasis:

1. The Company did not have its entire Promoters’ Shareholding in dematerialized form as on 31.03.2022 as stipulated
under Regulation 31(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

2. The Company had defaulted in payment of interest/ repayment of principal amount on loans from banks/financial
institutions and also unlisted debt securities, viz. default in redemption of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares. Quarterly disclosure for the aforesaid default pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 2019/
140 dated November 21, 2019 was not submitted for the Quarter ended 30th June, 2021.

3. The Company had not submitted Newspaper Publications of Quarterly Financial Results with the Stock Exchanges
pursuant to Regulation 47(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations/guidelines/standards were not applicable to the
Company:
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021.

| further report that :

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that, as on date:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

The Company has been admitted to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) vide an Order pronounced by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata on 29” April 2022 in Company Application No. C.P.(IB)N0.891/
KB/2020 under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). Pursuant to the said Order, the Hon’ble
NCLT has appointed Mr. Anuj Jain (Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-2018/10306) as the Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP) as proposed by the Financial Creditor. Consequently, the Board of Directors of the Company stands
suspended as on date.

The Company is yet to file e-Form MGT-14 for appointment of Company Secretary with the Office of the Registrar of
Companies, West Bengal, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Ms. Kasturi Roychoudhury (DIN: 06594917), Independent Director of the Company is yet to appear for the online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

The Company has a listed material subsidiary, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited, which is also under Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process vide NCLT order dated 11th February, 2021.

Asit Kumar Labh
Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata ACS — 32891 / CP No.- 14664
Dated: 30.05.2022 UDIN: A032891D000424801
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Management's Reply to Matter of
Emphasis in Secretarial Auditor’s Report

Most of the points raised by the Secretarial Auditor in his Audit Report as matter of emphasis are self-explanatory and hence
the same calls for no further explanation of the Board of Directors. However, the points which call for further explanation are
given below with an explanation of the Board of Directors on the same:

Reply to Matter of Emphasis

Sl. Management's Reply

No.
1. | The Company did not have its entire Promoters’ Shareholding in dematerialized form as on 31.03.2022 as stipulated
under Regulation 31(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.
Equity shares allotted to promoters are pending dematerialization since the shares are in the process of listing with the
Stock Exchange(s).

2. | The Company had defaulted in payment of interest/ repayment of principal amount on loans from banks/financial
institutions and also unlisted debt securities, viz. default in redemption of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares. Quarterly disclosure for the aforesaid default pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/
2019/ 140 dated November 21, 2019 was not submitted for the Quarter ended 30th June, 2021.

On account of lockdown due to spread of 2" phase of COVID and resulting non-accessibility to of office, the disclosure
pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 2019/ 140 dated November 21, 2019 for the quarter
ended June 30, 2021 could not be given for want of various data / financial information. However, when the office
re-opened and the situation gradually normalized, the Company submitted the disclosure as required under the said
circular for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 onwards.

3. | The Company had not submitted Newspaper Publications of Quarterly Financial Results with the Stock Exchanges
pursuant to Regulation 47(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Company had submitted the Results with the Stock Exchanges and made publication in the newspapers within the
timelines as prescribed under the Listing Regulations.
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Secretarial Compliance Report of McNally Bharat Engineering Company
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022

I, Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined:

(a)

all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by McNally Bharat Engineering Company
Limited (CIN : L45202WB1961PLC025181) having its Registered Office at Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 7th
Floor, Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal (“the listed entity”);

(b) the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges;

()
(d)

(a)

website of the listed entity;

any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, for the year ended
31st March, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued

thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, as amended, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined,

a)
b)
c)

(
(
(
(d)

include:-

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

and based on above examination, | hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a)

The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder,

except in respect of matters specified below:-

Sl Compliance Requirement (Regulations/ circulars/ Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the

No. guidelines including specific clause) Practising Company Secretary

1. |Regulation 31(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - 87.03 % of the shareholding of [The Company did not have its
The listed entity shall ensure that hundred percent of promoter(s) and promoter group|entire Promoters’ Shareholding in
shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter group is in|iS in dematerialized form as on | dematerialized form as on 31.03.2022.
dematerialized form and the same is maintained on a|31.03.2022.
continuous basis in the manner as specified by the Board.

2. | SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 2019/ 140 | Non-submission of disclosure with|The Company had not submitted
dated November 21, 2019 — Clause 3(C2): respect to defaults in payment of | quarterly disclosure of default as
3(C2): Disclosure shall be made by listed entities, on the last | interest/ repayment of principal | required in the referred SEBI Circular for
date of any quarter: amount on loans from banks/|the Quarter ended 30" June, 2021.

a. Any loan including revolving facilities like cash credit financial institutions.
from banks / financial institutions where the default

continues beyond 30 days; or

b. There is any outstanding debt security under default

3. | Regulation 47(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - Non-submission of Newspaper|The Company has not submitted
The listed entity shall publish the information specified in | Publication (Financial Results) with | Newspaper Publications of Quarterly
sub-regulation (1) in the newspaper simultaneously with the | the Stock Exchanges. Financial Results with the Stock
submission of the same to the stock exchange(s). Exchanges.
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(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines

(c)

issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.

The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries
either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various
circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

SI. | Action taken by Details of Details of Action taken Observations/ Remarks of the
No. Violation E.g. fines, warning letter, Practising Company Secretary, if any.
debarment, etc.

- - None - -

(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

SI. | Observation of practising Company | Observations made Actions taken by the listed entity, in Comments of the Practising
No. |Secretary in the previous reports in the Secretarial any Company Secretary on the
compliance report for actions taken by the listed
the year ended entity
1 |The Company does not have its 315 March, 2021 Equity shares allotted to promoters are | The reply of the Company is
entire  Promoters’  Shareholding pending dematerialization since listing | self explanatory
in dematerialized form as on applications have been filed with the
31.03.2021. Stock Exchanges and the shares are in
the process of listing.
2 | Financial Result for the quarter and 315 March, 2021 Due to technical problems, the financial | The reply of the Company is
year ended 31.03.2020 approved result for the quarter and financial year | self explanatory
at the Board Meeting held on ended 31.03.2020 was submitted after
15.07.2020 was submitted to the 30 minutes of the conclusion of Board
Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) after Meeting held on 15.07.2020.
thirty minutes of the conclusion of
the Board Meeting.
3 |The Company had submitted 31 March, 2021 Onaccount of lockdown due to pandemic | The reply of the Company is

quarterly disclosure of default against
any loan including revolving facilities
like cash credit from banks / financial
institutions in accordance with SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/
CIR/ P/ 2019/ 140 dated November
21, 2019 from the quarter ended 30*
September, 2020 onwards.

caused by Covid-19 and non-accessibility
of office, the disclosure pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/
P/ 2019/ 140 dated November 21, 2019
for the quarter ended June 30, 2020
could not be given for want of various
data / financial information. However,
when the office re-opened and the
situation was somewhat normalized, the
Company has submitted the disclosure
as required under the said circular for
the quarter ended September 30, 2020
onwards.

self explanatory

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 30.05.2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us because of the significance of
the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and do not give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022, its losses (including Other Comprehensive Income), the changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
a) Non-recognition of Interest Expense

The Company has not recognised interest expense on Bank borrowing amounting to Rs 95,766.40 Lakhs and Inter-Corporate
Borrowings amounting to Rs 706.40 Lakhs till the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 as stated in Note 12(b)(ii) & 46 to the
Standalone Financial Statements. Lenders/ Financial creditors have submitted their respective claims to the IRP amounting
to Rs 5,75,095.90 lakhs (including Interest) out of which claims amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 lakhs (including Interest)have
been provisionally admitted by IRP. As a result, finance costs, liability on account of interest and total comprehensive loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are understated to that extent.

This constitutes a material departure from the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”.
b) Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets

We draw attention to Note 50 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding Trade Receivables, Other Financial Assets
and Other Current Assets being subject to confirmation and reconciliation from respective parties and consequential
reconciliation, outcomes of pending arbitration/settlements of claims and adjustments arising therefrom, if any.
Adjustments/ Impacts with respect to these are currently not ascertainable and as such cannot be commented upon by us.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements where the Company has reported a net loss in current year

amounting to Rs. 7,714 Lakhs (previous year Rs 4,985.83 Lakhs) and is unable to meet its financial commitments/covenants to

lenders and various other stakeholders. These events and conditions indicate a material uncertainty which may cast a significant

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is

dependent on the acceptance of the resolution plan by the Committee of Creditors.

We draw attention to Note 47 to the Standalone Financial Statements stating that the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court by an order
dated 2nd March, 2022, has restrained the company from dealing with the banks, which has severely affected its operations.
The company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court for withdrawal of the above restraining order since
CIRP process has been initiated against the company.

Based on the management’s assessment and expectation that the IRP/RP will make every endeavour to protect and preserve
the value of the property of the corporate debtor and manage its operations as a going concern the financial statements of the
company have been prepared on going concern basis.

Emphasis of Matters
a) Appointment of Interim Resolution Professional
We draw attention to Note 41 to the Standalone Financial Statementsinforming that the Hon’ble National Company Law
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b)

d)

Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench has admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company vide
an order dated 29th April 2022. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended and are
instead exercisable by the Interim Resolution Professional, Mr. Anuj Jain.

Non-Assessment of Pending Litigations

We draw attention to Note 43 to the Standalone Financial Statements pertaining to the Company’s receipts of regulatory
Enquiries/ Notices/ Summons/ Show-Cause/ Demand/ Orders from various Government authorities such as departments
of Goods and Services Tax and Income Tax. In view of Company’s admission under CIRP, all existing civil / legal proceedings
will be kept in abeyance as moratorium is in force under section 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the
conclusion of CIRP. Therefore, no impact has been considered in the Statement as of now.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

We draw attention to Note 7 to the Standalone Financial Statements stating that the Company had recognised deferred
tax assets of Rs. 51,706.60 Lakhs upto 31st March, 2018 expecting adequate future taxable profits to the Company against
which the deferred tax assets could be realized, which is solely dependent on the acceptance of the resolution plan.
However, the Company has not recognised further deferred tax assets for the year as well as for the preceding years on
prudent basis.

Non-adjustment of the Carrying Value of the Investments

We draw attention to Note 49 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding invocation of pledge over 23,37,211 Equity
Shares of the Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited held by the Company, by the Lender Bank of the
Subsidiary Company i.e. ICICI Bank Limited as per their letter dated 27th November, 2020 at a value of Re. 1/- against the
Term Loan facility availed by the Subsidiary Company. The Company has objected to such invocation vide their letter dated
15th December, 2020. The company has asked for compensation for such invocation at average cost price amounting to Rs
40.79 Cr, and as the said claim is under verification by the Resolution Professional of the Subsidiary Company, the Company
has not made any adjustment to the carrying value of its investment in the Subsidiary Company.

Other Equity

We draw attention to Note 44 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding other equity which includes Rs 83,804.25
lakhs (85,148.70 lakhs as on 31st March, 2021) of fair valuation gain on account of deferred repayment of Inter Corporate

Deposit amounting to Rs 98,592.94 lakhs considered as part of “Other Reserves” and Rs 14,788.69 lakhs (13,444.26 lakhs
as on 31st March, 2021) have been considered as “Long term borrowings” under the head Non-Current Borrowings.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section and Emphasis of Matters section of our report, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our Report.

Sr.No. |Key Audit Matters Auditors’ Response to Key Audit Matters
1 Estimated Cost to complete the Project: Our audit approach was combination oftest of internal controls
(Refer note 1(d) to the Standalone Financial |@nd substantive procedures which includes the following:
Statements) 1. Tested the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of the controls surrounding determination
and approval of estimated cost.

Verified the contracts with customers on test check basis
including the actual cost incurred and terms and conditions
related to the variation of the cost.

The Company recognises revenue under percentage
of completion method as specified under Indian
Accounting Standard 115 “Revenue from Contract |2
with Customers”.

Recognition of revenue requires estimation of total

incurred till date and estimated cost further to be
incurred to complete the projects.Estimation of
the cost to complete involves exercise of significant
judgement by management including assessment
of technical data and hence identified as Key Audit
Matter.

contract cost which comprises of the actual cost|3-

Discussed with the project management teams for certain
selected projects to assess the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to be incurred for completing the respective
projects.

. Obtained and relied on the Independent Chartered

Engineer’s Certificate for supporting the accuracy of
the estimate of the total cost of the project for selected
contracts on test check basis.
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Sr.No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditors’ Response to Key Audit Matters

2.

Impairment of Investments in Subsidiaries:
(Refer note 5 to the Standalone Financial Statements)

Investments in Subsidiaries are measured at cost
net of impairment provision, if any, as per the
requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

Impairment indicators were noted in one of the
Subsidiary Companies, McNally Sayaji Engineering
Limited resulted in an assessment of impairment of
the Investments in the Subsidiary.

This area was considered to be of Key Audit Matter
for the following reasons:

eThe magnitude of the balance of the Investments
in the subsidiary with a carrying value of Rs
17,933.67 Lakhs ; and

eThe carrying value is supported by future forecasted
operating cash flows of the subsidiary, which
are judgmental in nature and are dependent on
number of factors, including volume and margin
expectations.

Our audit approach was combination oftest of internal controls
and substantive procedures which includes the following:

1. Tested the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the controls surrounding management
review type controls on assessment of impairment of
Investments in subsidiaries.

2. Verified the appropriateness of the cash flows projection
of the Subsidiary including key assumptions considered as
part of the impairment assessment.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(Refer note 29(a) to the Standalone Financial
Statements)

The Company is involved in various taxes and other
disputes for which final outcomes cannot be easily
predicted and which could potentially result in
significant liabilities.The assessment of the risks
associated with the litigations is based on complex
assumptions, which require the use of judgements
and such judgements relates, primarily to the
assessment of the uncertainties connected to the
prediction of the outcome of the proceedings and
to the adequacy of the disclosures in the Standalone
Financial Statements. Because of the judgement
required, the materiality of such litigations and the
complexity of the assessment process, the area is a
key matter for our audit.

Our audit approach was combination oftest of internal controls
and substantive procedures which includes the following:

1. Assessing the appropriateness of the design and
implementation of the Company’s controls over the
assessment of litigations and completeness of disclosures.

2. Testing the supporting documentation for the positions
taken by the management, conducting meetings with in-
house legal counsel and/or legal team and reviewing the
minutes of the Board and the Sub-committee, to confirm
the operating effectiveness of these controls.

3. Assessment of assumptions used in the evaluation of
potential risk and tax risks performed by the legal and
tax department of the Company considering the legal
precedence and other rulings in similar cases.

4. Involving our direct and indirect tax specialists to assess
relevant historical and recent judgments passed by the
appropriate authorities in order to challenge the basis used
for the accounting treatment and resulting disclosures.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises of the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Management’s Report including Annexures to Management’s Report and Shareholders Information
but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance or conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When after reading the Annual Report we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution process (‘CIRP’), the Interim Resolution Professional (‘IRP’), is responsible
for the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board of Directors and respective management under the IRP.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors and respective management under the IRP’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

60



Annual Report 2021 - 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of Financial Statements;

b) except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion Section above, in our opinion,
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and returns;

c) the Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) considering the significance of the matter describedin the Basis for Adverse Opinion Section above,in our opinion,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements do not comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company as on 31st March, 2022 and
taken on record by the Interim Resolution Professional, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. However, in view of corporate insolvency
resolution process (“CIRP”) starting from 29th April 2022, the powers of Board of Directors stand suspended as per
section 17 of the code and such powers are exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional during the year;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference
to these Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid/payable by the Company to its director is in accordance with the requirements of
Section 197 of the Act.
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h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rulel1l of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section above, the Company
has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in the Standalone Financial Statements
(Refer Note 29(a) to the Standalone Financial Statements);

ii. the Company did not have any long term contract including derivative contract for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii.There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented , to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented , to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedure that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause(a) or
(b) contain any material misstatement.
v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the financial year.
For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date:30th May, 2022 Membership No. 050051

UDIN: 22050051AJYAIL9533
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Referred to in Paragraph-1 on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date to the members of
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(i)

(i)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(iii) (a)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly this clause of the order is not Applicable.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property Plant and Equipment to cover all the items in a

phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the

Company and the nature of its assets. However, Property Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by

the Management during the year.

The Company does not own any immovable property as disclosed in Note 3 on Property, Plant &Equipment to the
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use-assets) and intangible
assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

The inventories (excluding stocks with third parties), have been physically verified during the year by the Management
at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. In
respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. Keeping in view, the
nature of operations, in our opinion, the procedure for physical verification of inventory followed by the management
is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business.

As disclosed in Note 46 of the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess
of Rupees Five crores in aggregate from bank which are secured on the basis of security of current assets and all the
loans taken by company fall under Non-Performing-Assets, So the Company has not filed quarterly returns with the
banks.

During the year the company has not made investments in, granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or any other parties, except guarantee provided:

Particulars Guarantees Loan

Aggregate amount during the year

Subsidiary MBE Coal & Mineral Technologylndia Private Limited 150 Lakhs -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Vedica Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited - 1744.38 Lakhs

(b)

(f)

The Company has not given any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year. In our
opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided,
and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In case of loans given where there is no stipulation of schedule of either repayment of principal or payment of
interest, we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

In case of loans given, the schedule for repayment of principal or payment of interest have not been stipulated and
accordingly we are unable to comment on the amount overdue for more than ninety days.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the over dues of existing loan given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security, as applicable.
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v)

vi)

vii)

64

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts deemed to be deposits from the public during the year within the
meaning of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under to the extent notified. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act. We have
broadly reviewed the same as maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribedcost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether the same are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

a) The dues of Income Tax have not been regularly deposited during the year with the Income tax authorities. The
Company has generally been regular in depositing other undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. There were arrears in undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Income Tax as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date
the same became payable are as follow:

Name of the Statute

Nature of Dues

Amount

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Period to which the
amount Relates

Due Date

Income Tax Act, 1961

TDS U/s 194A 7.15 November,2017 7th December, 2017
13.59 December,2017 7th January, 2018
6.61 January, 2018 7th February, 2018
14.3 February, 2018 7th March, 2018
43.05 March, 2018 7th April, 2018
41.21 March, 2019 7th April, 2019
TDS U/s 194) 7.5 December, 2017 7th January, 2018
25 March, 2018 30th April, 2018

b) Details of dues of Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty and Income Tax which
have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the Forum where dispute is Nature of | Financial year to which Amount involved
Statute pending Dues the amount relates (Rs. in Lakhs)
Income Tax 2015-16 4,776.28
CIT (Appeal) TDS 2014-15 111.87
TDS _
Income Tax Act, 2015-16 302.82
1961 AO(TDS) TGS 2015-16 6.35
AO(TDS) DS 2016-17 322.10
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal | Income Tax 2016-17 2370.85
(ITAT)
Assistant Commissioner/ Sales Tax
Additional Com@ssmner/ and VAT 2008-09 to 2017-18 11,993.53
Deputy Commissioner/
Sales Tax/Value |Commissioner
Added Tax Acts Aobellate Tribunal Sales Tax
ppefiate and VAT | 2006-07 to 2017-18 5,739.17
andRevisional Board
Supreme Court/ High Court SalesTax |05 06 t0 2017-18 21,054.25
P & and VAT el
Custom Excise and Service Tax Central
The Central Appellate Tribunal Excise 2018-2020 300.77
Excise Act, 1944
xcise Act, 1944 | ioh court Central 2016-2017 25.00
Excise
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Name of the Forum where dispute is Nature of | Financial year to which Amount involved
Statute pending Dues the amount relates (Rs. in Lakhs)
. . . Service Tax

The Finance Custom Excise and Service Tax

Act, 1994 Appellate Tribunal 2003-04 to 2011-12 1,810.53
High Court, Supreme Entry Tax

Entry Tax Act. Court, Appellate Tribunal, 2005-08, 2010-11 to 711.24

L 2017-18

Commissioner Appeal

Goods and Audit Cell Telangana GST 2017-18 to 2019-20 339.61

Service Tax Act, GST

2017 Audit Cell Tamil Nadu 2017-18 to 2019-20 324.61

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of the Order is not

applicable.

(ix) a) (i) The Company has defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to Banks and the details of continuing default in
repayment of loans or payment of interest as provided to us, are as below:

Nature of Name of the Lender Amount not paid on due No. of days of delay or unpaid Remarks, if any
borrowing date (Rs in Lakhs)
including debt
securities
Principal Interest Principal Interest
External 218.26 1195 1097
Commercial ICICI Bank 502.04
Borrowing
Demand Loan ’
Standard Chartered Bank 3,415.90 1,504.66 1156 1067
Indian Bank (Formerly 3,777.44 1086 1086
known as Allahabad Bank) 8,471.50
Axis Bank Limited 20,449.79 9,148.73 1100 1100
Bank of Baroda 4,165.21 1,852.27 1097 1097
Bank of India 44,844.57| 1895249 1073 1073
Canara Bank 2,385.85 1,322.34 1065 1065
DCB Bank 292.11 130.10 731 731
ICICI Bank 18,405.66 11,717.34 1158 1158 | The lender has filed
the claim to IRP/RP
7,708. 1097 1097
IDBI Bank 17,262.94 ,708.58 09 09 which is provisionally
Cash Credit from | Karur Vysya Bank 8,596.24 5,156.42 1162 1162 | admitted.
Banks Lakshmi Vilas Bank 96.06 58.64 521 521
Punjab National Bank 514.32 1109 1109
(Formerly known as Oriental 1,077.28
Bank of Commerce)
Punjab National Bank 14,966.19 8,426.92 1091 1091
Standard Chartered Bank 2,571.24 1,631.76 1067 1067
State Bank Of India 25,468.29 11,257.67 1039 1039
UCO Bank 485.69 435.12 731 731
Union Bank 15,073.17 6,348.31 1067 1067
Punjab National Bank
(Formerly known as United 53.54 34.79 944 944
Bank of India)
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(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the loans and interest thereon that have been demanded
for repayment by the other lenders during the year is provided below:

Nature of Borrowing Name of the Amount not paid on due date (Rs | No. of days of delay or unpaid
including debt Lender in Lakhs)
securities

Principal Interest Principal | Interest
Inter Corporate Other Lenders 1,905 4,476.15 - -
Borrowings

In addition to the above, the Company has also defaulted in payment of interest amounting to Rs 706.40 Lakhs
(unrecognized) on the above borrowings for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

The Company has not taken any loan from the Financial Institution or Government nor issued any debentures during
the year.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other Lender.

c)The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term loans at the beginning of the
year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d)On an overall examination of the financial statements, the Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.

e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no case of frauds by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub- section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 withthe Central Government, during the
year.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books and records, we
report that the Company are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable for transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under Audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions specified under section 192 of the Act withdirectors or persons connected with
directors during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
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XVi.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45- IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a),(b),(c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. Based on the examination of record, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 7,061.99 Lakhs in the financial year 2021-

22 and Rs 4,311.93 Lakhs in the immediately financial year 2020-21.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year and accordingly clause 3(xviii) of

XiX.

the order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, indicate that material
uncertainty exists that may cast a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

xX. Based on our examination of records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, due to losses incurred
during the year and earlier years, the conditions and requirements of section 135 of the Act is not applicable. Hence,
paragraph 3(xx) (a) and (xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

For V. Singhi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)

Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 30th May, 2022 Membership No. 050051

UDIN: 22050051AJYAIL9533
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2(h) on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date to the members of
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (“the
Company”) as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements the Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective management under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022 based on the criteria for

internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 30th May, 2022 Membership No. 050051

UDIN: 22050051AJYAIL9533
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McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Standalone Balance Sheet asat 315t march, 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes | As at 31st March, 2022 | As at 31st March, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and Equipment 3 2,002.15 2,635.69
Right to use Assets 3 162.45 1,841.08
Capital work-in-progress 3 462.62 462.62
Other Intangible Assets 4 47.15 47.32
Financial Assets
i. Investments 5 18,051.51 18,054.36
ii. Other Financial Assets 6(d) 14.58 2.12
Deferred tax assets 7 51,706.60 51,706.60
Other Non-current Assets 8 - 1.83
Total Non-current Assets 72,447.06 74,751.62
Current Assets
Inventories 9 165.82 293.00
Financial Assets
i. Trade Receivables 6(a) 95,549.56 1,05,220.29
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 6(b) 2,412.41 2,722.85
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 6(b) - 58.24
iv. Loans 6(c) 1,744.38 1,744.38
v. Other financial assets 6(d) 36,098.11 26,923.82
Current Tax Assets (net) 10(a) 873.43 4,163.44
Other current assets 10(b) 45,883.52 48,452.37
Total Current Assets 1,82,727.23 1,89,578.40
Total Assets 2,55,174.29 2,64,330.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11(a) 21,157.08 21,157.08
Other equity 11(b) (22,796.45) (13,776.18)
Total Equity (1,639.37) 7,380.90
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 12(a) 14,788.69 13,444.26
ii. Other financial liabilities 12(c) 88.88 2,270.27
Provisions 13 203.34 233.42
Total Non-current Liabilities 15,080.91 15,947.95
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i.Borrowings 12(b) 2,02,646.75 2,00,779.27
ii Lease Liability 12(c) 87.60 -
iii. Trade payables 12(e)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 193.96 195.64
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21,551.40 22,387.35
iv. Other financial liabilities 12(d) 11,982.58 12,357.98
Provisions 13 78.95 92.84
Other current liabilities 14 5,191.51 5,188.08
Total Current Liabilities 2,41,732.75 2,41,001.16
Total Liabilities 2,56,813.66 2,56,949.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,55,174.29 2,64,330.02
Significant Accounting Policies 1-2

The above standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 55.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Partner
Membership Number: 050051

Place: Kolkata,
Date: 30th May, 2022
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(Srinivash Singh)
Managing Director
DIN: 00789624

(Brij Mohan Soni)
Chief Financial Officer

Anuj Jain
(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

(Asim Kumar Barman)
Director
DIN: 02373956

(Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement Of PrOﬁt and LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Revenue from operations 15 25,270.74 33,278.33
Other income 16 6,285.94 2,589.15
Total income 31,556.68 35,867.48
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 17 12,006.63 13,608.72
Outsourcing Expenses to Job workers 11,819.90 12,280.65
Employee Benefit Expense 18 4,407.30 4,559.99
Finance Costs 19 4,660.53 4,227.62
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 20 609.45 673.90
Other Expenses 21 5,767.10 5,520.17
Total expenses 39,270.91 40,871.06
Profit / (Loss) before tax (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
Income tax expense 22
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax - -
Total Tax Expense - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit plans (net of taxes) 42.79 17.75
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 42.79 17.75
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (7,671.44) (4,985.83)
Earnings Per Share 33
Basic Earnings Per Share (Face value of INR 10 each) (3.65) (2.36)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (Face value of INR 10 each) (3.65) (2.36)
Significant Accounting Policies, Judgement,Estimates and Assumptions 1-2

The above standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 55.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Partner
Membership Number: 050051

Place: Kolkata,
Date: 30th May, 2022

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

(Srinivash Singh)
Managing Director
DIN: 00789624

(Brij Mohan Soni)
Chief Financial Officer

Anuj Jain
(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

(Asim Kumar Barman)
Director
DIN: 02373956

(Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Standalone Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before income tax (7714.23) (5,003.58)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 609.45 673.90
Finance Cost 4,660.53 4,227.62
Interest Income (3,639.84) (2,157.17)
Loss/(Profit) on Disposal of Fixed Assets (Net) (80.99) (21.73)
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts/Claims 30.22 -
Expected credit loss provided for/(written back) (1,689.45) 634.93
Advance to vendor written off 119.72 -
Liability no longer required written back - (41.05)
Provision for Doubtful Debts against expenses recoverable 846.82 -
Provision for Future Foreseeable Losses in Construction Contracts (1,199.11) (757.51)
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on Foreign Currency Translation (Net) 100.81 (26.76)
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2.87 (27.82)
Change in operating Assets and Liabilities: -
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 11,259.36 32,847.90
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 127.18 233.86
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (837.64) (220.92)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (8,958.58) (3,217.37)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 1.83 1.14
(Increase)/decrease in Right to use assets 1,538.34 -
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 2,538.63 (3,758.50)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (1.17) 25.14
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (2,469.20) 525.19
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities 3.43 (22,145.93)
Cash generated from operations (4751.02) 1,791.35
Income taxes (paid)/Refund 3,290.01 2,060.01
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities (1461.01) 3,851.36
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21.19) (1.33)
Loans given - 50.21
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 266.71 41.75
Deposits matured/(made) during the year 58.24 49.71
Interest received 3,639.84 6.51
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 3,943.59 146.85
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Standalone Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 4,632.47 2,164.48
Repayment of borrowings (2,764.98) -
Interest paid (4,660.53) (5,100.99)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities (2,793.04) (2,936.51)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (310.46) 1,061.70
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2,722.85 1,661.15
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,412.41 2,722.85
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,412.41 2,722.85
Balances per statement of cash flows 2,412.41 2,722.85
Change in Liability arising from Financing Activities

Particulars April 01, 2021 | Cash Flow | Foreign Exchange Other March 31, 2022

Movement Adjustment #

Borrowings (Non-Current) 19,383.08 - 14.65 1,344.43 20,742.16
Borrowings (Current) 2,00,779.27| 1,867.49 - - 2,02,646.75
Total 2,20,162.35| 1,867.49 14.65 1,344.43 2,23,388.91

# Other Adjustment of Rs. 1,344.43 lakhs is in respect of Non-Current Borrowings as reversal of fair value gain on deferment
of advances received from certain companies and converted into interest free Inter Corporate Deposits( ICDs) during earlier

years {Refer Note 11(B)(v) and Note 41}.

Notes:

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) -

Statement of cash flows.

The above standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 55.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(Srinivash Singh)
(V. K. SINGHI) Managing Director
Partner DIN: 00789624

Membership Number: 050051

(Brij Mohan Soni)

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata,
Date: 30th May, 2022

Anuj Jain

(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

(As

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

im Kumar Barman)
Director
DIN: 02373956

(Indrani Ray)

Company Secretary
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McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Standalone Statement Of Changes in EqUity for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Notes Equity Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2020 21,157.08
Changes in Equity Share Capital 11(a) -
As at 31st March, 2021 21,157.08
Changes in Equity Share Capital 11(a) -
As at 31st March, 2022 21,157.08
B. Other Equity
Particulars Notes Money Compulsorily Reserves and Surplus Total

Received Convertible Securities Retained Capital General Other

against Share | Preference Share|  Premium Earnings Redemption| Reserve Reserves

Warrants Capital Reserve
Balance at 1st April, 2021 - -l 1,12,869.05| (2,13,448.95) 101.00| 1,549.64| 85,148.69| (13,780.57)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (7,714.23) - - (7,714.23)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - 42.79 - - 42.79
Total Comprehensive Income - - - (7,671.44) - - -l (7,671.44)
for the year
Forfeiture of Share Warrants | below - - -
Reversal of Fair value gain on 44 - - - - - (1,344.43)| (1,344.43)
Financial Liabilities
Converted into equity - -
Transfer to Financial Liabilities | 12(a) - - - - - - -

- - - - - -l (1,344.43) (1,344.43)

Balance at 31st March, 2022 - -l 1,12,869.05| (2,21,120.39) 101.00| 1,549.64| 83,804.27| (22,796.43)
Particulars Notes Money Compulsorily Reserves and Surplus Total

Received Convertible Securities Retained Capital General Other

against Share | Preference Share |  Premium Earnings Redemption | Reserve Reserves

Warrants Capital Reserve
Balance at 1st April, 2020 1,12,869.05| (2,08,463.12) 101.00| 1,549.64| 86,370.90| (7,572.53)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (5,003.58) - - -1 (5,003.58)
Other Comprehensive - - - 17.75 - - - 17.75
Income
Total Comprehensive Income - - - (4,985.83) - - -1 (4,985.83)
for the year
Forfeiture of Share Warrants - - - -
Reversal of Fair value gain on 44 - - - - -1 (1,222.21) | (1,222.21)
Financial Liabilities

- - - - - (1,222.21) | (1,222.21)

Balance at 31st March, 2021 - - 1,12,869.05| (2,13,448.95) 101.00| 1,549.64 85,148.69 | (13,776.18)

Note : A Note : An amount of Rs. 620 Lakhs (including Securities Premium of Rs. 520 Lakhs) was received by the Company as 25% subscription
money from two parties towards allotment of 40,00,000 Equity Share Warrants.On non-exercise of their option attached to the warrants for
subscription of Equity Shares of the Company,the Company has forfeited the amount during the financial year 2019-20.

The above standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 55.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Partner
Membership Number: 050051

Place: Kolkata,
Date: 30th May, 2022
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(Srinivash Singh)
Managing Director
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(Brij Mohan Soni)
Chief Financial Officer

Anuj Jain
(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional

(Asim Kumar Barman)
Director
DIN: 02373956

(Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Corporate Information

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (MBECL) is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India.
The registered office of the Company is located at Four Mangoe Lane, Kolkata- 700001 and Corporate Office is located at
Campus 2B, Ecospace Business Park, 11F/12 Rajarhat, New Town, Kolkata- 700160. The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on
National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in diversified construction activities primarily
execution of Turnkey Projects.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal(NCLT), Kolkata Bench vide orderdated 29/04/2022 while admitting section
7 application under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, one of the financial creditors, initiated Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Processagainst the company.

CA Anuj Jain (IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306) was initially appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional in the said
matter.

The CIRP under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 is in progress.

This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Preparation of Standalone Financial Statements
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Standalone Financial Statements have been preparedinaccordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in these Standalone Financial Statements.
(ii) Historical cost convention

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments); and

¢ Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.
(iii) Operating Cycle

Allassets and liabilities have been classified as current or non - current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule 1ll to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained, on an average its
operating cycle for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities to be 24 months.

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are continually evaluated by
the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations
of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results
are known/materialized.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(b)

(c)

(d)

76

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but
provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

Segment Reporting

The Companyis primarily engaged in Engineering, Procurementand Construction business (EPC). Information reported toand
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operational Decision Maker (CODM) i.e., Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessing performance focuses on the business as a whole. The CODM reviews the
Company’s performance on the analysis of profit before tax at an overall level. Further, there are no reportable geographical
segments since significant business is within India. Accordingly, there is no other separate reportable segment as defined
by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Foreign Currencies

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at
the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and
are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other Income’. The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the
fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Functional Currency

Items included in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Standalone Financial
Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / (losses).

Non —monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 28, 2018, notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” as
part of the Companies (India Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2018. The new standard was effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach.
The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.
The Company derives revenues primarily from turnkey solutions in the areas of Power, Steel, Aluminum, Material Handling,
Mineral Beneficiation, Pyroprocessing, Pneumatic Handling of powdered materials including fly ash handling and high
concentrate disposal, coal washing, Port cranes, Cement, Oil & Gas, civic and industrial water supply etc. (together called
as “turnkey solutions”).
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(i)

(i)

(iif)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns and other similar allowances.

Sale of Goods

For contracts with customers in which the sale of equipment is generally expected to be the only performance obligation,
adoption of Ind AS 115 does not have any material impact on the Company’s revenue and profit or loss. The Company has
concluded that the revenue recognition to occur at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods as per the terms of the contracts with the customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have been passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Construction Contracts

Revenue from contracts are recognised with reference to the stage of completion method in accordance with Ind AS - 115.
Obligations under the long term construction contracts are satisfied over time given that the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. Revenue and costs are recognized by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion.

The outcome of a construction contract is considered as estimated reliably when (a) all critical approvals necessary for
commencement of the project have been obtained; (b) the stage of completion of the project reaches reasonable level of
development. The stage of completion is determined as a proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed up
to the closing date bear to the estimated total costs of respective project. Profit is recognised when the outcome of the
contract can be estimated reliably. When it is probable that the total cost will exceed the total revenue from the contract,
the expected loss is recognised immediately. For this purpose total contract costs are ascertained on the basis of contract
costs incurred and cost to completion of contracts which is arrived at by the management based on current technical data,
forecast and estimate of net expenditure to be incurred in future including for contingencies etc.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

When contract costsincurredto date plus recognised profit less recognised losses exceed progress billing, the surplus is shown
as amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as the amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included as a liability as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by customer are included under trade receivables.

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
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(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).

Interestincome from afinancial assetisrecognised whenitis probable thatthe economicbenefits will flowtothe Companyand
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax expense/ (income).
(i)  Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Standalone Statement of profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used till the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised.

Leases

Atinception of a contract, the entity shall assess whether the contract s, or contains, a lease. A contract s, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a Lessee (Assets taken on lease)

The Company recognizes a Right-of-use Asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.The Company
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets, if applicable. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.
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(h)

(i)

(i)

(k)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalentsincludes cash on hand,
demand deposits , other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Trade Receivables

Tradereceivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less provision for impairment.

Inventories
Inventories consists of raw materials, bought out components and loose tools.

Rawmaterials,boughtoutcomponentsandloosetoolsarestatedatthelowerofcostandnetrealizablevalue. Costofinventories
comprises costs of purchases. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of raw materials and stores on weighted average
basis, and to bought out components on specific identification on individual cost basis. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Due allowance is
estimated and made for obsolete items, wherever necessary.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
(i) Classification

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
financial liabilities at amortised cost, as required by Ind AS 109. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of liabilities measured at amortised cost net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.
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Investments and Other Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and

* Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(i)

(a)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are recognized at cost as per Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Instruments”
less impairment provision, if any, as per Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Financial Assets”.

Debt instruments measured at amortized cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments at Fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL) - The Company subsequently measures all equity
investments other than in subsidiaries and joint venture at fair value through profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is
established. Changes in the fair value of equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other
gain/ (losses) in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not selected the irrevocable option of
classifying investments to be carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for all financial assets is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The Company provides for expected credit loss allowance by taking into consideration historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the company operates. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

For trade receivables and due from customers, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expires or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.
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(m) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

(n)

(o)

Derivatives are initially recognsied at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss and are included in other gains / losses. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if:

i. itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
ii. the cost of an item can be measured reliably.

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment, if any.Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months.

(i) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management’s expert which in a case
is different than those specified by Schedule Il to the Act, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets as given below.
The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Useful Lives as followed by the
management
Plant and Machinery 3 to 20 years

Class of Assets

Management believes that useful lives of these assets reflect the periods over which these assets are expected to be used.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if, and only if, the recoverable amount
of an asset is less than its carrying amount and an impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

(p) Intangible Assets

(i) Computer Software
Costs incurred on computer software resulting in future economic benefits are capitalized as Intangible Assets.

Intangible Assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
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(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)
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business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Cost of purchased
software are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

(ii) Amortisation methods and periods
Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of three years.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.These are included in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 24 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized
in profit and loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method.

Preference Shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these
Preference Shares are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are derecognised from the Standalone Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/ losses.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part
of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and amount
of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre — tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The discount
rate does not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefitswill be required to settle the obligation oramount of the obligation
cannot bemeasured with sufficient reliability.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision
or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(u) Employee Benefits

(i)

(i)

Short — term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed within
24 months after the year end and non - monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 24 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.The obligations are presented as non-current liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet if the entity does
not expect actual settlement will occur within the operating cycle after the reporting period.

Employees’ State Insurance Scheme: Contribution to Central Government of India administered Employees’ State
Insurance Scheme for eligible employees is recognized as charge in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which they are accrued.

Other Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations

The liabilities for earned leave, sick leave and long service award are not expected to be settled wholly within 24 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.The benefits are discounted using the yield on government
securities at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the
Standalone Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they occur.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least the operating cycle after the reporting period, regardless of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates defined benefit plans such as Gratuity, Post - employment medical obligations and Provident
Fund (administered by independent Trust).

The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment. The gratuity fund is administered by independent Trustees. Plan assets are managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LICI).
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The Company provides for post — retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees.The entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a
minimum service period.The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The Company has a provident fund benefit plan which is administered by the independent Provident Fund Trust.
Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment. The Company make monthly contributions at specified percentage of the employees’ salary to such
Provident Fund Trust. The Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall in return on plan assets over the interest
rates prescribed by the authorities from time to time. In view of the Company’s obligation to meet the shortfall, it is
categorized as a defined benefit plan.

The liability or asset recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheet in respect of the above defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period.The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

(iii) Defined Benefit Plans (Contd.)

(v)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets.This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.They are included in retained earnings in the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

Contributed Equity

Equity Shares are classified as equity. The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written
off against securities premium account.

(w)Earnings Per Share

84

(i) Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing:

Profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

By the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for the effect of all
dilutive potential Equity Shares.

(ii) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share adjusts the figures used in their determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account

Profit/(Loss) after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential Equity
Shares, and
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e The weighted average number of additional Equity Shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential Equity Shares.

Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Il to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions.
These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates
involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these standalone financial statements. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differs from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the Standalone Financial Statements in the period in which the changes are made and, if material,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, judgements and
assumptions, which have the significant effect on the amounts recognised and disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements:

1. Going Concern Assumptions in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements.
. Expected Cost of Completion of Contracts.
. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments.
. Impairment of Investments in Joint Venture and Subsidiaries

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for carried forward tax losses

2
3
4
5
6. Impairment of Trade Receivables and due from customers
7. Provisions, Claims and Contingent Liabilities

8. Estimation of Defined Benefits Obligation

9. Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in
which the results are known.
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Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Plant & Furniture | Vehicles Office Total Capital Right
Equipment | & Fixtures Equipment work-in- | to Use
progress | Assets
1st April, 2020
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening gross carrying amount 10,061.35 723.43 60.85 105.93 | 10,951.56 462.48| 2,137.64
Additions 0.16 - - 1.04 1.20 0.14 -
Disposals/Adjustments (128.60) - - -1 (128.60) - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 9,932.90 723.43 60.85 106.97 | 10,824.16| 462.62| 2,137.64
IAccumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 7,065.13 565.61 45.34 105.50| 7,781.56 - 148.28
Depreciation charged during the year 489.01 32.86 1.78 1.03 524.68 - 148.28
Disposals (117.79) - - -1 (117.79) - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 7,436.35 598.47 47.11 106.53 | 8,188.45 - 296.56
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 2,496.55 124.97 13.73 0.44| 2,635.69 462.62| 1,841.08
1st April, 2022
Gross Carrying Amount 9,932.90 723.43 60.85 106.97 | 10,824.15| 462.62| 2,137.64
Additions 16.04 0.25 - 4.86 21.16 - 194.94
Disposals/Adjustments (183.66) (45.45) (2.73) (1.91)| (233.74) -1(2,137.64)
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 9,765.28 678.24 58.12 109.92 | 10,611.56 462.62 194.94
IAccumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 7,436.35 598.47 47.11 106.53| 8,188.44 - 296.56
Depreciation charged during the year 422.22 30.30 4.01 9.05 465.58 - 143.70
Disposals / Adjustment - - - (44.63) (44.63) (407.77)
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 7,858.57 628.76 51.13 70.95| 8,609.41 - 32.49
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 1,906.71 49.48 6.99 38.97| 2,002.15 462.62 162.45

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as Security

Refer to note 35 on Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-progress pledged as security by the Company.

(ii)Capital Commitments

Refer to note 27 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Capital work-in-Progress ageing Schedule for the year ended March 31,2022 & March 31, 2021

Capital Work-in-Progress

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than | 1-2 Year 2-3 Year | More than Total
1 Year 3Year
31st March 2022
Projects temporarily suspended - - 462.62 462.62
31st March 2021
Projects temporarily suspended - - 462.62 462.62

The Projects are under dispute, hence temporarily Suspended for Completion.
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Particulars

Computer Software *

1st April, 2020

Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 67.53
Additions -
Closing Gross Carrying amount 67.53
IAccumulated Amortisation

Opening Accumulated Amortisation 19.25
Amortisation charge for the year 0.96
Closing accumulated amortisation 20.21
Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2021 47.32
1st April, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 67.53
Additions -
Closing Gross Carrying amount 67.53
IAccumulated Amortisation

Opening Accumulated Amortisation 20.21
Amortisation charge for the year 0.17
Closing accumulated amortisation 20.38
Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2022 47.15

* Computer software consists of other than internally generated intangible assets.

Note 5: Non-current Investments

Engineering (SA) Proprietary Limited (Cost Rs. 0.13, fully impaired) - deregistered
w.e.f 30th June, 2017)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Investment in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up)
In Subsidiaries
Quoted (at cost)
66,68,698 (31st March, 2021 : 66,68,698)Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of McNally 11,640.03 11,640.03
Sayaji Engineering Limited*
Unquoted (at cost)
36,00,000 (31st March, 2021 : 36,00,000)Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of McNally 6,283.70 6,283.70
Sayaji Engineering Limited*
99,400 (31st March, 2021: 99,400) Equity Shares of McNally Bharat Equipments 9.94 9.94
Limited
6,49,459 (31st March, 2021 : 6,49,459) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of MBE Mineral 2,550.74 2,550.74
Technologies Pte Limited (Cost Rs. 2550.74 , fully impaired)
4,99,99,996 (31st March, 2021 : 4,99,99,996) Equity Shares of ZMK 1 each of MBE 4.69 4.69
Minerals Zambia Limited (Cost Rs. 4.69, fully impaired)
100 (31st March, 2021 : 100) Equity Shares of ZAR 1 each of McNally Bharat 0.13 0.13
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Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
In Joint Ventures
Unquoted (at cost)
87,500 (31st March, 2021 : 87,500) Equity Shares of EMC MBE Contracting Company 152.31 152.31
LLC (Cost Rs. 152.31, fully Impaired)
Equity Instruments carried at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Quoted
10,960 (31st March, 2021 : 10,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each of Eveready 36.71 29.59
Industries India Limited
10,960 (31st March, 2021: 10,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each of McLeod Russel 2.50 2.09
India Limited
Total (Equity Instruments) 20,680.76 20,673.23
Investment in Mutual Funds
Unquoted
3,62,970.078 (31st March, 2021 : 3,62,970.078 units of L&T Short Term Opportunities 78.62 89.02
Growth Fund (Refer Note 35)
Total (Mutual Funds) 78.62 89.02
Impairment in the value of Investments carried at cost
6,49,459 (31st March , 2021 : 6,49,459) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of MBE Mineral 2,550.74 2,550.74
Technologies Pte Limited
4,99,99,996 (31st March, 2021 : 4,99,99,996) Equity Shares of ZMK 1 each of MBE 4.69 4.69
Minerals Zambia Limited
100 (31st March, 2021 : 100) Equity Shares of ZAR 1 each of McNally Bharat 0.13 0.13
Engineering (SA) Proprietary Limited
87,500 (31st March, 2021 : 87,500) Equity Shares of EMC MBE Contracting Company 152.31 152.31
LLC
Total Impairment 2,707.87 2,707.87
Total Non-current Investments 18,051.51 18,054.37
IAggregate amount of market value of Quoted Investments * 11,679.25 11,671.72
)Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 6,372.26 6,382.65
IAggregate amount of impairment in the value of Investments 2,707.87 2,707.87

* McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL) was previously listed with Delhi Stock Exchange Limited (DSEL), Ahmedabad Stock
Exchange Limited (ASEL) and Vadodara Stock Exchange Limited (VSEL). VSEL and ASEL stock exchanges have undergone compulsory
/ voluntary exit as per relevant SEBI circulars /orders. Further, SEBI has passed order for derecognition of DSEL. With effect from
April 17, 2018 McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited has got enlisted with Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (MSE). Considering
the fact that MSEL was not traded at MSE during the year, the market value of the quoted investments includes the book value
of the investment in MSEL in absence of availability of market quote. Further, 36 Lakhs number of Equity Shares of MSEL has not
been listed in any of the Stock Exchanges as on the date of approval of these Standalone Financial Statements. Refer Note 35
on Investments pledged as security by the Company. McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited had pledged its investment
to the extent of 23,37,211 Equity Shares as security against the term loan facilities granted to McNally Sayaji Engineering Ltd.( A
subsidiary of MBECL ) from ICICI Bank Limited. During the year, ICICI Bank Limited has invoked pledge created over these shares
,and also transfer in favour of them, for a transfer value of Re. 1 adjusted towards the over dues of the Company. The Company
has objected the invocation of the said share pledge and undervalued transfer. Accordingly, the Company has not made any
adjustment to the carrying value of the Investment and also not adjusted in number of Shares as on 31st March , 2022.As per
D-Mat Statement 23,37,211 already transfer to ICICI Bank Limited.

The Company has executed a non-disposal undertaking and a first ranking pledge agreement in favour of a Preference Shareholder
i.e. Tata Capital Financial Services Limited, over 6,331,487 equity shares of McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited.
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Note 6(a) : Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Unsecured

[Trade receivables - Considered good 1,01,973.69 1,12,110.14
[Trade receivables - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
[Trade receivables - Credit impaired 23,505.19 24,563.74
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (Expected loss provission) (29,929.32) (31,453.59)
Total receivables 95,549.56 1,05,220.29
Current 95,549.56 1,05,220.29

Non-current

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
6 months | -1 vyear 3 years

Undisputed Receivables - Considered 22,199.82| 3,043.09| 1,279.28| 6,006.67|10,969.31| 15,073.36| 58,571.52
Good

Undisputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Receivables - Credit - - - - -| 23,505.19| 23,505.19
Impaired

Disputed Receivables - Considered 7,148.21 - - 97.49| 7,656.94| 28,499.52| 43,402.16
Good

Disputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - - -
Total Receivables 29,348.04| 3,043.09| 1,279.28| 6,104.16| 18,626.25| 67,078.07| 1,25,478.87
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade 29,929.32
receivables

Net Total Receivables 95,549.56
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
6 months | -1 vyear 3 years

Undisputed Receivables - Considered 23,166.51(11,333.83| 4,568.96| 11,325.84| 4,845.76| 13,466.59| 68,707.46
Good

Undisputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Receivables - Credit - - - - -| 24,563.74| 24,563.74
Impaired

Disputed Receivables - Considered | 7,148.21 25.68 7,727.66| 9,899.72| 18,601.40| 43,402.67
Good

Disputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - - -
Total Receivables 30,314.72|11,359.50| 4,568.96|19,053.49 | 14,745.48| 56,631.73| 1,36,673.87
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade 31,453.59
receivables

Net Total Receivables 1,05,220.29
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Note 6(b) : Cash and cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 2,404.26 2,719.42
- in cash credit accounts 6.48 0.04
Cash on hand 0.93 3.39
Deposits with mauturity of less three months 0.75 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,412.41 2,722.85
Other bank balances
Earmarked balances with banks - 51.20
Deposits with bank - 7.04
Total other bank balances - 58.24

(i) Earmarked balances with bank represent balances held for margin money against issue of bank guarantees and Letter of
Credit, having maturity of less than one year.

(ii) There are certain repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end ofthe reporting period .
(iii) Deposit with Sales tax Authority
*The above figure are subject to Balance Confirmation

Note 6(c) : Loans

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Unsecured
Loans to others - Considered good 1,744.38 1,744.38
Loans to subsidiaries - Credit impaired 1,425.12 1,425.12
Less: Allowance for doubtful loan receivables (1,425.12) (1,425.12)
Total Loans 1,744.38 1,744.38

Note 6(d) : Other financial assets

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Non-Current current Non-Current current

Security deposits* - 1,470.27 2.12 992.91
Deposit for Joint Venture - 4,149.09 702.18
IAdvance to Employees - 3.17 - 55.18
Due from customers (refer note 32) - 2,363.21 - 288.79
Earmarked balances with banks (Refer note (i) below) 14.58 - - -
Claim recoverable (Refer note 45) - 28,112.37 - 24,884.75
Total other financial assets 14.58 36,098.11 2.12 26,923.82

(i) Earmarked balances with bank represent balances held for margin money against issue of Letter of Credit of Rs 3.80 Lakhs
and Rs 10.78 Lakhs held with Local Authorites

It includes Rs 552 Lakhs Fixed deposit in the name of Delhi High Court as per direction ofcourt order against arbitration
case.
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Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Deferred Tax Assets on :
Tax losses 51,540.39 51,540.39
Difference in WDV of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets between 166.21 166.21
ithe Companies Act, 2013 and Income Tax Act, 1961
[Total deferred tax assets 51,706.60 51,706.60

The Company had recognised Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rs 51,706.60 Lakhs upto 31st March, 2018. The Company
believes that based on the infusion of fresh funds by the investors coming to the Company , there will be adequate future
taxable profits available to the Company against which the Deferred Tax Assets can be utilised. However, the Company has
not recognised further Deferred Tax Assets for the year ended 31st March, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 31st March, 2022 taking a
conservative approach. {Also refer note 22(a) to the Standalone Financial Statements}

Note 8: Other non-current assets

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Prepaid Rent - 1.83
Total other non-current assets - 1.83
Note 9: Inventories
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Raw materials 165.82 293.00
Total inventories 165.82 293.00
Note 10(a): Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance income tax 873.43 4,163.44
(net of provisions Rs 390.84 Lakhs, Previous Year Rs 390.84 Lakhs)
Total current tax assets (net) 873.43 4,163.44
Note 10(b): Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance to suppliers & others* 26,369.73 27,173.90
Advance to
- Subsidiaries 3,387.83 2,791.62
- Joint Venture - -
Balance with statutory/government authorities {Refer note(29c¢)} 15,603.35 17,671.61
Prepaid expenses 522.61 815.25
Total other current assets 45,883.52 48,452.37

* Balances shown are subjected to confirmation and reconciliation with respective parties.

*net of amounts written offin C.Y RsRs 119.72 Lakhs (PY Nil ).

** |t includes GST Input tax Credit Rs 130.14 Lakhs blocked by department during theyear .
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Note 11: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY
11(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Equity Shares COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (CCPS)

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

Authorised

As at 31st March, 2020 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00

As at 31st March, 2021 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00

As at 31st March, 2022 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

(i) Movements in Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2020 21,15,70,757 21,157.08

As at 31st March, 2021 21,15,70,757 21,157.08

As at 31st March, 2022 21,15,70,757 21,157.08 -

(i)

(ii)

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

Each Equity Share has a par value of Rs 10/-. It entitles the holder to participate in dividends, and to share upon liquidation
of the company in proportion to the number of shares held and amounts paid thereon.

Every holder of Equity Shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share
is entitled to one vote.

Terms and Rights attached to Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares(CCPS):
Each CCPS is compulsorily convertible into one Equity Share at any time within 18 months from the date of allotment.
CCPS shall have priority with respect to payment of dividend or repayment of capital over equity shares of the Company.

The holders of CCPS would not participate in the surplus assets and profits on winding up which may remain after the entire
capital has been repaid.

Each CCPS would carry a dividend of 1% which would be non cumulative
Shares of the company held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have a Holding Company.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Equity Shares in the Company:

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding

\Williamson Magor & Co Limited 2,23,18,952 10.55 2,53,18,952 11.97
\Williamson Financial Services Limited 1,92,14,753 9.08 1,92,14,753 9.08
Babcock Borsig Limited 1,36,64,636 6.46 1,36,64,636 6.46
Sahal Business Private Limited 1,74,47,637 8.25 1,74,47,637 8.25
IL&FS Financial Services Limited 1,61,29,000 7.62 1,61,29,000 7.62
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 1,12,90,000 5.34 1,12,90,000 5.34
DMI Finance Private Limited - - 1,09,87,762 5.19

iv)
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Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash for the period of five years immediately preceeding
the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

On 30th March, 2017, the Company had allotted 4,16,21,273 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) atRs.
66 (including Security Premium ofRs. 56) per share for Rs. 27,470.04 Lakhs to the shareholders and debenture holders of
Vedica Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited for consideration other than cash, with whom the Company had entered into
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an agreement on 17th February, 2017. Vide the same agreement entered into by the Company and Vedica Sanjeevani
Projects Private Limited on 17th February, 2017, the Company acquired 4,75,200 Equity Shares and 12,47,004 debentures
of Vedica Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited, as consideration for issuing CCPS to the latter. The CCPS so allotted have been
converted into the Equity Shares as per the terms.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year| As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 % Change
during the year
Promoter Name No. of Shares | % of Total | No. of Shares | % of Total
Shares Shares

WILLIAMSON MAGOR & CO LIMITED 2,23,18,952.00 10.55 25318952 11.97 1.42
WILLIAMSON FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 1,92,14,753.00 9.08 19214753 9.08 -
BABCOCK BORSIG LIMITED 1,36,64,636.00 6.46 13664636 6.46 -
EMC LIMITED 1,01,37,689.00 4.79 10137689 4.79 -
MCLEOD RUSSEL INDIA LIMITED 30,52,295.00 1.44 3052295 1.44 -
KILBURN ENGINEERING LIMITED 8,54,300.00 0.40 854300 0.40 -
BISHNAUTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 99,400.00 0.05 99400 0.05 -
ISHA KHAITAN 24,000.00 0.01 24000 0.01 -
AMRITANSHU KHAITAN 8,000.00 0.00 8000 0.00 -
LATE B M KHAITAN* 21.00 0.00 21 0.00 -
Total 6,93,74,046 7,23,74,046

* He was demised on 1st june 2019but company has not received transmission request yet.

Note 11(b) Other Equity

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Securities Premium 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05
Capital Redemption Reserve 101.00 101.00
General Reserve 1,549.64 1,549.64
Retained Earnings (2,09,113.76) (2,13,448.95)
Other Reserves 83,804.25 85,148.69
Total Other Equity (22,796.45) (13,776.18)
(i) Securities Premium

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

As per last Financial Statement 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05
Closing balance 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05

Nature and purpose:

Securities Premium has arisen on issue of Shares. The Reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(ii) Capital Redemption Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 101.00 101.00
Closing balance 101.00 101.00
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Capital Redemption Reserve is a non distributable reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Act, 2013.

(iii) General Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 1,549.64 1,549.64
Closing balance 1,549.64 1,549.64

Nature and purpose:

The reserve is a part of Retained Earnings. This is available for distribution to the shareholders as a part of free reserve.

(iv) Retained Earnings

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
iAs per last Financial Statement (2,13,448.95) (2,08,463.12)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (7714.23) (5,003.58)
Items of OCI directly transferred to retained earnings 42.79 17.75

Closing balance

(2,21,120.39)

(2,13,448.95)

Nature and purpose:

This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the company. This reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions

of the Act.

(v) Other Reserves

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 85,148.69 86,370.90
Reversal of Fair value gain on Financial Liabilities (refer note 41) (1,344.43) (1,222.21)
Closing balance 83,804.25 85,148.69

Nature and purpose:

This reserve represents fair valuation gain on valuation of long term borrowings at amortised cost. The reserve will be utilised
through unwinding of interest expense to be directly recognised over the period of borrowings. (Refer Note 44).
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Note 12: Financial Liabilities
(a) Non-current borrowings

Particulars Coupon/ Interest rate As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Secured
Term Loans
Foreign Currency Loan - From banks (refer note B below) 6 Months LIBOR +4.15% 502.04 487.39
From others - -
9,75,000, 11.50% Non-Convertible Redeemable Cummulative 11.50% 5451.43 5,451.43
Preference Shares {refer note A below & Note 29(c)}
Unsecured
Inter-Corporate Borrowings (refer note 41 & C below) 0% 14,788.69 13,444.26
Total non-current borrowings 20,742.16 19,383.08
Less: Current maturities of Non Current Borrowings (included in note 502.04 487.39
12(d))
Less: Liability for Redeemable Preference Share (included in note 12(d)) 5,451.43 5,451.43
Less: Interest accrued (included in note 12(c)) - -
Non-current borrowings 14,788.69 13,444.26

A. 11.50% Non-Convertible Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares

(i) Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares were redeemable in 8 equal quarterly installments commencing from 5th
June, 2018 and the last installment payable was on 5th March, 2020 which has been on default as on the date of approval of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company had executed a non-disposal undertaking and a first ranking pledge agreement in favour of a Preference
Shareholder i.e. Tata Capital Financial Services Limited, over 6,331,487 equity shares of McNally Sayaji Engineering Company
Limited to ensure a security cover of an amount equivalent to Rs. 6,682 Lakhs.[Also refer note 29(b)].

B. External Commercial Borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited
(ii) Terms of repayment:

Loan having a balance outstanding of USD 6.60 lakhs,the last instalment was due on 23rd December, 2018 which is in default as
till the date of approval of these Standalone Financial Statements.

(iii)Security details

Refer Note 35 for details of assets charged as security against these borrowings.

Details of loan Nature of Security
External Commercial Borrowings from | First Charge by way of hypothecation on movable assets / equipments both present and future with
ICICI Bank Limited minimum asset cover of 1.25 times on outstanding ECB facility.

The amount of interest expense not provided in the books of account on External Commercial Borrowing from ICICI Bank
Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is Rs.80.32 Lakhs and 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 77.98 Lakhs.(Also refer to Note 46 to
the Standalone Financial Statements).

C. Inter-Corporate Borrowings

The amount of interest expense not provided in the books of account on the above Inter-Corporate Borrowings in Note 12(a)
forthe financial year ended31st March, 2019 is Rs.9216.88 Lakhs. The same still remains unprovided. (Also refer to Note 46 to
the Standalone Financial Statements).
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Details of default during the year in respect of Non-current Borrowings {including current maturities of long term debts
shown under Note No.12(c) are as under:

Name of the Shareholder/Lender Amount of Default Remarks
Various Preference Shareholders 5,899.93 Amount of default persisting as on the date of
ICICI Bank (Secured Long term borrowing (ECB)) 502.04 approval of these Standalone Financial Statements

The Company has been under CIRP and the lenders have lodged claim to Interim Resolution Professional as more described in
Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

12(b) Current borrowings

Particulars Coupon/ Interest rate As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
From banks
Cash credit from banks 12.05% to 18.75% 1,84,665.46 1,82,967.97
Working capital demand loans from banks 12.5% to 13.50% 16,076.30 16,076.30
Unsecured
Deposit (Inter Corporate) - From others 15% to 18% 1,905.00 1,735.00
Total current borrowings 2,02,646.75 2,00,779.27
Less: Interest accrued (included in note 12(c)) - -
Current borrowings 2,02,646.75 2,00,779.27
(i) Details of loans Nature of Security
Cash credit facility from consortium of banks A first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of the current assets

and Working capital demand loans from banks | viz., stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods, finished goods, stores
and spares, bills Receivables including Receivables from hire purchase/
leasing, book debts and other movable assets, both present and future.
A first pari passu charge in favour of the said Banks by way of third party
charge on the movable and fixed assets of the Kumardhubi Division owned
by McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited, (a Subsidiary Company).
A Corporate Guarantee from McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited
in favour of the BOI Consortium equivalent to the value of the property
mortgaged by McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited. Charge on
fixed assets on subservient basis except ICICI to the extent of term loan.
The Working Capital Demand Loans have been guaranteed by one of the
directors to the tune of Rs. 10,000 Lakhs. Equity Shares of MBE Coal &
Mineral Technologies India Private Limited held by the subsidiary Company,
McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited are pledged for Working Capital
Demand Loans.
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Name of the lender Amount of Remarks
Default
Principle
Indian Bank (Formerly know as Allahabad Bank) - Cash Credit 8,471.50
Axis Bank Limited - Cash Credit 20,449.79
Bank of Baroda - Cash Credit 4,165.21
Bank of India - Cash Credit 44,844.87
Canara Bank - Cash Credit 2,385.85
DCB Bank- Cash Credit 292.11
ICICI Bank - Cash Credit 18,405.66
IDBI Bank - Cash Credit 17,262.94
Karur Vysya Bank - Cash Credit 8,596.24
Lakshmi Vilas Bank - Cash Credit 96.06
Punjab National Bank (Forme.rly know Oriental Bank of 1,077.08 Amount of default persisting as on the
Commerce Bank) - Cash Credit date of a | of th Standal
Punjab National Bank - Cash Credit 14,966.19 pproval of these Standalone
Standard Chartered Bank- Cash Credit 2,571.24 Financial Statements
State Bank Of India - Cash Credit 25,468.29
UCO Bank - Cash Credit 485.69
Union Bank - Cash Credit 15,073.17
Punjab National Bank (Formerly know United Bank of India) - 53.54
Cash Credit
Cash Credit Total Default 1,84,665.46
Axis Bank Limited - Working Capital Demand Loan 12,660.40
Standard Chartered Bank- Working Capital Demand Loan 3,415.90
Working Capital Demand Loan Total Default 16076.30
Inter-Corporate Borrowings Total Default 1905.00

The amount of interest expense not provided on Current Bank Borrowings and Inter-Corporate Borrowings for the year ended
31st March 2022 is Rs.32,117.65 Lakhs and Rs. 262.00 Lakhs and ( 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 31,546.61 Lakhs and Rs. 190.80 Lakhs)

respectively.

12(c) Lease Obligation

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Lease Obligation 88.88 87.60 2,270.27
88.88 87.60 2,270.27 -
12(d) Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Current
Current maturities of long-term debt 502.04 487.39
Creditors for Preference share 5,451.43 5,451.43
Interest accrued on borrowings and others 4,476.15 4,476.15
Employee Benefits payable 925.03 1,170.19
Security deposits 90.29 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 448.50
Others 89.14 234.03
Total other current financial liabilities 11,982.58 12,357.98
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12(e) Trade payables
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Trade payables due to micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer note 30) 193.96 195.64
[Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21,551.40 22,387.35
Total Trade Payables 21,745.36 22,582.99

Trade payables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2022

Particulars A Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Lessthan1l | 1-2years 2-3years |More than3 Total
year years
MSME - 43.56 10.62 16.25 85.49 155.92
Others - 4,819.64 2,086.82 2,728.28| 11,440.38| 21,075.12
Disputed Dues - MSME - 10.82 7.45 4.08 15.69 38.04
Disputed Dues - Others - - 5.73 8.23 462.32 476.28

Trade payables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars A Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due |Lessthanl | 1-2years 2-3years |More than3 Total

year years

MSME - 54.22 18.48 67.50 17.40 157.60
Others - 7,304.74 3,211.20 4,583.85 6,811.29| 21,911.08
Disputed Dues - MSME - 18.27 4.08 - 15.69 38.04
Disputed Dues - Others - 5.73 8.23 - 462.32 476.28
Note 13: Provisions
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Employee benefits
- Gratuity 3.04 24.98 28.02 5.62 64.77 70.39
- Others 0.61 178.37 178.97 11.92 168.65 180.57
Decommissioning obligations 75.30 - 75.30 75.30 - 75.30
Total provisions 78.95 203.34 282.30 92.84 233.42 326.26

(i) Movements in provisions

Movements in provision during the financial year, are set out below:

Particulars Decommissioning obligations
As at April 01, 2021 75.30
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss

- unwinding of discount -
)As at March 31, 2022 75.30
As at April 01, 2020 75.30
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss -
- unwinding of discount -
)As at March 31, 2021 75.30
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At Present there is no accumulation of leave which is encashable in future year.

(iii) Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination
is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number
of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The
company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based

on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:

Present value Fair value of Net amount

of obligation plan assets
April 1, 2020 393.92 352.80 41.12
Current service cost 36.54 - 36.54
Interest expense/income 27.58 21.99 5.59
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 64.12 21.99 42.13
Remeasurements -
- Return on plan assets - (3.10) 3.10
- Due to financial assumptions 3.39 - 3.39
- Due to experience adjustments 33.05 - 33.05
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 36.44 (3.10) 39.54
Employer contributions - 52.39 (52.39)
Benefit payments (129.76) (129.76) -
March 31, 2021 364.72 294.32 70.39

Present value Fair value of Net amount

of obligation plan assets
April 1, 2021 364.72 294.32 70.40
Current service cost 32.34 - 32.34
Interest expense/(income) 25.17 20.10 5.07
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 57.51 20.10 37.41
Remeasurements -
- Return on plan assets - (5.53) 5.53
- Due to financial assumptions (3.39) - (3.39)
- Due to experience adjustments (44.93) - (44.93)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (48.32) (5.53) (42.79)
Employer contributions - 36.99 (36.99)
Benefit payments (43.11) (43.10) (0.01)
March 31, 2022 330.80 302.78 28.02

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan.
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The significant actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate 7.10% 6.90%
Salary escalation 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.10% 6.90%
Withdrawal rate 1.00-8.00% 1.00-8.00%

The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Assumption Increase/ Assumption Rate Amount of increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in defined
benefit obligations as at
March 31, 2022
Under Base Scenario - - 330.80
Discount rate Increase by 1% 309.74
Discount rate Decrease by 1% 354.54
Salary escalation Increase by 1% 355.54
Salary escalation Decrease by 1% 308.60
Withdrawal rate Increase by 1% 335.21
Withdrawal rate Decrease by 1% 325.90

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bonds. If the plan assets underperform
this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan asset investments is with the Life Insurance Corporation of India which administers
the fund. The investments are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and reduce plan deficit.

The maturity profile of gratuity liability is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

2021-22 NA 29.10
2022-23 35.93 26.01
2023-24 23.08 25.92
2024-25 31.67 37.94
2025-26 34.85 21.03
Thereafter 225.33 2,316.00

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.57 years (March 31, 2021 - 6.34 years). The expected
contribution to the fund during the financial year 2022-23 would be Rs. 38.31 Lakhs.

(iv) Provident fund

The company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust's investments compared to the administered
interest rates on an annual basis. These administered rates are determined annually predominantly considering the social
rather than economic factors and in most cases, the actual return earned by the company has been higher in the past years. The
actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by the Actuarial Society of India
and based on the assumptions provided below, there is no shortfall as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
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In accordance with actuarial valuation done for interest rate guarantee, the fund has sufficient assets against the defined

benefit liability and hence no further liability arises for interest rate guarantee.
The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities.

Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest rate guarantee under the Deterministic approach:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate 7.15% 6.90%
Guaranteed interest rate 8.10% 8.50%
Expected average remaining Working life (in years) 10.99 11.95

The company contributed Rs. 136.62 Lacs And Rs. 193.72 Lacs during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
respectively, and the same has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head employee benefit expenses.\

Risks arising from defined benefit obligations

The defined benefit obligation planstypically expose the Company to actuarial risks i.e. investment risk, interest risk, longevity
risk and salary risk.

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk: A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan assets.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk: The present value of defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As
such, an increasein the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Note 14: Other Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

31st March , 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance from customers 4,350.68 4,476.77
Statutory tax payables 636.02 506.51
Dividend Distribution Tax on preference dividend 91.76 91.76
Benevolent fund 113.04 113.04
Total other liabilities 5,191.51 5,188.08

Note 15: Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Contract Revenue & Sale of Equipments 24,729.89 33,138.65
Other Operating Revenue 540.85 139.68
Total Revenue from Operations 25,270.74 33,278.33
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Note 16: Other Income
(a) Other Income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interest income 392.42 215.80
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost 3,420.82 2,114.77
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 12.50 -
Dividend income from investments mandatorily measured at fair value through - -
profit and loss
Interest Income on fair valuation of revenue - 0.00
Net foreign exchange gain - 37.03
Expected credit loss/gain on trade receivables and due from customers written 1,689.45 -
back
Corporate Guarantee Commission 147.35 147.35
Liability no longer required written back - 41.05
Lease liability written back 545.28 -
Profit on sale of Property,Plant and Equipment 80.99 -
Miscellaneous Income - 5.32
Total other income 6,288.80 2,561.32
(b) Other gains/(losses)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets (investments) measured at fair value through (2.87) 27.82
profit or loss
Total Other Gains/(losses) (2.87) 27.82
Total Other income and other gain / (losses) 6,285.94 2,589.15
Note 17: Cost of materials consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 293.00 526.61
IAdd: Purchases 418.24 2,268.68
Less: Raw material at the end of the year (165.82) (293.00)
Total cost of raw materials consumed 545.42 2,502.28
IAdd: Consumption of bought out components 11,461.21 11,106.44
Total cost of materials consumed 12,006.63 13,608.72
Note 18: Employee benefit expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,102.74 4,136.41
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 13) 178.85 224.97
Workmen and staff welfare expenses 125.70 198.62
Total Employee Benefit Expense 4,407.30 4,559.99
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit 382.23 937.55
or loss
Discounting on fair valuation of financial instruments on amortised cost 4,267.64 3,007.70
Unwinding of discount on provisions 10.66 282.37
Total 4,660.53 4,227.62
Note 20: Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 609.28 672.94
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.17 0.96
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 609.45 673.90
Note 21: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Power & Fuel 309.79 455.57
Rent 226.39 251.69
Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings - 0.09
Plant and machinery 0.57 1.23
Insurance 121.77 235.42
Payment to Auditors [Refer Note 21(a)] 48.70 52.48
Director Fees 8.60 8.60
Rates & Taxes 94.66 15.81
\VAT/ CST Receivables written off 2,174.90 -
Cartage & Freight 86.99 105.64
Bank Charges 1,198.00 1,738.90
Professional Services 1,333.81 1,321.97
Travelling 304.60 347.07
Duty drawback Claim written off 30.22 -
Advances to supplier written off 119.72 -
Provision for Future Foreseeable Losses in Construction Contracts (1,199.11) (757.51)
Provision for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables and due from customers - 634.93
Net foreign exchange loss 100.81 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 806.70 1,108.28
Total other expenses 5,767.10 5,520.17
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Note 21(a) : Details of payments to auditors
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2022

Payment to auditors

Audit fee 47.00 47.80

For other services 1.70 4.30

Re-imbursement of expenses - 0.38

Total payments to auditors 48.70 52.48

Note 22: Income tax expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year - -
Excess provision of earlier years written back - -
Total current tax expense - -
Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets - -
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities - -

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) - -
Total - -

The effective tax rate and the applicable tax rates for recognition of deferred tax income is same. The applicable tax rate is based
on the enacted tax rates.

Note 23: Capital Management
Capital Management

The Company strives to manage its capital efficiently with a view to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
bring returns to its shareholders and stakeholders. The capital structure of the company is based on management's judgement
of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day to day needs. The amount of capital in
proportion to risk is considered for capital structure management in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future developments and growth of its
business. For the purpose of company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The
Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirments
ofthe financial covenants. However, in view of certain adverse factors and challenges faced by the Company over past few years
as explained in Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements, Networth of the Company has been fully errored. The Board
of Directors expect that overall financial health of the Company would improve upon submission of resolutaion plan by the
committee of Creditors.

Loan Covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with various financial covenants. The
Company has been under financial stress due to external factors of the Company. EBITDA margins of the Company have not
been sufficient to service interest/principal repayment even after infusion of funds by the promoters from time to time during
the earlier years. The Company has not been able to complywith some of the covenants during the current as well as the
previous years. The Company has persisting default in repayment of entire loans or borrowings to Banks and others lenders as
on 31st March, 2022 as disclosed in Note 12(a) and 12(b) to the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Note 24: Risk Management
The Company's activities is exposedto credit risk,liquidity risk and market risk.

The Company's risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Company's operating units.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment of excess liquidity.

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from Cash and Cash Equivalents, other bank balances, investments and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding
receivables and due from customers.

(i) Credit Risk Management

The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on assumptions, inputs and factors
specific to the class of financial assets.

VL1: High-quality assets, negligible credit risk
VL2: Quality assets, low credit risk

VL3: Standard assets, moderate credit risk

VL4: Substandard assets, relatively high credit risk
VL5: Low quality assets, very high credit risk

VL6: Doubtful assets, credit impaired

Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the
internal rating model. Financial Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company or where payer/borrower does not have financial capability to repay its
debts. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activities to attempt
to recover the receivable dues.

(ii) Provision for Expected Credit Losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss of trade receivables, due from customers and other financial assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual
credit loss experience and past trends. Whenever required, past trend is adjusted to reflect the effects of the current conditions
and forecasts of future conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical data is based, and to remove the effects
of the conditions in the historical period that are not relevant to the future contractual cash flows.
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(a) Expected Credit Loss for Loans, Investments, Expenses Recoverables and Other Financial Assets

Particulars Assetgroup Internal | Estimated | Expected Expected Carrying
credit gross probability Credit amount
rating carrying of Losses net of

amount at default impairment
default provision

Loss allowance Financial Assets for which Loans VL3 1,744.38 1,744.38

measured at 12 month | credit risk has not increased | Expenses VL3 31,533.19 3,420.82| 28,112.37

Expected Credit Losses | significantly since initial Recoverable

recognition Security deposits VL2 1,473.44 1,473.44
and advance to
employees

Loss allowance Financial Assets for which Loans VL6 1,425.12 100% 1,425.12 -

measured at life-time credit risk has increased

Expected Credit Losses | significantly and credit-

impaired

During the year, the Company has made provision for expenses recoverable wherein it does not expect to receive future cash

flows Rs. 3420.82 Lakhs.

(b) Expected Credit Loss for Trade Receivables and due from Customers under simplified approach

Particulars Internal Due from Trade
credit rating | customer | Receivables

Gross Carrying Amount VL3 2,363.21 1,25,478.88

Expected Credit Losses (Loss Loss allowance measured at life-time - 29,929.32

allowance provision) Expected Credit Losses

Carrying amount (net of Impairment) 2,363.21 95,549.56

During the year, the Company has not made provision for bad and doubtful debts for trade receivables Current year Nil (Rs.

634.92 Lakhs)

Year ended 31st March, 2021

(a) Expected Credit Loss for Loans, Investments, Expenses Recoverables and Other Financial Assets

Particulars Assetgroup | Internal | Estimated | Expected | Expected | Carrying
credit gross probability | credit |amount net
rating carrying of losses of

amount at | default impairment
default provision
Loss allowance Financial assets for Loans VL3 1,744.38 - - 1,744.38
measured at 12 month which credit risk Claims VL3 27,892.45 -| 3,007.70 24,884.75
Expected Credit Losses | has not increased Recoverable
significantly since Security VL2 1,050.21 - - 1,050.21
initial recognition deposits and
advance to
employees
Loss allowance Financial assets for Loans VL6 1,425.12 100%| 1,425.12 -
measured at life-time which credit risk has
Expected Credit Losses |increased significantly
and credit-impaired

During the finanical year 2020-21, the Company has made provision for claim recoverable wherein it does not expect to receive
future cash flows Rs. 3,007.70 Lakhs.
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(b) Expected Credit Loss for Trade Receivables and due from Customers under simplified approach

Particulars Internal Due from Trade
credit rating | customer | Receivables

Gross Carrying Amount 288.79 1,36,673.88

Expected Credit Losses Loss allowance measured at life-time - 31,453.59

(Loss Allowance Provision) expected credit losses Vi3

Carrying Amount (net of Impairment) 288.79| 1,05,220.29

During the year ended 31st March, 2021 , the Company has made provision for bad and doubtful debts for trade receivables
wherein it does not expect to receive future cash flows Rs.634.92 Lakhs ( Rs. 19,804.68 Lakhs for the year ended 31.03.2020)

(iii) Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provisions - loans

Loss Allowance

measured at 12

month expected
losses

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Financial assets for which credit | Financial assets for which credit
risk has increased significantly risk has increased significantly

and not credit-impaired and credit-impaired

2022

Loss Allowance as at 31st March, - - 1,425.12
2021

Add/(Less): Changes in Loss - - -
Allowances

Loss Allowance as at 31st March, - - 1,425.12

(iv) Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision - Trade Receivables & due from Customers (under simplified approach)

Particulars Trade Due from Total loss

Receivables customers allowance
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2020 28,684.97 28,684.97
Changes in Loss Allowance 2,768.62 2,768.62
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2021 31,453.59 31,453.59
Changes in Loss Allowance (1,524.27) (1,524.27)
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2022 29,929.32 29,929.32

Significant Estimates and Judgements
Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Company's past history, industry practices, existing market conditions and business environment as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close net market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising
the undrawn borrowing facilities as below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.In addition, the
Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid
assets necessary to meet these, monitoring Balance Sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements
and maintaining debt financing plans.
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The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual

maturities for:
- all non-derivative financial liabilities, and

- net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding

of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual cash flows, balances due within 12 months and more than 12 months.

Liabilities

Contractual maturities of Financial Less than 12 months to More than Total
Liabilities (31st March, 2022) 12 months 24 months 24 months

Non Derivatives

Borrowings* 2,08,600.22 - 14,788.69 2,23,388.91
Interest Accrued 4,476.15 - - 4,476.15
Trade Payables 21,745.36 - - 21,745.36
Employee Benefits payable 925.03 - - 925.03
Lease Liability 87.60 87.60 1.28 176.48
Security Deposits 90.29 - - 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 - - 448.50
Others 89.14 - - 89.14
Total Non Derivative Financial 2,36,462.29 87.60 14,789.97 2,51,339.86

*excludes the amount of fair value gain re

cognised, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities Rs.83,804.25 Lakhs

Contractual maturities of Financial Less than 12 months to More than Total
Liabilities (31st March, 2021) 12 months 24 months 24 months

Non Derivatives

Borrowings* 2,06,568.09 - 13,444.26 2,20,012.35
Interest Accrued 4,476.15 - - 4,476.15
Trade Payables 22,582.99 - - 22,582.99
Employee Benefits payable 1,170.19 - - 1,170.19
Lease Liability - - 2,270.27 2,270.27
Security Deposits 90.29 - - 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 - - 448.50
Others 384.03 - - 384.03
Total Non Derivative Financial Liabilities 2,35,720.24 - 15,714.53 2,51,434.77

*excludes the amount of fair value gain recognised, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities Rs. 85,148.69 Lakhs

(C) Market Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily with respect to the
USD and EUR. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the
Company's functional currency (Rupees ). The risk is measured through the expected foreign currency cash flows based on the
Company's receipt and repayment schedule for recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than "Rupees"
. The objective of the hedging is to minimize the volatility of the & cash flows of such recognised assets and liabilities.
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(a)Foreign Currency Risk Exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. Lakhs is as follow:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

uUsD EUR ZAR usbD EUR ZAR
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 1,944.79 - - 2,058.12 -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk - 1,944.79 - - 2,058.12 -
(Assets)
Financial Liabilities
Foreign Currency Loan 502.04 - - 487.39 - -
Trade Payables 73.26 1,123.25 3.92 131.83 1,143.02 3.53
Advance from Customers - 1,455.72 - - 1,937.61 -
Payable to Subsidiaries - - - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk 575.30 2,578.97 3.92 619.22 3,080.64 3.53
(Liabilities)

At the end of the reporting period the total notional amount of outstanding foreign currency forward contracts that the
Company has committed to is NIL lakhs (31st March, 2021 USD NIL Lakhs).

(b)Sensitivity:
Particulars Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
USD sensitivity
INR/USD -Increase by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* 28.76 30.96
INR/USD -Decrease by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* (28.76) (30.96)
EUR sensitivity
INR/EUR-Increase by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* 31.71 51.13
INR/EUR-Decrease by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* (31.71) (51.13)
ZAR sensitivity
INR/ZAR-Increase by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* 0.20 0.18
INR/ZAR- Decrease by 5% (31 March 2020-5%)* (0.20) (0.18)

* Holding all other variables constant
(ii) Cash flow andfair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from Current Borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk. During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company's borrowings at variable rate
were mainly denominated in INR.

The Company's Borrowings are carried at amortised cost. The fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as
defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market

interest rates.

(a)Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at end of reporting period are as follow:

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Variable Rate Borrowings 2,01,243.79 1,99,381.65
Fixed Rate Borrowings* 22,145.12 20,630.69
Total borrowings 2,23,388.91 2,20,012.34
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The Company has not entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against fluctuating market interest rates.

* Including interest free ICDs of Rs.14,788.67 (31st March, 2021 Rs. 13,444.26 lakhs) arising due to conversion of amount

received from certain companies into long term borrowings.

*Excluding the amount of fair value gain recognised, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities Rs. 83,804.25 Lakhs (31st

March, 2021, Rs. 85,148.70 Lakhs).
(b)Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars

Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interest rates increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) * (3.54) (3.54)
Interest rates decrease by 50 basispoints (50 bps) * 3.54 3.54

* Holding all other variables constant

However, the Company has not recognised interest expense during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. (Refer Note 46)

Note 25: Fair Value Measurements

The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at 31st

March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021.

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Cost Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
- Equity Instruments* 39.22 - - 31.69 - -
- Mutual Funds 78.62 - - 89.02 - -
Trade Receivables - - 95,549.56 - -1 1,05,220.29
Loans - - 1,744.38 - - 1,744.38
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 2,412.41 - - 2,722.85
Other Bank balances - - - - - 58.24
Advance to employees 3.17 55.18
Security Deposits - - 5,619.37 - - 1,697.21
Due from Customers - - 2,363.21 - - 288.79
Deposit with Bank - - 14.58 -
Claims Recoverable - - 28,112.37 - - 24,884.75
Total Financial Assets 117.84 -1 1,35,819.05 120.70 -1 1,36,671.68
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings** - -1 2,23,388.91 - -1 2,20,162.34
Interest Accrued - - 4,476.15 - - 4,476.15
Trade Payables - -1 21,745.36 - -1 22,582.99
Employee Benefits payable - - 925.03 - - 1,170.19
Lease Liability - - 176.48 - - 2,270.27
Security Deposits - - 90.29 - - 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares - - 448.50 - - 448.50
Others - - 89.14 - - 234.03
Total Financial Liabilities - -1 2,51,339.86 - -| 2,51,434.77
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*excludes the amount of carrying value in subsidiaries at cost lessimpairment Rs. 20,641.55 Lakhs(31st March, 2021: 20,641.55
Lakhs)

**excludes the amount of fair value gain recognised under other reserves on Financial Liabilities Rs.83,804.25 Lakhs(31st
March, 2021: 85,148.70 Lakhs)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the Financial Instruments. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its Financial

Instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fair value measurements

As at 31st March, 2022
Financial Assets

Financial instruments at FVPL
Listed Equity Investments 39.22 - - 39.22
Mutual Funds - 78.62 - 78.62
Total Financial Assets 39.22 78.62 - 117.84
Financial Liabilities

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contract - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - - -

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fair value measurements

As at 31st March, 2021
Financial Assets

Financial Instruments at FVTPL
Listed Equity Investments 31.69 - - 31.69
Mutual Funds - 89.02 - 89.02
Total Financial Assets 31.69 89.02 - 120.70

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using market approach and
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
Derivatives are valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs such as foreign exchange spot rates and
forward rates at the end of the reporting period, yield curves, risk free rate of returns, volatility etc., as applicable.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparty.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is considered to be equal
to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are non-current in nature, the
same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis. Similarly, unquoted equity
instruments where most recent information to measure fair value is insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements, cost has been considered as the best estimate of fair value."

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine Fair Value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
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- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date

(iii) Fair value of the Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Carrying Amount | Fair Value | Carrying Amount | Fair Value
Financial Assets
Security Deposits 5,619.37 5,619.37 1,697.21 1,697.21
Due from Customers 2,363.21 2,363.21 288.79 288.79
Trade Receivables 95,549.56 95,549.56 1,05,220.29| 1,05,220.29
Expenses Recoverable 28,112.37 28,112.37 24,884.75 24,884.75
Loans 1,744.38 1,744.38 1,744.38 1,744.38
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,412.41 2,412.41 2,722.85 2,722.85
Other Bank balances - - 58.24 58.24
Advance to Employees 3.17 3.17 55.18 55.18
Total Financial Assets 1,35,804.48| 1,35,804.48 1,36,671.68 | 1,36,671.68
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 2,23,388.91| 2,23,388.91 2,20,162.34| 2,20,162.34
Interest Accrued 4,476.15 4,476.15 4,476.15 4,476.15
Trade Payables 21,745.36| 21,745.36 22,582.99| 22,582.99
Employee Benefits payable 925.03 925.03 1,170.19 1,170.19
Lease Liability 176.48 176.48 2,270.27 2,270.27
Security Deposits 90.29 90.29 90.29 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 448.50 448.50 448.50
Others 89.14 89.14 234.03 234.03
Total Financial Liabilities 2,51,339.86 | 2,51,339.85 2,51,434.77 | 2,51,434.77

Trade Receivables, advances to suppliers and expenses recoverable are subject to confirmation,reconciliation and settlement
of certain disputes from respective parties and consequential reconciliation and adjustments arising therefrom, if any. The
management, however, does not expect any material variation. Management is also hopeful for recovery/realisation of these
assets in the normal course of business. Hence, in view of the management, short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated

at carrying value which is equal to their fair value.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified
as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities are at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost.
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As required by Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures are given below:

(a) Subsidiaries

(i)  McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL)

iii) MBE Mineral Technologies Pte Limited
iv) MBE Minerals Zambia Limited

ii)  McNally Bharat Equipments Limited (MBEL)

v)  McNally Bharat Engineering (SA) Proprietary Limited

(b) Joint Venture (MBECL is Lead Partner for participating in tenders)

(i)  EMC MBE Contracting Company LLC
(ii)  McNally- Trolex

(iii)  McNally- AML

(iv)  McNally- Trolex- Kilburn

(d) Subsidiary of McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited

(i)  MBE Coal & Minerals Technology India Private Limited
(e) Post employment benefit plan of the Company

(i)  McNally Bharat Executive Staff Gratuity Fund

(ii)  McNally Bharat Employees Provident Fund

(f) Key Managerial Personnel
(i)  Mr. Aditya Khaitan - Chairman
ii)  Mr. Srinivash Singh - Managing Director

vii) Mr. A.K Barman - Independent Director
Mr. Nilotpal Roy- Independent Director

iii)  Mr. Brij Mohan Soni - Chief Financial Officer
iv)  Mr. Rahul Banerjee- Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f 22-10-2021)
v)  Mrs Indrani Roy- Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f 7-12-2021)

vi) Ms. Arundhati Dhar - Independent Director

ix) Ms. Kasturi Roychoudhury - Independent Director

The following transactions were carried out with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business:

Description MBE Coal & McNally McNally- McNally- McNally-
Mineral Sayaji Trolex AML Trolex-
Technology India | Engineering Kilburn
Private Limited Limited

Purchase of Materials , components and 95.12 65.00 - - -
Services received (297.34) (450.28) - - -
Sale of Goods/fixed assets - 1.00 2,532.99 2,689.48 2,232.38
- (896.53) - (529.88) -
Rendering of services 3.76 - - -
(150.85) (308.19) - - -
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid - 17.97 - - -
(9.17) (31.31) (0.13) (0.13) (0.13)
Reimbursement of Expenses Received - - 0.54 - -
- (2.02) - - -
Rent received - 30.00 - 1.70 1.70
- (21.81) (0.82) (0.54) (0.82)
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Description MBE Coal & McNally McNally- McNally- McNally-
Mineral Sayaji Trolex AML Trolex-
Technology India | Engineering Kilburn
Private Limited Limited
Rent paid - 48.00 - -
- (48.00) - -
Brackets indicate figures for previous year
Balances Outstanding as at 31st March
Description MBE Coal & MBE Mineral | McNally Sayaji McNally MBE Minerals | McNally Bharat
Mineral Technologies | Engineering Bharat Zambia Engg. (S.A.)
Technology India Pte Ltd. Limited Equipments Limited Proprietary Ltd.
Pvt.Ltd Limited
Investment at the year end - 2,550.74 17,923.73 9.94 4.69 0.13
- (2,550.74) (17,923.73) (9.94) (4.69) (0.13)
Investment at the year end - 2,550.74 - - 4.69 0.13
- (2,550.74) - - (4.69) (0.13)
Provision for impairment in value - - 5,950.00 - - -
of investments - - (5,950.00) - - -
Guarantees received 3,000.00 - 5,000.00 - - -
(2,850.00) - (5,000.00) - - -
Guarantees given - - 204.42 - - 3.92
(120.86) - - - - (3.53)
Outstanding payables 298.68 - 3,289.69 2.05 1,385.04 40.08
(396.32) - (3,125.69) (2.05) (1,385.04) (40.08)
Outstanding Receivables/Loans - - - - 1,385.04 40.08
- - - - (1,385.04) (40.08)
Allowance for doubtful receivables | |
Balances Outstanding of Joint Ventures
Description EMC MBE McNally- Trolex McNally- AML McNally- Trolex-
Contracting Co LLC Kilburn
Investment at the year end 152.31 - - -
(152.31) - - -
Provision for impairment in value of 152.31 - - -
investments
(152.31) - - -
Outstanding Receivables/Loans 67.06 0.40 2.37 2.65
(67.06) - 625.66 -
Allowance for doubtful receivables 67.06 - - -
(67.06) - - -
Security Deposit/Rent Receivables - 625.97 2,749.16 773.96
- 200.82 300.54 200.82

Brackets indicate figures for previous year
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Transactions with Key Managerial 2021-22 2020-21
Personnel Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding | Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding
fees Balance fees Balance
payable as at payable as at
year end year end
Mr. Srinivash Singh 201.84 - 11.75 182.60 - 11.87
Mr. Brij Mohan Soni 64.17 - 3.93 39.67 - 5.26
Mr. Manoj Kumar Digga - - - 43.90 - -
Mr. Indrani Ray 12.69 - 2.43 - - -
Mr. Rahul Banerjee 6.46 - - 10.74 - 0.96
Mr. Aditya Khaitan - 1.80 0.40 - 1.00 -
Ms. Arundhati Dhar - 3.40 1.40 - 2.00 -
Mr. A.K Barman - 3.40 1.40 - 2.00 -
Mr. Nilotpal Roy - 1.60 0.60 - 0.80 -
Ms.Kasturi Roy Choudhury - 1.60 0.60 - 1.00 -
Mr. Saroj Kant Singh (Relative to KMP) 26.98 - 1.68 22.85 - 1.68
Remuneration includes 2021-22 2020-21
Short term Post employment Short term Post employment
employee benefits benefits employee benefits benefits

Mr. Srinivash Singh 201.84 - 182.60 -
Mr. Brij Mohan Soni 60.92 3.25 37.83 1.84
Mr. Manoj Kumar Digga - - 41.05 2.86
Mr. Rahul Banerjee 6.15 0.31 10.19 0.55
Mr. Indrani Ray 12.12 0.57 - -
Mr. Saroj Kant Singh (Relative to KMP) 25.72 1.26 22.85 1.24

This does not include the impact of provision made on actuarial valuation of retirement benefit/ long term Schemes and
provision made during the year towards Post employment benefits as the same are not separately ascertainable for individual

directors.

Details of contribution to post employment benefit plans

Remuneration includes 2021-22 2020-21
McNally Bharat Executive Staff Gratuity Fund 36.98 52.39
McNally Bharat Employees Provident Fund* 136.62 171.99

*Considered only Employer Contributation

Note 27: Capital Commitments

There is no capital commitment as at Balance sheet date.

Note 28: Lease

The Company has also leasing arrangements in respect of operating leases for premises (guest house, offices etc.). These leasing
arrangements which are cancellable in nature are renewable by mutual consent and agreement. The aggregate of such lease
rentals on account of short-term leases and low-value assets are charged as rent to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Depreciation Recognized 143.70 148.28
Interest on Lease Liabilities 229.21 275.04
Expenses related to Short Term Leases & of low value assets 226.39 251.69
Total Cash outflow for Leases 469.16 551.50
Addition to Right of Use Assets during the year 194.94 -
Deletion from Right of Use Assets during the year (1,729.87) -
Net Carrying amount of Right of Use at the end of the year 162.45 1,841.08
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Note 29: Contingent Liabilities
a.The details of Contingent Liabilities are as under:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt* 48,242.62 45,031.46
Other money for which the Company is contingently liable:
Indirect Tax matters relating to Excise Duty, Service Tax ,CentralSales Tax , Value 42,298.77 41,306.33
added Tax and Goods and Service Tax
Income Tax matter pending 7,890.28 4,776.10
Corporate guarantees given in favour ofsubsidiary companies* 8,000.00 7,850.00
Bank Gurantees issued by company-Performance , Security and Earnest Money 34,852.79 46,242.51
deposit
Liquidated damages relating to contract sales Amount not readily ascertainable

* In earlier years, the Company had entered into a put option agreement with EIG(Mauritius) Limited, who invested in one of its
subsidiary companies. In order to exercise the put option, the Investor submitted its request for Arbitration to the International
Chamber of Commerce Court, Singapore. The Arbitrator issued a dissenting opinion requiring the company to pay damages
amounting to Rs 21,102.69 Lacs (including interest) and legal cost. Thereafter Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
“CIRP”hasbeen initiated against the Company. Hence,EIG(Mauritus) Limited has lodged claim to IRP/RP on 17th May 2022.

In view of Company’s admission under CIRP all existing civil legal proceedings will be kept in abeyance as moratorium u/s 14 of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the conclusion of CIRP. Therefore, no impact has been considered in the Financial
Statements as of now .(Refer Note 43)

Details of Corporate Guarantees given covered under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:-

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
MBE Coal & Mineral India Private Limited (Banking Facility) 3,000.00 2,850.00
McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited(ECB & Rupee Term Loan) 5,000.00 5,000.00
Total 8,000.00 7,850.00

b.Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (TCFSL), one of the Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shareholders of the
Company has preferred commercial arbitration petition during the year demandingredemption of Non-convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares due to breach of various financial covenants therein for their outstanding balance of Rs. 2,831.63 Lakhs along
with 100% liquidation damages which is disputed by the Company. The Arbitrator hasissuedinterim directions to deposit an
amount of Rs 2,831.63 Lakhs in Specifically designated Escrow Account or alternatively furnish an unconditional and irrevocable
bank guarantee of such amount. The order also restrained an Injunction of any dealing of share of Mcnally Sayaji Engineering
Limited which is pledged against the loan. Further, the Company submitted an affidavit, the details of all its assets , properties
(Movable or immovable) which is restrained for any dealing , transfer and disposing the assets. Further, TCFSL had filed an
application under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the IBC”) before the National Company Law Tribunal
(“the NCLT’”) to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“the CIRP”) against the Company. The NCLT has dismissed
the application filed by the TCFSL not being a financial creditor as per the provisions of the IBC. Further, TCFSL had filed an
application with (“the NCLAT).

c. The Director General of GST Intelligence (DGGI) Kolkata had conducted investigation in 2019-20 at the Corporate Office of the
Company and denied Input Tax Credit of Rs. 945.04 Lakhs and also denied Input tax Credit of Rs 200 Lacks in 2020-21availed by
the Company. Pending adjudication of the matter, the Company has included the Input Tax Credit in Note 10(b) under Balance
with Statutory/Government authorities.
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It is not practicable to estimate the timing of cash outflows if any, in respect of the above matters pending resolution of the

arbitration/appellate proceedings.

Note 30: Dues to Micro,Small & Medium Enterprises

The amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below:

beyond the appointed day during the year

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 and 193.96 195.64
remaining unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 and remaining 120.64 90.73
unpaid as at year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006, 67.59 502.02

Total interest accured and remainning unpaid at the end of each accounting year

Amount of futher interest remainning due and payable even in the succeeding
years

Note 31: Excess Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel

The Company has received the lender and Shareholder approval in terms of Section 197(17) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the waiver of recovery of excess remuneration paid/payable to the Managing Director of the Company amounting to

Rs141.84 (Previous Year Rs. 98.60 Lakhs)for the year.

Note 32: Disclosure for Construction Contracts

The details as required in respect of construction constracts under Ind AS 115-Revenue from Contracts with Customers are as

under:
Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Contract costs incurred 18,33,195.82 18,06,627.82
Add : Recognised profit net of recognised (losses) (44,979.37) (34,531.08)
Contract Revenues* 17,88,216.45 17,72,096.74
Progress Billing 16,81,033.40 16,65,359.36
Unbilled Revenue 5,959.05 5,513.39
Due from Customers 5,959.05 5,513.39
Less: Allowance for doubtful amount 2,586.53 3,016.17
Less: Provision for future foreseeable losses 1,009.31 2,208.42
Net Due from Customers 2,363.22 288.79
Due to Customers - -
Add: Provision for future foreseeable losses - -
Net Due to Customers - -
Advance payments received (636.02) (4,476.77)
Retention amount 29,348.04 30,314.72
Provision for future foreseeable losses recognised 1,009.31 2,208.42

Refer Note 24(A)(ii) for Loss Allowances on Trade Receivables

Sale of equipments and contract revenue in respect of construction contracts as reported in this accounts is in proportion to
the actual costs incurred on such contracts to their estimated cost. Here costs represent actual costs incurred inclusive of future
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losses based on estimates of future costs of all on going projects made by the engineers of the Company and such estimates are
verified independently and certified by a Chartered Engineer. Unbilled revenue represents such contract sales values less actual
billing done on the basis of costs incurred.

The Company has made provision, as required under the Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses on long
term contracts.

The Company has made revisions in the cost to complete certain projects during the year as part of their periodical review of
cost estimates.

Note 33: Earnings Per Share

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
(a) Basic Earnings Per Share
Profits/(Losses) attributable to the Equity Holders of the Company (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
Total Basic Earnings Per Share attributable to the Equity Holders of the Company (3.65) (2.36)
(b) Diluted Earnings Per Share
Profits/(Losses) attributable to the equity holders of the company (7,714.23) (5,003.58)
Total Diluted Earnings Per Share attributable to the Equity Holders of the (3.65) (2.36)
Company

(c) Weighted average numbers of shares used as denominator

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Number of Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 21,15,70,757 21,15,70,757
calculating basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as 21,15,70,757 21,15,70,757
the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

Note 34: Segment information

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of construction and hence no separate disclosure has been made for segment
reporting as per Ind AS 108-Operating Segments.

The Company has earned its substantial revenue from India during the Financial Year 2021 -22 & 2020-21.
Note 35: Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as Security for Current and Non-current Borrowings are:

Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 6(a) 95,549.56 1,05,220.29
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(b) 2,412.41 2,722.85
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 6(b) - 58.24
Other Financial Assets 6(d) 36,098.11 26,923.82
Loans 6(c) 1,744.38 1,744.38
Non-Financial Assets
Inventories 9 165.82 293.00
Other Current Assets 10(a) 45,883.52 48,452.37
Total Current Assets pledged as security 1,81,853.81 1,85,414.95
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,002.15 2,635.69
Capital work in progress 3 462.62 462.62
Other Financial Assets 6(d) 14.58 2.12
Investments 5 18,051.51 18,054.36
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 20,530.86 21,154.78
Total assets pledged as security 2,02,384.67 2,06,569.73

Note:

Current assets are pledged for working capital loans and cash credit facilities.

Non-current assets are pledged under first charge for ECB from ICICI Bank Limited and as second charge for working capital

loans.

Investments in Mutual Funds relating to Rs. 78.62 Lakhs were put to lien for Loan taken from L&T Finance Limited. The given
loan has been fully repaid in earlier year, however lien against the investment pledged has not been satisfied till date.

The Company has pledged its Investment to the extent of 1,600,000 Equity Shares of McNally Sayaji EngineeringlLimited as
security against loans taken by the Company.

The Company has pledged its Investment to the extent of 2,337,211 Equity Shares of McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited as
security against loans taken by its Subsidiary Company namely McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited from ICICI Bank Limited .

(Refer Note 49).

The Company has executed a non-disposal undertaking and a first ranking pledge agreement over 6,331,487 Equity Shares of
McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited to ensure a security cover of an amount equivalent to Rs. 6,682 Lakhs.

Note 36: Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

SL.No | Particulars Numerator Denominator | Numerator | Denominator | 31-Mar-22 | Numerator |Denominator [31-Mar-21| Variation | Reasons (If Variance
(in%) is more than 25%)
1 |[CurrentRatio [Current Assets Current 1,82,727.23| 2,41,732.75 0.76( 1,89,578.40( 2,41,001.16 0.79 (3.91)1-
Liability
2 |Debt-Equity |Total Debts Shareholder's 2,28,490.04 (1,639.37) (139.38)| 2,27,357.27 7,380.90 30.80| (552.47)|During the year
Ratio (Including Lease | Equity company has
liability) (Including OCl) operatingloss of Rs
7,714 Lakhs, which
has reduced the
Shareholder's fund
thereby reducing the
ratio.
3 |Debt Service Earning available | Debt Service (7,185.81)| 2,28,490.04 (0.03){ (4,329.68)| 2,27,357.27 (0.02) 65.14 | During the year
Coverage Ratio |for debt service company has
operating Loss ofRs
7,714 Lakhs by the
company. Also the
Company has no
sufficient earnings to
serve the debts.
4 |Returnon Net Profit after Average Share (7,671.44) 2,870.76 (2.67)| (4,985.83) 10,482.73 (0.48) 461.85|Due to higher
Equity Ratio Tax(including OCl) [Holder Fund operating losses
during the current
year in comparison
to the corresponding
previous year.
5 [Inventory Sales Avg Inventory 25,189.70 229.41 109.80| 33,278.33 409.93 81.18 35.26 | Decrease in sales
Turnover Ratio value and inventory
holding has resulted
in higher ratio.
6 |[Trade Sales Average Trade 25,189.70( 1,00,384.93 0.25| 33,278.33| 1,21,876.19 0.27 (8.10)1-
Receivable Receivables
turnover Ratio
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SL.No | Particulars Numerator Denominator | Numerator | Denominator | 31-Mar-22 | Numerator |Denominator|31-Mar-21| Variation | Reasons (If Variance
(in%) is more than 25%)

7 |Trade payable |Purchase of Goods |Average Trade 11,879.45 22,164.17 0.54| 13,375.11 22,608.12 0.59 (9.40)|-
turnover Ratio |and Service Payable

8 [Net capital Sales Working 25,189.70  (59,005.52) (0.43)| 35,839.66| (51,422.76) (0.70) (38.75) | Due to decrease in
turnover Ratio Capital Sales as compare from

previous year.

9 | Net profit Ratio [Net Profit Sales (7,671.44) 25,189.70 (0.30)| (4,985.83)|  35,839.66 (0.14) 118.92 [ Due to higher

(Including OCl) operating losses
during the current
year in comparison
to the corresponding
previous year.

10 |[Returnon Earning before Capital (7,714.23)|  2,26,850.67 (0.03)| (5,003.58)| 2,34,738.17 (0.02) 59.53 | Due to higher
Capital interest and taxes |Employed operating losses
Employed (EBIT) during the current

year in comparison
to the corresponding
previous year.

11 |Returnon Return on Total (2.87) 18,054.36 (0.00) 27.82 18,026.55 0.00| (110.29)|Due to Reduction
Investment Investment Investment in Market value

of Investment as
compared from
previous year.

Earning available for debt service Net Profit before taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other

amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss/Profit on sale of Fixed assets etc.

Debt Service Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments.

Capital Employed Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability
Tangible Net Worth = Total Assets-Intangible Assets -Total Liability

Note 37: Current Assets/Liabilities recoverable/payable within and beyond 12 months

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Within 12 | Beyond 12 Total Within 12 | Beyond 12 Total
months months months months
Trade Receivables 95,549.56 -| 95,549.56| 1,05,220.30 -1 1,05,220.30
Other Financial Assets 36,098.11 14.58| 36,112.69 26,923.82 2.12 26,925.93
Other Current Assets 45,883.52 -| 45,883.52| 48,452.37 1.83| 48,454.21
Borrowings 2,08,600.22 14,788.69 | 2,23,388.91| 2,06,718.08 13,444.26| 2,20,162.34
Lease Liability 87.60 88.88 176.48 - 2,270.27 2,270.27
Trade Payables 21,745.36 - 21,745.36 22,582.99 -] 22,582.99
Other Financial Liabilities 6,029.11 - 6,029.11 6,419.16 - 6,419.16
Other Current Liabilities 5,191.51 - 5,191.51 5,188.08 - 5,188.08

Note 38: Details of Loans given covered under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
MBE Minerals Zambia Limited* 1,385.04 1,385.04
McNally Bharat Engineering (SA) Proprietary Ltd (deregistered w.e.f. 30.06.2017)* 40.08 40.08
Vedica Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited (ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f. 1,744.38 1,744.38
29.08.2018)#
Total 3,169.50 3,169.50

*Allowance for doubtful loan receivables recognised.

#The Company has not recognised interest income on the loans for the year ended 31st March, 2022.
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Refer Note 5 for investments made by the Company
Note 39:

As per the Scheme of Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta vide its Order dated July 28, 2009 which
was filed with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal , Kolkata on September 01, 2009, for reconstruction of McNally Bharat
Engineering Company Limited (MBECL) and its subsidiary viz McNally Sayaji Engineering Ltd (MSEL) - the Products Division
of MBECL engaged in the business of manufacture and/or procuring equipments for various engineering and infrastructure
projects and having its units at Kumardubi, in the State of Jharkhand, Asansol, in the State of West Bengal and Bangalore,
in the State of Karnataka has been transferred to MSEL with effect from the appointed date, i.e. April 01, 2008. As per the
Scheme of Arrangement the transfer and vesting of Products Division of MBECL to MSEL shall be subject to the existing charges,
mortgages and encumbrances, if any, over the assets or any part thereof, provided however, that such charges, mortgages and/
or encumbrances shall be confined only to the assets of MBECL or part thereof on or over which they are subsisting on transfer
to and vesting of such assets in MSEL and no such charges, mortgages and/ or encumbrances shall extend over or apply to any
other asset(s) of MSEL. Thus the existing charges on the assets of the Products Division for facilities enjoyed by MBECL will
continue and vice versa. Accordingly, working capital demand loans, cash credit facilities, term loans and other non fund based
facilities of the Company are secured by assets which include those of the Product Division of MSEL.

Note 40:

The Company had entered in September 2003 a joint venture agreement with Elsamex S.A. where officially it was appointed
as a subcontractor in “West Bengal Corridor Development Project — Improvement of Gazole Hilli Section of SH 10 with a link to
Balurghat from Patiram,” (the project). However consequent to considerable delay in execution of the project the Public Works
Department of Government of West Bengal (PWD) had unilaterally terminated the contract in January 2006. The Company and
Elsamex S.A. felt that such delay in execution was due to the inability of PWD to hand over the stretch of encumbrance free
land for widening of road and non-availability of construction drawings on time by PWD. The Company has a legitimate claim
of Rs. 1,517 lakhstowards receivable and Rs. 1,133 lakhson account of deposit against Performance Guarantee. Elsamex S.A.
moved to arbitration and had claimed an amount of Rs. 7,334 lakhsincluding an additional claim on consequential losses as per
guidelines of “Federation Internationale Des Ingenieurs-Conseils” (FIDIC). Arbitral Board in their meeting held on October 25,
2010 has upheld Elsamex S A’s claim and has given award in favour of Elsamex S A. Under the award, a total amount of Rs. 3,535
Lakhs is receivable by the Company. A claim has already been lodged with PWD. PWD has preferred to challenge the verdict of
the Arbitrators and has appealed to the High Court in January, 2011 for a stay in the matter of payment of award money. The
matter is still pending for hearing.

Note 41:

Pursuant to the application under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Act, 2016 filed by one of Financial Creditors, being C.P
(1B) No 891/KB/2020, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, while disposing off, admitted the application
vide order dated 29.04.2022 and directed to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Company. CA
Anuj Jain (IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306) has been initially appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP).
Upon commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and management of the
Company vest in the IRP/Resolution Professional (RP). Committee of Creditors (COC) have been constituted on 25.05.2022 on
the basis of collation of all claims by the IRP and report is submitted to NCLT by IRP.

Note 42:

The Company’s financial performance has been adversely affected due to downturn of the infrastructure and core sector,
working capital constraints and external factors beyond the Company’s control and the Company has not been able to meet
its financial commitments /covenants to lenders and various other stakeholders. The Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern is dependent upon many factors including continued support from the financial creditors, operational creditors,
customers and submission of viable resolution plan by the prospective investor. Under the CIRP, a resolution plan needs to be
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presented to and approved by the COC and thereafter will need to be approved by the NCLT to keep the Company as going
concern. In view of the opinion of the Management resolution and revival of the Company is possible in the foreseeable future.
The IRP/RP is expected to make every endeavour to protect and preserve the value of the property of the corporate debtor and
manage the operations of the corporate debtor as going concern. Accordingly, the financial statements of the company have
been prepared on going concern basis.

Note 43:

There shall be moratorium under section 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the completion of the CIRP or
until the Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under sub section (1) of section 31 of the IBC or pass an order
for liquidation of Corporate Debtors under section 33 of the IBC, as the case may be. The Company had received regulatory
Enquiries /Notices/ Summons /Show-Cause/Demand/ Orders from various government authorities such as Goods and Services
Tax, Income Tax. In view of Company’s admission under CIRP all existing civil legal proceedings will be kept in abeyance as
moratorium u/s 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the conclusion of CIRP. Therefore, no impact has been
considered in these statements as of now.

Note 44:

During the year ended 31st March, 2019 , the Company had deferred repayment and converted the advances received from
certain companies aggregating toRs. 98,592.96 Lakhs, into interest free long term loans /ICDs, repayable in five equated annual
instalments commencing after the payment of lender obligation. Fair valuation gain of Rs. 83,804.25 Lakhs (31st March, 2021,
Rs. 85,148.70 Lakhs) arising out of aforesaid transaction had been considered as part of “Other Reserves” (Note 11(b)(v)) and
Rs. 14,788.69Lakhs (31st March, 2021 Rs. 13,444.26 Lakhs) had been considered as “Long term borrowings” (Note 12(a)) for
which consents have been obtained from the counter parties during the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Note 45:

The management has reviewed trade receivables, claims recoverable against bank guarantees invoked by certain parties,
advances to suppliers and Loans to others and no provision has been made there against during the year ended 31st March,
2022.

Note 46:

The Company has been categorised as Non Performing Asset by the lender banks and majority of the lender banks have stopped
debiting interest on their outstanding debts as per the Prudential Norms on Income Recognition issued by the Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the Company has not recognised interest expense on Bank borrowings and Inter-Corporate Borrowings
amounting to Rs. 95,766.23 Lakhsand Rs. 706.40 Lakhs respectively till 31st March, 2022.. However, Lenders/ Financial creditors
have submitted the claims to the IRP amounting to Rs 5,75,095.90 lakhs (including interest) out of which claims lodged by
lenders banks amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 lakhs (including interest) have been provisionally admitted by IRP and remaining
amount is under verification, the necessary provisions with respect to such claims shall be made upon final admission of the
claims by IRP with respect to such financial creditors.

Note 47:

The Hon’ble Calcutta High Court by an order dt. 02.03.2022, has restrained the company from dealing with Banks which has
affected operations of the company badly. The Company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Court for withdrawal of the
order since CIRP process has been initiated on the company and hearing of the petition is scheduled on 06th June, 2022.

Note 48:

The World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic on 11th March, 2020. Consequent to
this, Government of India (GOI) has declared a national lockdown on 24th March, 2020 which got extended from time to time.
The COVID- 19 has significantly impacted business operations of the Company, by way of interruption in the project activities,
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supply chain disruption, limited availability of human resource etc. However, post lockdown, the operations having resumed
gradually in a phased manner following directives from the GOI as well as State Governments, the business of the Company is
regaining normalcy in terms of volume as well as cash flow.The Company is closely monitoring the situation and the operations
are being resumed in a phased manner considering directives from the GOI. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position
and recoverability and carrying value of its Non-Current & Current Assets and has concluded that no material adjustments are
required currently at this stage.

Note 49:

The Company in earlier years had pledged 23,37,211 Equity Shares of its subsidiary McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL)
against term loan facilities availed by the said subsidiary. During the quarter ended 31st December, 2020, ICICI Bank Limited has
invoked pledge created over these shares for a transfer value of Re. 1 adjusted towards the over dues amount of the Company.
The Company has objected the invocation of the said share pledge and undervalued transfer. The Company has also filed a
claim amounting to Rs 73.75 Cr (includinginvocation of pledged shares) with Resolution Professional of MSEL in March, 2021.
Further the company filed for compensation for such invocation at average cost price of shares of MSEL amounting to Rs 40.79
Cr. Accordingly, the Company has not made any adjustment in respect ofnumber of shares as well asimpairment to the carrying
value of Investments/Receivables from MSEL as on 31st March, 2022pending approval of Resolution plan from COC of the said
Subsidiary.

Note 50:

Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets and Other Financial Assets are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from
respective parties and consequential reconciliation, outcomes of pending arbitration/settlements of claims and adjustments
arising therefrom, if any.The management, however, does not expect any material variation, Management is also hopeful for
recovery/realisation of trade receivables which include Rs 43,402.16 Lakhs under Arbitration/ Proposed Arbitration in the
normal course of business, hence no impairment has been considered at this stage.

Note 51: Interest In Joint Venture

Name Project Principal Place 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
of Business
Proporation of ownership Proporation of ownership
Interest Interest
EMC MBE Contracting Co LLC EMC Oman 35% 35%
McNally- AML Dipka Indian 98% 98%
Ananta Indian 97% 97%
McNally- Trolex Chhal Indian 96% 96%
Baroud Indian 97% 97%
McNally- Trolex- Kilburn Sardega Indian 80% 80%

Note: Profit/Loss for the year of Joint Ventures which are not material have not been considered in the Financial Statements
Note 52:

One of the Subsidiary, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited has been drawn into Corporate Insolvency Resolution Processvide
NCLT order dated 11th February, 2021, the said order has been challenged before the NCLAT after that NCLAT has dismissed
the appeal. Thereafter, the Committee of Creditors (CoC) was constituted which held it first meeting on 14th December, 2021.
At the said Meeting, CoC has appointmented the Resolution Professional,Hence Company has not impaired investment as well
as advances as on 31.03.2022.
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Note 53:

Other Statutory Information

(i) There is no immovable property held in the name of the Company during the year.

(ii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami property.

(iii) The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intemediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has no such transaction unrecorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the yearin the tax assessmentunder the Income tax Act, 1961 Such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 54:

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements
as on the date of approval of these Standalone Financial Statements.

Note 55:

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/
disclosure.

Signature to Note 1 to 55

As per Report of our even date

For V. Singhi & Associates For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(Srinivash Singh) (Asim Kumar Barman)
(V. K. SINGHI) Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: 00789624 DIN: 02373956
Membership Number: 050051
(Brij Mohan Soni) (Indrani Ray)
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata,
Date: 30th May, 2022 Anuj Jain
(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306
Interim Resolution Professional
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information(hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us because of the significance of
the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our Report, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements do
not give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2022, its consolidated loss (including Total
Comprehensive Loss),its consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
a) Non-recognition of Interest Expense

The Holding Company has not recognised interest expense on Bank borrowings and Inter-Corporate Borrowings amounting
to Rs.96,472.63 up to the year ended 31st March, 2022 as referred in Note 49 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
However, Holding Company’s Lenders/ Financial creditors have submitted the claims to the IRP amounting to Rs 5,75,095.90
lakhs (including interest) out of which claims lodged by lenders banks amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 lakhs (including interest)
have been provisionally admitted by IRP. As a result, finance Costs, liability on account of interest and total comprehensive
loss for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 are understated to that extent.

One out of its four subsidiaries, Mcnally Sayaji Engineering Limited (“MSEL”) has not recognized interest expense on Bank
borrowings and Inter-Corporate Borrowings for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 as referred in Note 49 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. MSEL has not recognized interest expense on Bank borrowings amounting to Rs.6747
Lakhs and Rs. 1260 Lakhs on Inter-Corporate Borrowings up to the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The CIRP has
since been initiated against MSEL on and from 11th February, 2021 pursuant to the order passed by the Hon'ble NCLT
Court, Kolkata Bench in the matter of the application filed by one of the lender banks and in the process based on the
claims submitted by the lender banks, the claims admitted by the Resolution Professional, uploaded onMSEL’s website are
Rs.22,019 lakhs in aggregate (excluding admitted claims of the financial creditors relating to the Bank Borrowings of Holding
Company, McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited against which MSEL had issued a corporate guarantee and created
exclusive first charge on the fixed assets of Kumardhubi Unit-1) and Rs.63 lakhs against Inter-Corporate Borrowing claims.
As a result, finance Costs, liability on account of interest are under stated and total comprehensive income for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2021 are overstated to that extent.

This constitutes a departure from the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 109 “Financial Instruments”.
b) Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets

We draw attention to Note 52 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding Trade Receivables, Other Financial
Assets and Other Current Assets are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from respective parties and consequential
reconciliation, outcomes of pending arbitration/settlements of claims and adjustments arising there from, if any.
Adjustments/ Impacts with respect to these are currently not ascertainable and as such cannot be commented upon by us.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
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Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

The Group has reported net loss of Rs. 11,977.56 Lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and the Holding Company and
its Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited have shown their inability to meet their financial commitments/
covenants to lenders and various other stakeholders. As stated in Note 45 to the Consolidated Financial Statement the Holding
Company and one subsidiary MSEL are under CIRP. Hence the ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon many
factors including continued support from the financial creditors, operational creditors, customers and submission of viable
resolution plan by the prospective investor. These events and conditions indicate a material uncertainty which may cast a
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern
is dependent on the acceptance of the resolution plan by the Committee of Creditors.

We draw attention to Note 50 to the Consolidated Financial Statements wherein the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court by an order
dated 2nd March, 2022, has restrained the Holding Company from dealing with the banks which has affected operations of the
Holding Company severely. The Holding Company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Calcutta High Courtfor withdrawal of
the above order since CIRP process has been initiated on the Holding Company.

Based on the management’s assessment and expectation that the IRP/RP will make every endeavour to protect and preserve
the value of the property of the corporate debtor and manage its operations as a going concern, the financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on going concern basis.

Emphasis of Matters
a) Appointment of Interim Resolution Professional

We draw attention to Note 44 to the Consolidated Financial Statements wherein it has been informed that the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against
the Holding Company vide an order dated 29th April 2022. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors were
suspended and are exercisable by the Interim Resolution Professional, Mr. Anuj Jain.

b) Non-Assessment of Pending Litigations

We draw attention to Note 46 to the Consolidated Financial Statements pertaining to the Holding Company’s receipt of
regulatory Enquiries/ Notices/ Summons/ Show-Cause/ Demand/ Orders from various Government authorities such as
Goods and Services Tax, Income Tax. In view of Holding Company’s admission under CIRP all existing civil / legal proceedings
will be kept in abeyance as moratorium under section 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 is applicable on the
Holding Company till the conclusion of CIRP. Therefore, no impact has been considered in the Statement as of now.

c) Charges of Exceptional Items

We draw attention to Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements ,pertaining to one of its subsidiary Mcnally Sayaji
Engineering Company Limited, based on physical verification and fair estimation of Net Realizable Value of non-moving and
slow-moving inventories, complete evaluation of such inventories, including physical verifications vis-a-vis fair estimates
of Net Realizable Value of some stock items of Raw Material and Work in Progress of Rs. 3,075 Lakhs aggregate has been
charged as exceptional item in the Statement.

d) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

We draw your attention to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements wherein the Group had recognised deferred tax
assets of Rs. 57,940.49 Lakhs upto 31st March, 2019 expecting adequate future taxable profits to the Group against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilised, which issolely dependent on the acceptance of the resolution plan. However, the
Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in any of the subsequent years on prudent basis.
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e) Other Equity

We draw attention to Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding Other equity which includes Rs 83,804.25
lakhs (85,148.70 lakhs as on 31st March, 2021) of fair valuation gain on account of deferred repayment of Inter Corporate
Deposit of to Rs 98,592.94 lakhs and the said gain having been considered as part of “Other Reserves” and Rs 14,788.69
lakhs (13,444.26 lakhs as on 31st March, 2021) as “Long term borrowings” under the head Non-Current Borrowings.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

This statement includes the result of the following entities:

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies of the Holding company

Mcnally Bharat Equipment Limited
MBE Mineral Technlogies Pte Limited
MBE Minerals Zambia Limited

Subsidiary Company of the Holding Company

Mcnally Sayaji Egineering Limited

Step down Subsidiary of the Holding Company
MBE Coal and Mineral Technology India Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Mcnally Sayaji Engineering

Limited)

Joint Ventures of Holding Company

EMC MBE Contracting Company LLC
McNally-Trolex*

McNally-AML*
McNally-Trolex-Kilburn*

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and Emphasis of Matters section of our
report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our Report.

Sr.No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditors’ Response to Key Audit Matters

1

Estimated Cost to complete the Project:

(Refer note 1(d) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements)

The Holding Company recognises revenue under
percentage of completion method as specified under
Indian Accounting Standard 115 “Revenue from
Contract with Customers”.

Recognition of revenue requires estimation of total
contract cost which comprises of the actual cost
incurred till date and estimated cost further to be
incurred to complete the projects.Estimation of
the cost to complete the contract involves exercise
of significant judgement by management including
assessment of technical data and hence identified as
Key Audit Matter.

Our audit approach was combination oftest of internal controls

and substantive procedures which includes the following:

1. Tested the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the controls surrounding determination
and approval of estimated cost.

2. Verified the contracts with customers on test check basis
including the actual cost incurred and terms and conditions
related to the variation of the cost.

3. Discussed with the project management teams for certain
selected projects to assess the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to be incurred for completing the respective
projects.

4. Obtained and relied on the Independent Chartered
Engineer’s Certificate for supporting the accuracy of
the estimate of the total cost of the project for selected
contracts on test check basis.
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Sr.No. |Key Audit Matters Auditors’ Response to Key Audit Matters
2. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities Our audit approach was combination oftest of internal controls
(Refer note 31 to the Consolidated Financial |@nd substantive procedures which includes the following:
Statements) 1. Assessing the appropriateness of the design and
The Holding Company is involved in various taxes and implementation of the Holding Company’s controls
other disputes for which final outcomes cannot be over the assessment of litigations and completeness of

easily predicted and which could potentially result disclosures.
in significant liabilities.The assessment of the risks|2. Testing the supporting documentation for the positions

associated with the litigations is based on complex taken by the management, conducting meetings with in-
assumptions, which require the use of judgements house legal counsel and/or legal team and reviewing the
and such judgements relates, primarily, to the minutes of the Board and the Sub-committee, to confirm
assessment of the uncertainties connected to the the operating effectiveness of these controls.

prediction of the outcome of the proceedings and to |3 Assessment of assumptions used in the evaluation of
the adequacy of the disclosures in the Consolidated | potential risk and tax risks performed by the legal and tax
Financial Statements. Because of the judgement|  gepartment of the Holding Company considering the legal
required, the materiality of such litigations and the precedence and other rulings in similar cases.

complexity of the assessment process, the area is a

) 4. Involving our direct and indirect tax specialists to assess
key matter for our audit.

relevant historical and recent judgements passed by the
appropriate authorities in order to challenge the basis used
for the accounting treatment and resulting disclosures.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) is responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Management’s Report including Annexures to Management’s Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholders Information but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) is responsible
for the matters stated in section134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordancewith the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
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the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of each Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls
based on our audit.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the qualified
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of one Subsidiary whose
Consolidated Financial Statements reflect total assets of Rs. 38,889 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2022, total revenue of Rs.
18,116 Lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and total net loss of Rs. 4,308 Lakhs for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022 which have been audited by us. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based solely on our report and the audit
procedures performed by us.

b) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the unaudited Financial Information/Results of one Indian and two foreign
subsidiaries whose Financial information/results reflect total assets of Rs. 240.77 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2022, total revenue
of Rs.2.43 Lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and total net loss of Rs. 1.88 Lakhs for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These unaudited Financial Information/
Results have been furnished to us by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and our opinion on the consolidated
Financial Results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities is based solely
on such unaudited Financial Information/Results. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, these interim financial information/results are not material to the
Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to the
Financial Information/Results certified by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

c) The Financial Statements of the Joint Ventures of the Holding Company whose carrying value in the Financial Statements is
Rs. Nil (net of impairment) has not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion Section above, in our opinion,
proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements
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<)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

(a)

()

have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and returns;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements;

Considering the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion Section above, in our opinion, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements do not comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
Companies as on 31stMarch, 2022 and taken on record by the Interim Resolution Professional, none of the directors of
the Group companies incorporated in India, is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. However in view of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) from 29th
April, 2022, the powers of Board of Directors of the Holding Company stand suspended as per section 17 of the code
and such powers are exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional during the year;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary Companies and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the unaudited financial information/results of the Subsidiary Companies, as
noted in the Other Matters Paragraph above:

i. except forthe possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section above, the Group has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in the Consolidated Financial Statements (Refer
Note 31(a)to the Consolidated Financial Statements);

ii. the Group has made provision, in this Consolidated Financial Statements, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company.

The Management has represented , to the best of its knowledge and belief,no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the Group to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding , whether recorded
in writing or otherwise , that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented ,to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity ,including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding , whether recorded in
writing or otherwise , that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries ; and

Based on our audit procedure that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances , nothing
has come to our notice that has caused to us believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.
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v. The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Place: Kolkata
Date:30th May, 2022
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Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of McNally Bharat Engineering
Company Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022.

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, we report that the auditors of the following companies have given qualification
or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone/consolidated financial statements of the respective companies
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company:

S .| Name of theCompany CIN Relationship Date of Clause number of CARO
No with Company resp(;ctlve Audit Report which is qualified
eport
or adverse remarks
1. |McNally Bharat L45202WB1961PLC025181 Holding 30 May 2022 |i(b), vii(a), vii(b), ix(a), xix
Engineering Company
Limited
2. | McNally Sayaji L28999WB1943PLC133247 Subsidiary 27t May 2022 |i(c), ii(b), vii(a), vii(b),
Engineering Limited ,ix(a) & xix.
3. |MBE Coal & Mineral U27100WB2009PTC137428 Subsidiary 27" May 2022 |i(c), vii(a), ix(a) & xix.
Technology India Private
Limited
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Referred to in Paragraph 1(h) on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even date to the members of
McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (“the
Holding Company) and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India (collectively referred to as “the Group”) as of and for the
year ended 31 March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective management under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Holding Company and Board
of Directors of its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on the criteria established by the respective Companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the financial statements
of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies, which are incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
the Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controlswith reference to consolidated financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
over Financial Reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31t March, 2022 based on the
criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of such internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

issued by the ICAI.

For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 311017E

(V. K. SINGHI)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 30th May, 2022 Membership No. 050051

UDIN: 21050051AAAAGM3847
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes | As at 31st March, 2022 | As at 31st March, 2021
IASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 13,473.15 14,691.90
Right to use Assets 3 339.45 2,043.28
Capital Work-in-progress 3 482.62 483.51
Investment Property 4 355.42 358.42
Other Intangible Assets 5 53.15 51.32
Goodwill on Consolidation 5 1,162.64 1,162.64
Financial Assets
i. Investments 6 117.84 120.70
iil. Trade Receivables 7(a) 939.00 622.07
iii. Other Financial Assets 7(d) 784.58 480.08
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 8 57,940.49 57,940.49
Other Non-Current Assets 9 134.00 149.41
ITotal Non-current Assets 75,782.34 78,103.82
Current Assets
Inventories 10 5,465.82 9,449.35
Financial Assets
i. Trade Receivables 7(a) 99,252.23 1,08,738.97
iil Cash and Cash Equivalents 7(b) 4,502.27 3,823.23
iii. Bank Balances other than (ii) above 7(b) 116.00 365.72
iv. Loans 7(c) 1,852.46 1,430.18
V. Other Financial Assets 7(d) 36,818.85 26,625.64
Current Tax Assets (net) 11(a) 1,101.67 4,429.91
Other Current Assets 11(b) 44,996.32 46,855.47
ITotal Current Assets 1,94,105.62 2,01,718.47
[Total Assets 2,69,887.96 2,79,822.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12(a) 21,157.08 21,157.08
Other equity
Reserves and Surplus 12(b) (38,464.98) (25,881.59)
Equity attributable to owners of the Holding Company (17,307.90) (4,724.51)
Non-controlling Interest 1,231.51 2,019.79
[Total Equity (16,076.39) (2,704.72)
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings 13(a) 14,788.69 13,447.67
ii. Lease Liabilities 13(d) 257.88 2,453.10
iii. Trade Payables 13(c)
- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, Small and MediumEnterprises - 0.68
Provisions 13 695.34 792.39
[Total Non-current Liabilities 15,741.91 16,693.84
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings 13(b) 2,21,493.72 2,18,719.46
ii Lease Liability 13(d) 129.60 40.00
iii. Trade payables 13(c)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 540.96 407.81
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises| 25,322.35 26,061.88
iv. Other financial liabilities 13(e) 16,737.01 17,592.97
Provisions 14 230.95 266.00
Other current liabilities 15 5,767.85 2,745.05
ITotal Current Liabilities 2,70,222.44 2,65,833.17
[Total Equity and Liabilities 2,69,887.96 2,79,822.29
Significant Accounting Policies, Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 1-2
The above Consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 60
As per our Report of even date
For V. Singhi & Associates For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 311017E
(V. K. Singhi) (Srinivash Singh) (Anuj Jain) (Asim Kumar Barman)
Partner Managing Director (Taken on Record) Director
Membership Number: 050051 DIN: 00789624 IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306 DIN: 02373956
Place: Kolkata (Brij Mohan Soni) Interim Resolution Professional (Indrani Ray)
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Revenue from Operations 16 42,426.74 50,151.85
Other Income 17(a) & (b) 7,120.37 3,033.64
Total income 49,547.11 53,185.49
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 18(a) 21,422.63 20,991.44
Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods 18(b) (208.00) 1,367.00
Outsourcing Expenses to Job Workers 11,819.90 11,840.79
Employee Benefits Expense 19 7,183.30 7,564.00
Finance Costs 20 5,092.53 4,616.62
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 21 1,272.45 1,624.86
Other Expenses 22 11,966.65 9,531.16
Total Expenses 58,549.46 57,535.85
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items (9,002.35) (4,350.37)
Exceptional Items 35 (3,075.00) -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (12,077.35) (4,350.37)
Income Tax Expense 23
- Provision written back - -
- Tax for earlier years (22.00)
- Deferred Tax - -
Total Tax Expense (22.00) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (12,055.35) (4,350.37)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligations 77.79 35.75
Income Tax relating to these items - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 77.79 35.75
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (11,977.56) (4,314.62)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company (11,254.61) (4,471.53)
Non-Controlling Interest (800.74) 121.16
(12,055.35) (4,350.37)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) attributable to :
Owners of the Holding Company 71.34 32.43
Non-Controlling Interest 6.45 3.32
77.79 35.75
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) attributable to :
Owners of the Holding Company (11,183.27) (4,439.10)
Non-Controlling Interest (794.28) 124.48
(11,977.55) (4,314.62)
Earnings per share (EPS) for the year (Face value of Rs. 10/- per share):
Basic (Rs.) 37 (5.32) (2.11)
Diluted (Rs.) 37 (5.32) (2.11)
Significant Accounting Policies, Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 1-2

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 60.

As per our Report of even date

For V. Singhi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. Singhi) (Srinivash Singh)
Partner Managing Director
Membership Number: 050051 DIN: 00789624

Place: Kolkata (Brij Mohan Soni)
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

(Anuj Jain) (Asim Kumar Barman)
(Taken on Record) Director
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306 DIN: 02373956
Interim Resolution Professional (Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2022

Year ended
31st March, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before income tax (12,077.35) (4,350.37)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 1,271.45 1,624.90
Finance Costs 5,092.53 4,616.62
Interest Income (3,734.27) (2,316.17)
Loss/(Profit) on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) (80.99) (21.67)
Provision/Allowance for Doubtful Debts 1,928.22 151.00
Provision for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables and due from customers (1,689.45) 634.93
Advances written off 385.72 -
Provision/Liabilities no longer required written back (674.00) (315.95)
Provision for Warranty (26.00) 4.00
Provision for Doubtful Debts against Claims Recoverable 846.82 -
Provision for Future Foreseeable Losses in Construction Contracts (1,199.11) (757.51)
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on Foreign Currency Translation (Net) 88.81 (23.76)
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2.87 (27.82)
Change in operating Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 10,597.92 33,488.42
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 3,835.18 1,847.86
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (850.28) (1,620.14)
Increase / (Decrease) in Employee Benefit Obligation (647.00) (5.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (8,937.83) (3,255.75)
(Increase)/decrease in Other Non-current Assets 1.83 1.14
(Increase)/decrease in other Right to use assets 1,538.34 -
(Increase)/decrease in Other Current Assets 5,941.83 (4,249.46)
Increase/(decrease) in Provisions (1.17) 25.14
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (2,491.42) 960.46
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities (3,264.04) (22,121.51)
Increase/ (decrease) Unwinding of Interest 61.00 -
Cash generated from Operations (4,080.39)

Income taxes (paid)/Refund 3,365.77 1,996.01
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities (714.62) 6,285.35
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (70.19) (59.33)
Loans given - 50.36
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 266.71 41.75
Deposits matured/(made) 39.24 (26.29)
Interest received 3,673.27 165.51
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 3,909.03 172.00
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COhSO"datEd Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 4,712.48 2,164.49
Repayment of borrowings (2,963.04) (14.00)
Interest paid (5,092.53) (5,489.99)
Net increase in Cash Credit Facilities including WCDL - (1,491.00)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities (3,343.09) (4,830.50)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (148.68) 1,626.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,823.23 2,198.64
Effects of exchange rate changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.46 (2.26)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,675.01 3,823.23
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (note 7(b)) 4,502.27 3,823.23
Adjustment of opening Balances 827.26 -
Bank Overdrafts (note 13(d)) - -
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 3,675.01 3,823.23

Notes:

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS 7) - Statement of Cash Flows.

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 60.

As per our Report of even date
For V. Singhi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. Singhi) (Srinivash Singh)
Partner Managing Director
Membership Number: 050051 DIN: 00789624

Place: Kolkata (Brij Mohan Soni)
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

(Anuj Jain) (Asim Kumar Barman)
(Taken on Record) Director
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306 DIN: 02373956
Interim Resolution Professional (Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

IA. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Notes Equity Share Capital

)As at 31st March, 2020 21,157.08|
ICCPS Converted into Equity Shares 12(a) E
As at 31st March, 2021 21,157.08|
Changes in Equity Share Capital 12(a) B
As at 31st March, 2022 21,157.08
B. Other Equity

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 -( 1,12,869.05| (2,21,551.35)( 101.00( 344.28| (257.32)| 86,370.90( 1,766.63 1,895.31 (18,461.51)
Forfeiture of Share Warrants - - - - - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 12(b) - - (4,471.53) - - - - - 121.16 (4,350.37)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 12(b) - - 3243 - - - - - 3.32 35.75
the year

Adjustment for change in ownership 12(b)

interest

Appropriations during the year 12(b) - - - - - 134.15 - - - 134.15
Converted into Equity Shares 12(a) - - - - -
Reversal of Fair value gain on Financial 45 - - - - - -1 (1,222.21) - - (1,222.21)
Liabilities

Transfer to Financial Liabilties 12(b) - - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 -( 1,12,869.05| (2,25,990.44)( 101.00( 344.28| (123.17)| 85,148.70( 1,766.63 2,019.79( (23,861.80)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 12(b) - - (11,254.61) - - - - - (800.74)]  (12,055.34)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 12(b) - - 71.34 - - - - - 6.45 77.79
the year

Change in Estimates 12(b) 26.50 5.99 32.49
Appropriations during the year 12(b) - - - - - (79.82) - (79.82)
Reversal of Fair value gain on Financial 45 - - - - - -[(1,344.43) - - (1,344.43)
Liabilities

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 -[1,12,869.05| (2,37,147.21)| 101.00 344.28| (202.99) 83,804.27| 1,766.63 1,231.51( (37,233.48)

Note : An amount of Rs. 620 Lakhs (including Securities Premium of Rs. 520 Lakhs) was received by the Holding Company as 25% subscription
money from two parties towards allotment of 40,00,000 Equity Share Warrants.On non-exercise of their option attached to the warrants
for subscription of Equity Shares of the Holding Company,the Holding Company has forfeited the amount during the financial year 2019-20.

The above Consolidated Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 60.

As per our Report of even date

For V. Singhi & Associates For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. Singhi) (Srinivash Singh) (Anuj Jain) (Asim Kumar Barman)
Partner Managing Director (Taken on Record) Director

Membership Number: 050051 DIN: 00789624 IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306 DIN: 02373956

Place: Kolkata (Brij Mohan Soni) Interim Resolution Professional (Indrani Ray)

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of Financial Statements of “McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)” for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal(NCLT), Kolkata Bench vide order dated 29/04/2022 while admitting section 7
application under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, one of the financial creditors, initiated Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Processagainst the holding company.

CA Anuj Jain (IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306) was initially appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional in the said
matter.

The CIRP under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 is in progress.

This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015], as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
. Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments); and
. Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

(iii) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non - current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in Cash and Cash Equivalents, the Group has ascertained,
on an average its operating cycle for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities to be
12 to 24 months.

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are continually
evaluated by the Group and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events) that the Group believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/materialized.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after
that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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Segment Reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in two business segments, viz. “Turnkey engineering” and “other engineering services”.
Information reported to and evaluated regularly by the Chief Operational Decision Maker (CODM) i.e., Managing Director
and CFO for the purpose of resource allocation and assessing performance focuses separately on the aforesaid segment.
The CODM reviews the Group’s performance on the analysis of Profit/ (Loss) before tax at each segment level. Accordingly,
appropriate disclosure is made for reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Foreign Currencies

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and
are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other Income’. The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of
the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Functional Currency

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Holding Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / (losses).

Non — monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Group derives revenues primarily from turnkey solutions in the areas of Power, Steel, Aluminium, Material Handling,
Mineral Beneficiation, Pyro processing, Pneumatic Handling of powdered materials including fly ash handling and high
concentrate disposal, coal washing, Port cranes, Cement, Oil & Gas, civic and industrial water supply etc. (together called
as “turnkey solutions”)..

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns and other similar allowances.

(i) Sale of Goods and Services

For contracts with customers in which the sale of equipment is generally expected to be the only performance
obligation, adoption of Ind AS 115 does not have any material impact on the Group’s revenue and profit or loss.
The Group has concluded that the revenue recognition to occur at a point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods as per the terms of the contracts with the customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have been passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:
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(i)

(iif)

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from services is recognized in accounting period in which services are rendered. Revenue is recognized based
on the actual service provided till the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services be provided
(percentage of completion method).

Revenue from Construction Contracts

Revenue from contracts are recognised with reference to the stage of completion method in accordance with Ind
AS - 115. Obligations under the long term construction contracts are satisfied over time given that the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the group. Revenue and costs are recognized by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on
the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs,
except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion.

The outcome of a construction contract is considered as estimated reliably when (a) all critical approvals necessary
for commencement of the project have been obtained; (b) the stage of completion of the project reaches reasonable
level of development. The stage of completion is determined as a proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed up to the closing date bear to the estimated total costs of respective project. Profit is recognised when
the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably. When it is probable that the total cost will exceed the total
revenue from the contract, the expected loss is recognised immediately. For this purpose total contract costs are
ascertained on the basis of contract costs incurred and cost to completion of contracts which is arrived at by the
management based on current technical data, forecast and estimate of net expenditure to be incurred in future
including for contingencies etc.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probably recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profit less recognised losses exceed progress billing, the
surplus is shown as amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as the amounts
due to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included as a
liability as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by customer are included under
trade receivables.

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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(e)

(f)

(8)
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
(i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used till the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised.

Leases

A lease is classified at the inception date as a financial lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

As a Lessee:
Lease rentals are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where-

(i)  Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits the leased asset is
derived; or

(ii) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
As a Lessor:

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except
where-

(i)  Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit derived from the leased
asset is diminished; or

(ii) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
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(h)

(i)

(k)

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes cash
on hand, demand deposits , other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and book overdrafts. Book overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(i) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

Inventories

Inventories consists of raw materials, stores, work in progress, bought out components, loose tools and finished goods
and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises costs of purchases. Cost of work
in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the bases of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories
also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned
to individual items of raw materials and stores on weighted average basis, and to bought out components on specific
identification on individual cost basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Due allowance is estimated and made for obsolete items, wherever
necessary.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
(i) Classification

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
financial liabilities at amortised cost, as required by Ind AS 109. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of liabilities measured at amortised cost net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
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U]
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in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Investments and Other Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
. Those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
. Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are recognized at cost as per Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Instruments”
less impairment provision, if any, as per Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Financial Assets”.

(a) Debt Instruments measured at amortized cost- Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

(b) Equity Instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) - The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments other than in subsidiaries and joint venture at fair value through profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value of equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in other gain/ (losses) in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Group has not selected the irrevocable option of classifying investments to be carried at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for all financial assets is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The Group provides for expected credit loss allowance by taking into consideration historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the group operates. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

For trade receivables and due from customers, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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(iv) Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expires or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

(m) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

(n)

(o)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss and are included in other gains / losses. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if:

i it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
ii.  the cost of an item can be measured reliably.

Allitems of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment, if any.Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced.All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the group intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months.

(i) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual value, over
their estimated useful lives. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the
management’s expert which in a case is different than those specified by Schedule Il to the Act, in order to reflect
the actual usage of the assets as given below.The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the
assets.The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Class of Assets Useful Lives as followed by the management

Plant and Machinery 3to 20 years

Management believes that useful lives of these assets reflect the periods over which these assets are expected to be
used.

ii)  Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if, and only if, the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount and an impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in the
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount.These are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

Intangible Assets
(i) Computer Software

Costs incurred on computer software resulting in future economic benefits are capitalized as Intangible Assets.

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Cost of purchased
software are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

(ii) Amortization methods and periods
Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of three years.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.These are included in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

(iii) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired,
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unit for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 24 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method.

Preference Shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these Preference Shares are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are derecognised from the Consolidated Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/ losses.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 24 months after the reporting period.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part
of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and amount
of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre — tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The discount
rate does not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Contd.)

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation oramount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Employee Benefits

(i) Short —term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed
within 24 months after the year end and non - monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 24
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled.The obligations are presented as non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet if the entity does not expect actual settlement will occur within the operating cycle after the reporting period.

Employees’ State Insurance Scheme: Contribution to Central Government of India administered Employees’ State
Insurance Scheme for eligible employees is recognized as charge in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which they are accrued.

(ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave, sick leave and long service award are not expected to be settled wholly within 24
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.They are therefore measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.The benefits are discounted using the yield
on government securities at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
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related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least the operating cycle after the reporting period, regardless of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates defined benefit plans such as Gratuity, Post - employment medical obligations and Provident
Fund (administered by Independent Trust).

The Group provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment. The gratuity fund is administered by Independent Trustees. Plan assets are managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LICI).

The Group provides for post — retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees.The entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a
minimum service period.The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The Group has a provident fund benefit plan which is administered by the Independent Provident Fund Trust.
Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination
of employment. The Group make monthly contributions at specified percentage of the employees’ salary to such
Provident Fund Trust. The Group has an obligation to fund any shortfall in return on plan assets over the interest
rates prescribed by the authorities from time to time. In view of the Group’s obligation to meet the shortfall, it is
categorized as a defined benefit plan.

The liability or asset recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in respect of the above defined benefit plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting
period.The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets.This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.They are included in retained earnings in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether the equity
instruments or assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises of the

Fair values of the assets transferred;
Liabilities incurred to the former owners of acquired business;
Equity interests issued by group; and

Fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
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Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The excess of the:

. Consideration transferred;

o Amount of any non-controlling interest in acquired entity, and

. Acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying
the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase is recognized directly in equity as
capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

Contributed Equity

Equity Shares are classified as equity. The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written off
against Securities Premium Reserve.

Earnings Per Share
(i) Basic Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
. Profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Group

. By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for the effect
of all dilutive potential equity shares. (Note 37)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in their determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account

. The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity share,
and

. The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Principles of consolidation and Equity Accounting
- Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Holding Company has control. The Holding Company controls an entity when
it is exposed to or has right to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Holding Company. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets
and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Any exchange difference arising on
consolidation is recognised in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

The unaudited financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, its associates and joint venture have been prepared in
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accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Policies of its Country of Incorporation.
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combination.

The Holding Company combines the financial statements of itself and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively.

- Joint Arrangements

Under Ind AS 111 Joint arrangements, investment in joint arrangement is classified as either joint operation or joint
venture. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The Holding Company has a joint venture. The Financial Statements of the Joint
Venture of the Holding Company i.e. EMC MBE Contracting Company LLC whose carrying value in the Financial Statements
of the Holding Company is Rs. Nil (net of impairment) and has not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Results.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and note have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Il to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions.These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial
Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.The application of accounting policies requires
critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these consolidated
financial statements. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which the changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Going Concern Assumptions

Expected cost of completion of Contracts

Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for carried forward tax losses
Impairment of Trade Receivables and Due from Customers
Provisions, Claims and Contingent Liabilities

Estimation of Defined Benefits Obligation

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

W 0 N o Uk W N

Decommissioning Obligations

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in
the period in which the results are known.
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(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Freehold | Leasehold
Land Land

Building

Plant &
Equipment

Furniture &
Fixtures

Office
Equipment

Vehicles

Total Capital Work-
in-progress

Right to
Use Assets

1st April, 2020
Gross Block

Opening Block 289.00( 2,529.69
Additions - -
Disposals/ - -
Adjustments

13,365.40

19,265.72

45.16
(128.60)

1,068.52
3.00

438.52
9.04

137.70

(8.00;

37,094.55 482.37
57.20 1.14
(136.60) -

2,390.40

Closing Gross 289.00 2,529.69
Block

13,365.40

19,182.28

1,071.52

447.56

129.70

37,015.15 483.51

2,390.40

Accumulated
Depreciation
Opening 0.40 215.34
Accumulated
Depreciation
Depreciation - 57.00
charge during the
year

Disposals/ - -
Adjustments

4,213.02

536.00

15,197.23

805.01

(117.79)

883.00

43.86

400.91

12.03

(15.00)

92.46

7.78

(8.00)

21,002.36 -

1,461.68 -

(140.79) -

173.56

173.56

Closing 0.40 272.34
Accumulated
Depreciation

4,749.02

15,884.45

926.86

397.94

92.24

22,323.25 -

347.12

Net Block as at 288.60| 2,257.35
31st March, 2021

8,616.38

3,297.83

144.66

49.62

37.46

14,691.90 483.51

2,043.28

1st April, 2021
Gross Block

Opening Gross 289.00( 2,529.69
Block
Additions - -

Disposals/ - 4.00
Adjustments

13,365.40

2.00

19,182.28

54.04
(266.14)

1,071.52

1.25
(25.33)

447.56

9.95
(30.55)

129.70

(2.73)

37,015.15 483.51

65.25 -
(318.74) (0.89)

2,390.40

194.94
(2,137.64)

Closing Gross 289.00| 2,533.69
Block

13,367.40

18,970.18

1,047.44

426.96

126.97

36,761.66 482.62

447.70

Accumulated
Depreciation
Opening 0.40 272.34
Accumulated
Depreciation
Depreciation - 20.70
charge during the
year

Disposals/ - (10.17)
Adjustments

4,749.02

430.08

3.87

15,884.45

574.90

(89.96)

926.86

48.66

5.04

397.94

15.41

(41.13)

92.24

8.90

(1.04)

22,323.25 -

1,098.66 -

(133.40) -

347.12

168.98

(407.85)

Closing 0.40 282.87
Accumulated
Depreciation

5,182.97

16,369.39

980.56

372.22

100.10

23,288.51 -

108.25

Net Block as at 288.60| 2,250.82
31st March, 2022

8,184.43

2,600.79

66.88

54.74

26.87

13,473.15 482.62

339.45

Capital work-in-Progress ageing Schedule for the year ended March 31st,2022 & March 31st, 2021

Capital Work-in-Progress

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than
1 Year

1-2 Year

2-3 Year | More than
3Year

Total

31st March 2022

Software in Development

Project in Process

482.62

482.62

31st March 2021

Software in Development

1.11

1.11

Project in Process

The is Project is under dispute and completion is already overdue.
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Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the holding company and the subsidiary company McNally Sayaji Engineering
Limited (MSEL), the existing charges on the assets of the erstwhile Products Division of Holding Company for facilities enjoyed
by it will continue. Accordingly, working capital demand loans, cash credit facilities, term loans and other non fund based
facilities of MBECL are secured by assets including certain property, plant and equipment of the subsidiary company (net
written down value as at 31.03.2022 of Rs. 457 Lakhs ( 31.03.2021 Rs. 472 Lakhs) comprised in erstwhile Product Division of
MBECL (Kumardhubi Unit 1)[Refer Note 31]

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security
Refer note 39 for Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security by the Group.
(ii) Capital Commitments
There is no Capital Commitments for the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Note 4: Investment Property [Leasehold Land]

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Gross Block
Opening Block 397.42 397.42
Disposals / Adjustments - -
Closing Gross Block 397.42 397.42
IAccumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 39.00 36.00
For the Year 3.00 3.00
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 42.00 39.00
Net Block 355.42 358.42
Fair Value
Investment Property 2,250.00 2,250.00

Estimation of fair value

The fair valuation is based on report dated as on 21.05.2019 in active market for similar properties.The main inputs used are
quantum, area, location, demand, restrictive entry and trend of fair market rent in the area of property located.

The valuation is based on valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer. All resulting fair value estimates for
investment properties are included in level 2.

Note 5: Intangible Assets

Particulars Designs and Drawings| Computer Software * | Total | Goodwill on Consolidation
1st April, 2020
Gross Block
Opening Block 320.56 97.76| 418.32 1,162.64
Additions - 1.90 1.90 -
Closing Gross Block 320.56 99.66| 420.22 1,162.64
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 320.56 47.38| 367.85 -
Amortisation Charge for the year - 0.96 0.96 -
Other adjustments - - 0.09 -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 320.56 48.34| 368.90 -
Closing Net Block as at 31st March, - 51.32 51.32 1,162.64
2021
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Note 5: Intangible Assets

Particulars Designs and Drawings| Computer Software * | Total | Goodwill on Consolidation
1st April, 2021
Gross Block
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 320.56 99.66| 420.22 1,162.64
Additions - 5.00 5.00 -
Adjustment 2.00 2.00
Closing Gross Block 320.56 102.66| 423.22 1,162.64
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 320.56 48.34| 368.90 -
Amortisation charge for the year - 1.17 1.17 -
Adjustment - - - -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 320.56 49.51| 370.07 -
Closing Net Block as at 31st March, - 53.15 53.15 1,162.64
2022

* Computer software consists of other than internally generated intangible asset.

Note 6: Non-current Investments

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid-up)
Equity Instruments carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Quoted
10,960 (31st March, 2021 : 10,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each of Eveready 36.71 29.59
Industries India Limited
10,960 (31st March, 2021 : 10,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each of McLeod Russel 2.51 2.09
India Limited
Total (Equity Instruments) 39.22 31.68
Investment in Mutual Funds carried at fair value through profit or loss
Unquoted
362,970.078 (31st March, 2020 : 362,970.078) units of L&T Short Term Opportunities 78.62 89.02
Growth Fund
Total (Mutual Funds) 78.62 89.02
Total 117.84 120.70
Total Non-current Investments 117.84 120.70
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 39.22 31.68
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 78.62 89.02

(i) Investments pledged as security

Refer note 39 for Investments pledged as security by the Group.
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Note 7(a) : Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Unsecured

Trade Receivables - Considered good 1,08,005.27 1,17,242.91
[Trade receivables - Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
[Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 27,027.54 26,584.45
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (34,841.58) (34,466.32)
Total Trade Receivables 1,00,191.23 1,09,361.04
Current 99,252.23 1,08,738.97
Non-current 939.00 622.07
S Represents retention amount receivable beyond one year from reporting date.
Ageing for the year ended 31.03.2022

Particulars

Not Due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
6 months | -1 year 3 years

Undisputed Receivables - Considered 24,014.11| 6,555.60| 2,383.31| 7,698.03 12,275.87| 64,327.72
Good 11,400.80

"Undisputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk"

Undisputed Receivables - Credit - 2.16 5.56 359.97 216.79| 26,070.87| 26,655.35
Impaired

Less Allowance for Doubtful trade - - - - - - -
receivables

Disputed Receivables - Considered 7,148.21 - - 97.49| 7,656.94| 28,774.91| 43,677.55
Good

"Disputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significantincrease in credit risk"

Disputed Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - 372.19 372.19
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade - - - - - - -
receivables

Total Receivables 31,162.33| 6,557.76| 2,388.87| 8,155.49|19,274.53| 67,493.84| 1,35,032.81
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade 34,841.58
receivables (ECL)

Net Total Receivables 1,00,191.23
Ageing for the year ended 31.03.2021

Particulars

Not Due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
6 months | -1 vyear 3 years

Undisputed Receivables - Considered 23,788.08|16,712.31| 5,150.96|12,237.87| 5,162.76| 10,513.28| 73,565.24
Good

"Undisputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significantincrease in credit risk"

Undisputed Receivables - Credit - - - 70.00 161.00| 25,981.45| 26,212.45
Impaired

Less Allowance for Doubtful trade - - - - - - -
receivables
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Particulars
Not Due | Less than | 6 months | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
6 months | -1 year 3 years
Disputed Receivables - Considered 7,148.21 25.68 7,727.66| 9,899.72| 18,876.40| 43,677.67
Good
"Disputed Receivables - Which have - - - - - - -
significantincrease in credit risk"

Disputed Receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - 372.00 372.00
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade - - - - - - -
receivables
Total Receivables 30,936.29(16,737.98| 5,150.96| 20,035.52| 15,223.48 | 55,743.13| 1,43,827.36
Less Allowance for Doubtful trade 34,466.32
receivables (ECL)

Net Total Receivables 1,09,361.04
Note 7(b) : Cash and cash Equivalents
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 3,472.71 3,794.53
- in cash credit accounts 6.48 0.04
- Cheques on Hand - 12.00
Cash on hand 3.20 4.79
Bank Deposits with mauturity of less 3 months @ 1,019.88 11.87
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,502.27 3,823.23
Other bank balances

Earmarked balances with banks (refer note (i))@ 116.00 51.20
Deposits with bank - 314.52
Total other bank balances 116.00 365.72

(i) @ Earmarked balances Rs 116 with bank represent balances held for margin money against issue of bank guarantees and
Letter of Credit, having maturity of less than one year.

(ii) There are certain repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the reporting period

and prior periods.

*  The above figures are subject to balance confirmation

Note 7(c) : Loans (Current)

Particulars As at As at

31st March , 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Unsecured, Considered good
Loan to others 1,852.46 1,430.18
Total Loans 1,852.46 1,430.18
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. As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Unsecured, considered good

Banks deposit with maturity more than twelve months # - 209.58 - -
Security Deposits * 1,484.27 10.00 1,008.79 64.14
Deposit with Joint Venture 4,149.09 - - -
/Advance to Employees 3.17 - 55.18 -
Due from customers 3,009.21 - 598.64 -
Balance with Govt/Amount recoverable fromGovt 34.00 - - 14.00
Earnest Money deposit - 66.00 - 65.94
Less: Doubtful Earnest Money Deposit - - - (2.00)
Claims Recoverable 28,109.00 - 24,881.72 -
Others 111.77 499.00 81.31 338.00
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (81.67) - - -
Total other financial assets 36,818.85 784.58 26,625.64 480.08

# Balances with bank represent balances held for margin money against issue of bank guarantees Rs 195.00 Lakhs,Letter of
Credit Rs3.80 Lakhs and held with the Local Authorities Rs 10.78 Lakhs.

* ltincludes Rs 552 Lakhs deposit as per direction ofDelhi High court order against arbitration case.

Note 8 : Deferred tax assets (Net)

(A) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Deferred Tax Assets on :

Tax losses 57,589.94 57,589.94
Others 1,203.55 1,203.55
Total Deferred Tax Assets 58,793.49 58,793.49
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions (853.00) (853.00)
Net Deferred Tax Assets 57,940.49 57,940.49

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
(B) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 848.00 848.00
Other items 5.00 5.00
Total deferred tax liabilities 853.00 853.00
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions (853.00) (853.00)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities - -

The Group had recognised Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rs 57,940.49 Lakhs upto 31st March, 2019. The Group believes
that based on the infusion of fresh funds by the investors coming to the Holding Company, there will be adequate future
taxable profits available to the Company against which the Deferred Tax Assets can be utilised. However, the Grouphas not
recognised further Deferred Tax Assets during the subsequent years taking a conservative approach. {Also refer note 23(a) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements}.
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Note 9: Other Non-Current Assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Capital Advances - 4.99
Prepaid Rent 0.59 2.43
Balance with Statutory/Government Authorities 76.00 -
Others 57.41 141.99
Total Other Non-Current Assets 134.00 149.41
Note 10: Inventories
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Raw Materials* 2,241.30 2,951.35
Loose Tools 34.00 60.00
Work-in-Progress* 2,811.52 5,514.00
Finished Goods - 39.00
Stores and Spares 379.00 885.00
Total Inventories 5,465.82 9,449.35
* Amount of Written down value of inventories carried at NRV and recognised as
Exceptional item {Refer Note 35} 3,075.00 -
Note 11(a): Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance income tax 1,101.67 4,429.91
(net of provisions Rs. 3,972.21 Lakhs, Previous Year Rs. 3,972.21 Lakhs)
Total current tax assets (net) 1,101.67 4,429.91
Note 11(b): Other Current Assets (Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance to suppliers & others * 27,983.14 27,325.87
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (33.76) (33.76)
Balance with statutory/government authorities ** {Refer Note 31(d)} 16,267.42 18,530.27
Gratuity Receivable @ 50.79 28.00
Prepaid Expenses 591.61 815.10
Others 137.13 190.00
[Total Other Current Assets 44,996.32 46,855.47

* Balances shown are subject to confirmation and reconciliation with respective parties

* net of amounts written offin C.Y RsRs 119.72 Lakhs (PY Nil )
** |tincludes ITC's Rs. 140.94 Lakhs blocked by Department of GST.

@ Gratuity Acturial Valuation - Fair Value of plan assets is more than present value of obligation.
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Note 12: Equity Share Capital and Other Equity
12(A) Equity Share Capital

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Equity Shares Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPS)

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Authorised
As at 31st March, 2020 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00
As at 31st March, 2021 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00
As at 31st March, 2022 24,00,00,000 24,000.00 14,00,00,000 14,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
(i) Movements in Share Capital
As at 31st March, 2020 21,15,70,757 21,157.08
CCPS converted into Equity Shares - -
As at 31st March, 2021 21,15,70,757 21,157.08
Changes - -
As at 31st March, 2022 21,15,70,757 21,157.08 -

i) Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

Each Equity Share has a par value of Rs 10/-. It entitles the holder to participate in dividends, and to share upon liquidation
of the company in proportion to the number of shares held and amounts paid thereon. Every holder of Equity Shares
present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote

Terms and Rights attached to Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares(CCPS):

Each CCPS is compulsorily convertible into one Equity Share at any time within 18 months from the date of allotment. CCPS
shall have priority with respect to payment of dividend or repayment of capital over equity shares of the Company. The
holders of CCPS would not participate in the surplus assets and profits on winding up which may remain after the entire
capital has been repaid.Each CCPS would carry a dividend of 1% which would be non cumulative.

(i)

Shares of the company held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have a Holding Company.

(i)

Shares of the company held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have a Holding Company.

iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Equity Shares in the Company:

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding

Williamson Magor & Co Limited 2,23,18,952 10.55 2,53,18,952 11.97
Williamson Financial Services Limited 1,92,14,753 9.08 1,92,14,753 9.08
Babcock Borsig Limited 1,36,64,636 6.46 1,36,64,636 6.46
Sahal Business Private Limited 1,74,47 637 8.25 1,74,47 637 8.25
IL&FS Financial Services Limited 1,61,29,000 7.62 1,61,29,000 7.62
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 1,12,90,000 5.34 1,12,90,000 5.34
DMI Finance Private Limited - - 1,09,87,762 5.19
Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year| As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 % Change

during the year
Promoter Name No. of Shares | % of Total | No. of Shares | % of Total

Shares Shares

WILLIAMSON MAGOR & CO LIMITED 22318952 10.55 25318952 11.97 1.42
WILLIAMSON FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 19214753 9.08 19214753 9.08 -

160



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Annual Report 2021 - 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year| As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 % Change

during the year
BABCOCK BORSIG LIMITED 13664636 6.46 13664636 6.46 -
EMC LIMITED 10137689 4.79 10137689 4.79 -
MCLEOD RUSSEL INDIA LIMITED 3052295 1.44 3052295 1.44 -
KILBURN ENGINEERING LIMITED 854300 0.40 854300 0.40 -
BISHNAUTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 99400 0.05 99400 0.05 -
ISHA KHAITAN 24000 0.01 24000 0.01 -
AMRITANSHU KHAITAN 8000 0.00 8000 0.00 -
B M KHAITAN* 21 0.00 21 0.00 -
Total 6,93,74,046 7,23,74,046

* He was demised on 1st june 2019 but company has not received transmission request yet.

v) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash for the period of five years immediately preceeding
the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

On 30th March, 2017, the Company had allotted 4,16,21,273 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) atRs.
66 (including Security Premium ofRs. 56) per share for Rs. 27,470.04 Lakhs to the shareholders and debenture holders of
Vedica Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited for consideration other than cash, with whom the Company had entered into an
agreement on 17th February, 2017. Vide the same agreement entered into by the Company and Vedica Sanjeevani Projects
Private Limited on 17th February, 2017, the Company acquired 4,75,200 Equity Shares and 12,47,004 debentures of Vedica
Sanjeevani Projects Private Limited, as consideration for issued CCPS. The CCPS so allotted have been converted into Equity

Shares as per the terms.

Note 12(b) Reserves and Surplus

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Securities Premium 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05
Capital Redemption Reserve 101.00 101.00
General Reserve 1,766.63 1,766.63
Capital Reserve 344.28 344.28
Retained Earnings (2,37,147.21) (2,25,990.45)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (202.99) (123.17)
Other Reserves 83,804.27 85,148.70
Total Reserves and Surplus (38,464.98) (25,881.59)
(i) Securities Premium
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05
Closing balance 1,12,869.05 1,12,869.05

Nature and purpose:

Securities Premium has arisen on issue of Shares. The Reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013.
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(ii) Capital Redemption Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 101.00 101.00
Closing balance 101.00 101.00

Nature and purpose:

The Reserve is a non distributable reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, 2013.

(iii) General Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
)As per last Financial Statement 1,766.63 1,766.63
Closing balance 1,766.63 1,766.63

Nature and purpose:

The reserve is a part of retained earnings. This is available for distribution to the shareholders as a part of free reserve.

(iv) Capital Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 344.28 344.28
Closing balance 344.28 344.28
Nature and purpose:
Represents the amount transferred from the transferror company pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation.
(v) Retained Earnings
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
iAs per last Financial Statement (2,25,990.45) (2,21,551.35)
Net profit /(loss) for the year (11,254.61) (4,471.53)
Items of OCI directly transferred to retained earnings 71.34 32.43
IAdjustment/Other Adjustment for change in ownership interest 26.50 -
Closing balance (2,37,147.21) (2,25,990.45)

Nature and purpose:

This reserve & surplus represents the cumulative Profits/Loss of the Group and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013. The Retained Earnings is a part of Reserve & Surplus.

(vi) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement (123.17) (257.32)
Effects of exchange rate changes on Consolidation (79.82) 134.15
Closing balance (202.99) (123.17)

Nature and purpose:
Represents reserve created on account of consolidation of foreign subsidiary.
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Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
As per last Financial Statement 85,148.70 86,370.90
Reversal of Fair value gain on Financial Liabilities(refer note 47) (1,344.43) (1,222.21)
Closing balance 83,804.27 85,148.70

Nature and purpose:

This reserve represents fair valuation gain on valuation of long term borrowings measured at amortised cost. The reserve will
be utilised through unwinding as interest expense to be recognised over the period of the borrowings (refer note 47).

Note 13: Financial Liabilities
(a) Non-current borrowings

Particulars Coupon/ Interest rate As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Secured
Term Loans
ICICI Bank Auto Finance Loan - 3.25
Foreign currency loan - from banks (refer note (ii) & (iii)) 6 month LIBOR+4.15% 502.04 487.39
Unsecured
From Others
| Inter-Corporate deposits ( Refer Note No 47 & C below) 0.00% 14,788.69 13,444.42
9,75,000, 11.50% Non-Convertible Redeemable Cumulative Preference 11.50% 5,451.43 5,451.43
Shares
(Refer note A below & Note No 31(c))
Total non-current borrowings 20,742.16 19,386.49
Less: Liability for Redeemable Preference Shares (included in note 13(e)) 5,451.43 5,451.43
Less: Reclassified to Current Borrowings(note 13(b)) 502.04 487.39
Non-current borrowings 14,788.69 13,447.67

A. 11.50% Non-Convertible Redeemable Cummulative Preference Shares

(i)

Non-Convertible Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares were redeemable by the Holding Company in 8 equal quarterly
instalments commencing from 5th June, 2018 and the last installment payable was on 5th March, 2020 which has been on
default as on the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Holding Company has executed a non-disposal undertaking and a first ranking pledge agreement in favour of a
Preference Shareholder i.e. Tata Capital Financial Services Limited, over 6,331,487 Equity Shares of McNally Sayaji
Engineering Company Limited to ensure a security cover of an amount equivalent to Rs. 6,682 Lakhs.

B. External Commercial Borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited

(i) Terms of repayment:
Loan having a balance outstanding of USD 6.60 lakhs being the last instalment due on 23rd December, 2018 which has been
defaulted by the Holding Company as on the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

(ii) Security details

Refer Note 39 for details of assets charged as security against these borrowings.

Details of loan

Nature of Security

External Commercial Borrowings from
ICICI Bank Limited

First Charge by way of hypothecation on moveable assets / equipments both present and future
with minimum asset cover of 1.25 times on outstanding ECB facility.

The amount of interest expense not provided in the books of account on External Commercial Borrowing from ICICI Bank
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Limited by the Holding Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is Rs. 80.32 Lakhs and 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 77.98
Lakhs.(Refer to Note 49 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

C. Inter-Corporate Borrowings

The amount of interest expense not provided in the books of account on the Inter-Corporate Borrowings by the Holding
Company in Note 13(a) forthe financial year ended31st March, 2019 was Rs. 9,216.88 Lakhs. The same still remains unprovided.
(Refer to Note 49 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

D. Nature of Security, terms of repayment and rate of interest for Secured Borrowings for the Subsidiary Company, McNally
Sayaji Engineering Limited

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment and Rate of Interest

i. Year end term loan balance from ICICI Bank Ltd. of Rs
2,500 Lakhs (31.03.2021 Rs. 2,500 Lakhs) is secured by first
pari passu charge on all moveable and immovable fixed
assets of the Subsidiary Company (excluding Kumardhubi
Plant - Unit 1 of the Subsidiary Company) both present
and future and pledge over 26% shares of the Company
held by Holding Company. This facility is also guaranteed
by Holding Company. However, the pledge has since been
invoked by ICICI Bank Ltd with adjustment of Re 1 towards
the overdues under the facilities availed by the Subsidiary
Company from ICICI Bank Ltd. In view of impairment
in the investment value in the books of the Holding
Company, pursuant to above invocation aclaim of Rs 4079
Lakhs has been lodged against the subsidiary company by
the Holding Company. Being aggreived, no adjustments
have been made in the books of accounts to the effect
of adjustments made by ICICI Bank Ltd as well as claim
lodged by the Holding Company.

Repayable in 8 equal half yearly installments of Rs. 625 Lakhs
each, commenced from June 17, 2017 and at the end of every six
months thereafter. Interest is payable at the rate of 12.75% p.a. on
amount begins June 18, 2015 and every half year thereafter.

ii. Year end term loan balance from DBS Bank Ltd. of Rs
852 Lakhs (31.03.2021 Rs. 852 Lakhs) is secured by first
pari passu charge on all movable and immovable fixed
assets of the Holding Company (excluding Kumardhubi
plant - Unit 1) both present and future

Repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 125 Lakhs each
commenced from 3rd July, 2017. Interest is payable at the 13% p.a.
on monthly basis.

iii. Year end balance of Car Loans (term) from ICICI Bank
Ltd Rs. 3.25Lakhs (31 March, 2021 Rs. 6 Lakhs) to be
secured by hypothecation of the asset under finance.

Car Loans are repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs.
0.28 Lakhs each ending in January, 2023. Interest is payable at the
rate of 8.24%p.a.

Details of default by the Holding Company during the year in respect of Non-current Borrowings {including current maturities
of long term debts shown under Note No. 13(d)} are as under:

Name of the Shareholder/Lender

Various Preference Shareholders

ICICI Bank (Secured Long term borrowing (ECB))

Amount of Default Remarks
5,899.93 Amount of default persisting as
on the date of approval of these
ConsolidatedFinancial Statements
502.04

The Holding Company has been under CIRP and the lenders have lodged claim to Interim Ressoluation Professional as more
described in Note 44 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Details of default by the Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited during the year in respect of Non-current
Borrowings are as under:

The Subsidiary Company has been categorised as Non-Performing Asset by the lender banks, consequently, some of the lender
banks have stopped debiting interest on their debts and Subsidiary company has already been under Corporate Insolvency
Resolution process (CIRP) on and from11th February 2021 (Refer Note no. 49). The details of continuing defaults at the year end
in respect of Non-Current Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debts) are as follow :

Particulars Principal Interest*
Term Loans from Banks

-ICICI Bank # 2,500.00 107.00
-DBS Bank 852.00 50.00
[Total Term Loan - Default 3,352.00 157.00

*In addition to the above, the interest expense has not been provided in the books of account on the above borrowings by the
Subsidiary Company . (Refer to Note 49 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

#Term Loan facilities granted to the Subsidiary company Mcnally Sayaji Engineering Limited by ICICI Bank Limited are secured,
including against pledge over 23,37,211 numbers equity shares of the Company held by the company . The said pledge created
over 23,37,211 equity shares of the Company has been invoked by ICICI Bank Limited and a sum of Re.1/-has been adjusted
towards the over-dues under the facilities availed by the Subsidiary Company from ICICI Bank Limited. However, no provision
has been considered by Holding Company in its Financial Statements.

13(b) Current Borrowings
Particulars

Coupon/ Interest rate As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Loans repayable on demand
Secured
From banks (refer note(i))

1,98,741.46

Cash credit from banks 12.05% to 18.75% 1,96,373.78
Working capital demand loans from banks 12.5% to 13.50% 16,076.30 16,076.30
Unsecured

From others

Inter Corporate Borrowings (Refer Note No. 47) 15% to 18% 6,675.97 6,269.38
Total Current Borrowings 2,21,493.72 2,18,719.46

Less: Interest accrued (included in note 12(c))
Current Borrowings

2,21,493.72 2,18,719.46

(i) Details of loans Nature of Security

Cash Credit facility from consortium of banks and Working | A first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of the current
capital demand loans from banks. assets viz., stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods, finished
goods, stores and spares, bills Receivables including Receivables
from hire purchase/leasing, book debts and other movable
assets, both present and future. A first pari passu charge in favour
of the said Banks by way of third party charge on the movable
and fixed assets of the Kumardhubi Division owned by McNally
Sayaji Engineering Company Limited, (a Subsidiary Company).
A Corporate Guarantee from McNally Sayaji Engineering
Company Limited in favour of the BOI Limited Consortium
equivalent to the value of the property mortgaged by McNally
Bharat Engineering Company Limited. Charge on fixed assets
on subservient basis except ICICI to the extent of term loan.
The Working Capital Demand Loans have been guaranteed by one
of the directors to the tune of Rs. 10,000 Lakhs. Equity Shares of
MBE Coal & Mineral Technologies India Private Limited held by
the subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited are
pledged for Working Capital Demand Loans.
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Cash Credit facilities and Working Capital Demand Loansby
the Subsidiary Company

First pari passu charge on entire current assets of Subsidiary
Company. This facility is also secured by second pari passu charge
over theimmoveable and moveable fixed assets of the Kumardhubi
plant - Unit Il, Asansol unit, Baroda unit and Bangalore unit both

present and future.

Loans repayable on demand availed by MBE Coal &
Mineral Technology India Private Limited

“ICICI BANK Limited:

Secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of MBE Coal &
Mineral Technology India Private Limited’s entire stock of raw
materials, work-in-progress, semi-finished and finished goods,
consumable stores and spares and other movables including
book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding
monies, receivables, both present and future, in a form and
manner satisfactory to the bank, ranking pari passu with other
participating bank, if any and First charge over the movable
fixed assets of the Subsidiary company.and immovable property
situated at Kharagpur, West Bengal.

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited:

Secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of Subsidiary
Company’s entire stock of raw materials, work-in-progress, semi-
finished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and
other movables including book-debts, bills whether documentary
or clean, outstanding monies, receivables, both present and
future, in a form and manner satisfactory to the bank, ranking pari
passu with other participating bank, if any.

Further, Secured by Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company
in favour of ICICI Bank Limited and Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited.
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(ii) Details of default in respect of Current Borrowings of the Holding Company are as follow:

Name of the lender Amount of Remarks

Default
Principle

Indian Bank (Formerly know as Allahabad Bank) - Cash Credit 8,471.50

Axis Bank Limited - Cash Credit 20,449.79

Bank of Baroda - Cash Credit 4,165.21

Bank of India - Cash Credit 44,844.87

Canara Bank - Cash Credit 2,385.85

DCB Bank- Cash Credit 292.11

ICICI Bank - Cash Credit 18,405.66

IDBI Bank - Cash Credit 17,262.94

Karur Vysya Bank - Cash Credit 8,596.24

Lakshmi Vilas Bank - Cash Credit 96.06

Oriental Bank of Commerce Bank - Cash Credit 1,077.08| Amount of default persisting as on the

Punjab National Bank - Cash Credit 14,966.19| date of approval of these Consolidated

Standard Chartered Bank- Cash Credit 2,571.24 Financial Statements

State Bank Of India - Cash Credit 25,468.29

UCO Bank - Cash Credit 485.69

Union Bank - Cash Credit 15,073.17

Punjab National Bank (Formerly know United Bank of India) - 53.54

Cash Credit

Cash Credit Total Default 1,84,665.43

Axis Bank Limited - Working Capital Demand Loan 12,660.40

Standard Chartered Bank- Working Capital Demand Loan 3,415.90

Working Capital Demand Loan Total Default 16,076.30

Inter-Corporate Borrowings Total Default 1,905.00

The amount of interest expense not provided on Current Bank Borrowings and Inter-Corporate Borrowings for the year ended
31st March 2022 is Rs.32,117.65 Lakhs and Rs. 262.00 Lakhs and ( 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 31,546.61 Lakhs and Rs. 190.80
Lakhs) respectively.

(iii) Details of default in respect of Current Borrowings of the Subsidiary Company are as follow:

Particulars Principal Interest*

Loan from Bank Repayable on Demand

-ICICI Bank (including Overdraft) 3,900 -
-DBS Bank 1,219 66
-IDBI Bank 1,500 65
-State Bank of India 3,544 -
-Kotak Mahindra Bank 2,068 -
Total Loan from Bank Repayable on Demand -Default 12,231 131
Total Inter-Corporate Loans- Default 4,924 66

*In addition to the above, the interest expense has not been provided in the books of account on the above bank borrowings and
Inter Corporate Borrowings.(Refer note49)

13(c) Trade payables

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
[Trade Payables due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises (Refer note 40) 540.96 407.81
[Trade Payables other than Micro, Small and Medium enterprises 25,322.35 26,062.56
Total Trade Payables 25,863.31 26,470.37
Current 25,863.31 26,469.69
Non-current - 0.68

167



McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Trade payables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Lessthan1l | 1-2years 2-3years |More than3 Total
year years

MSME 10.00 108.72 236.02 21.00 104.98 480.72
Others - 6,892.19 4,299.89 3,499.23| 10,097.90| 24,789.21
Disputed Dues - MSME - 10.82 7.45 4.08 37.89 60.24
Disputed Dues - Others - 1.39 5.73 11.66 514.65 533.43
G.Total 25,863.60

Trade payables Ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Lessthan1 | 1-2years 2-3years |More than3 Total
year years
MSME - 210.22 24.48 70.50 42.57 347.77
Others - 10,137.74 4,106.20 4,917.85 6,367.49| 25,529.28
Disputed Dues - MSME - 18.27 4.08 - 37.69 60.04
Disputed Dues - Others - 13.73 21.23 - 498.32 533.28
G.Total 26,470.37
13(d) Lease Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Non-current 257.88 2,453.10
Lease Liability 257.88 2,453.10
Current 129.60 40.00
Lease Liability 129.60 40.00
13(e) Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Current
Current maturities of long-term debt 3,857.04 3,842.70
Interest accrued on borrowings and others @ 4,830.15 4,830.15
Liabililty for Redeemable Preference Shares 5,451.43 5,451.43
Capital Creditors 13.00 18.51
Employee Benefits Payable 1,096.03 1,539.01
Security Deposits 90.29 90.30
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 448.50
Liabilities for Expenses $ 726.43 953.33
Others 224.14 419.03
[Total Other Current Financial Liabilities 16,737.01 17,592.97

@ For interest accrued and due on bank borrowings as at 31st March 2019; after that not provided, refer Note 13 (a) and

13(b)
* Under Reconciliation
S includes primarily Creditors for other expenses.
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Provisions

-Warranty 68.00 - 86.06 -
-Anticipated loss on contracts - 145.00 - 165.11
-Decommissioning obligations 75.30 - 75.30 -
-Gratuity 68.04 328.98 70.13 402.49
-Others 19.61 221.37 34.51 224.79
Total Provisions 230.95 695.34 266.00 792.39

(i) Information about individual provisions and significant estimates

Warranty:

"Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of the
reporting period. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year. Management estimates the provision based
on historical warranty claim information and any recent trends that may suggest future claims could differ from historical

amounts

The Group offers 12 to 18 months warranties for its products. Management estimates the related provision for future warranty
claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that might suggest that past cost information
may differ from future claims. The assumptions made in relation to the current period areconsistent with those in the prior year.
As at 31st March, 2022, this particular provision had a carrying amount of Rs 68.00 lakhs (31st March, 2021 Rs 94.89
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lakhs). Where claims costs differ by 10% from management's estimates, thewarranty provisions would be an estimated Rs 6.80
lakhs higher or lower (31st March, 2021: Rs 9.49 lakhs higher or lower).

Anticipated Loss on Contracts:

A provision for anticipated loss is recognised where it is probable that the estimated contract costs are likely to exceed the total
contract revenue.

Decommissioning obligations:

Provision for decommissioning obligations relates to equipments erected at the construction site which are required to be
decommissioned at the time of handing over the construction site to the customer.

(ii)) Movements in provisions

Movements in decommissioning obligation during the financial year, are set out below:

Particulars Warranty Anticipated loss on | Decommissioning
contracts Obligations

As at31st March, 2020 103.52 145.10 103.86

Charged/(credited) to Consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss

- additions/Adjustment 3.42 - -

- amount used (20.88) - -

- unused amounts reversed - - -

- unwinding of discount - - (28.56)

As at31st March, 2021 86.06 145.10 75.30

Charged/(credited) to Consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss

- additions/Adjustment 12.94 - -

- amount used 31.00 - -

- unwinding of discount - - -

As at31st March, 2022 68.00 145.10 75.30

(iii) Leave Obligations

In the Holding Company, at present, there is no accumulation of leaves which is encashable in future years.

(iv) Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination
is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number
of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Group makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The
Group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on
estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the
year are as follows:

Particulars Present value Fair value of Net amount

of obligation plan assets
April 1, 2020 1,108.66 697.34 411.32
Current service cost 73.54 - 73.54
Interest expense/income 77.58 41.99 35.59
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 151.12 41.99 109.13

170



Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Annual Report 2021 - 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Present value Fair value of Net amount
of obligation plan assets
Remeasurements -
- Return on plan assets - 5.10 (5.10)
- Due to financial assumptions 8.39 - 8.39
- Due to experience adjustments 7.05 - 7.05
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 15.44 5.10 10.34
Employer contributions - 96.39 (96.39)
Benefit payments (284.76) 284.76 -
31st March, 2021 990.48 545.86 444.62
Particulars Present value Fair value of Net amount
of obligation plan assets

April 1, 2021 990.48 545.86 444.62
Current service cost 66.34 - 66.34
Interest expense/(income) 68.17 36.10 32.07
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 134.51 36.10 98.41
Remeasurements -
- Return on plan assets - (7.53) 7.53
- Due to financial assumptions (0.39) - (0.39)
- Due to experience adjustments (84.93) - (84.93)
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (85.32) (7.53) (77.79)
Employer contributions - 118.99 (118.99)
Benefit payments (144.11) (144.10) (0.01)
31st March , 2022 895.54 549.32 346.22

Major Categoriesof Plan Assets as a percentage of fair value of the total plan assets:

The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Group does not have any liberty to manage the
funds provided to insurance companies. Thus the composition of each major category of plan assets has not been disclosed.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of funded obligations 895.54 990.48
Fair value of plan assets 549.32 545.86
Deficit of funded plans 346.22 444.62
The significant actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March , 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Discount rate 7.10% 6.90%
Salary escalation 4.00 - 6.00% 4.00 - 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.10% 6.90%
Withdrawal rate 1.00-8.00% 1.00-8.00%

Mortality rate

In accordance with standard table
Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
ultimate
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The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Assumption Increase/ Assumption Rate Amount of increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in defined
benefit obligations as at
March 31, 2022
Base scenerio - - 895.80
Discount rate Increase by 1% 838.74
Discount rate Decrease by 1% 944.54
Salary escalation Increase by 1% 947.54
Salary escalation Decrease by 1% 834.60
Withdrawal rate Increase by 1% 898.21
Withdrawal rate Decrease by 1% 874.90

The above sensitivity analyses are based on reasonably possible changes in assumptions while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bonds. If the plan assets underperform
this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan asset investments is with the Life Insurance Corporation of India which administers
the fund. The investments are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and reduce plan deficit.

The maturity profile of gratuity liability is as follows:

Year As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than a year 92.00 119.10
Between 1 to 2 years 85.93 90.01
Between 2 to 5 years 310.75 344.86
More than 5 years 521.18 3,925.03

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.58years (31st March, 2021 - 5.705 years).
The contribution expected to be made by the Group for the year ended 31st March , 2023 is Rs. 115.15 Lakhs.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Group does not
have any liberty to manage the funds provided to insurance companies. The present value of
the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to
the Government of India bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan

deficit.
Interest risk A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.
Life expectancy The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate

of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the
life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increasein the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan
liability.
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(v) Provident fund

The Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the trust's investments compared to the administered
interest rates on an annual basis. These administered rates are determined annually predominantly considering the social
rather than economic factors and in most cases, the actual return earned by the company has been higher in the past years. The
actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by the Actuarial Society of India
and based on the assumptions provided below, there is no shortfall as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021.

In accordance with actuarial valuation done for interest rate guarantee, the fund has sufficient assets against the defined
benefit liability and hence no further liability arises for interest rate guarantee.

Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest rate guarantee under the Deterministic approach:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate 7.15% 6.90%
Guaranteed interest rate 8.10% 8.50%
Expected average remaining Working life (in years) 10.99 11.95

The Group contributed B 225.62 lakhs and @ 289.72 lakhs during the year ended 31st March , 2022 and 31st March 31, 2021,
respectively, and the same has been recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the head employee

benefit expenses.
Risks arising from defined benefit obligations

The defined benefit obligation planstypically expose the group to actuarial risks i.e. investment risk, interest risk, longevity risk

and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest risk A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan assets.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate

of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increasein the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Note 15: Other Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

31st March , 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Advance from customers 4,814.26 1,805.48
Statutory Tax Payables 748.02 671.83
Due to Customers - 62.49
Dividend Distribution Tax on preference dividend 91.76 91.76
Benevolent fund 113.04 113.04
Others 0.77 0.45
Total Other Liabilities 5,767.85 2,745.05
Current 5,767.85 2,745.05
Non-current - -
Note 16: Revenue from operations
The Group derives the following types of revenue:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Contract Revenue and Sale of Equipment 40,757.10 48,575.56
Sale of Services 790.00 1,017.93
Other Operating Revenue 879.64 558.36
Total Revenue from Operations 42,426.74 50,151.85
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Note 17: Other Income and Other Gains/(Losses)
(a) Other Income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interest Income from Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 3,512.82 2,273.29
Interest Income 412.42 217.80
Provision/Liabilities no longer required written back 674.00 166.05
Provision for Warranty written back 26.00 -
IAllowance for Bad Debts Written Back - 149.61
Expected credit loss/gain on trade receivables and due from customers written 1,689.45 -
back
Lease liability written back 545.28 -
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 80.99 -
Net Foreign Exchange Gain 12.00 39.03
Corporate Guarantee Commission 147.35 147.35
Miscellaneous Income 3.93 12.70
Duty Drawback Income 19.01 -
Total Other Income 7,123.24 3,005.82
(b) Other gains/(losses)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets (investments) measured at fair value through (2.87) 27.82
profit or loss
Total Other Gains/(losses) (2.87) 27.82
Total Other Income and Other Gains/(Losses) (a+b) 7,120.37 3,033.64
Note 18(a): Cost of materials consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Raw Materials at the beginning of the year 2,951.34 3,319.91
IAdd: Purchases 9,376.90 9,516.43
Less: Raw Materials at the end of the year 2,239.82 (2,951.34)
Less: Transfer to exceptional items at the end of the year 127.00 -
Total Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 9,961.42 9,885.00
IAdd: Consumption of bought out components 11,461.21 11,106.44
Total Cost of Materials Consumed 21,422.63 20,991.44
Note 18(b): Changes in Inventories of Work-in-progress and Finished Goods
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Opening balance
Work-in progress 5,514.23 6,858.00
Finished goods 38.77 62.00
Total Opening balance 5,553.00 6,920.00
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Closing balance
Work-in progress 2,811.52 5,514.23
Finished goods - 38.77
Total Closing balance 2,811.52 5,553.00
Less: Transfer to Exceptional Item 2,949.48 -
Total Changes in Inventories of Work-in-progress and Finished Goods (208.00) 1,367.00
Note 19: Employee benefit expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 6,576.75 6,798.63
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 357.85 443.54
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 248.70 321.83
Total Employee Benefits Expense 7,183.30 7,564.00
Note 20: Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit 432.28 359.00
or loss
Interest Expense on Fair Value of Revenue(Net) 382.23 937.55
Discounting on fair valuation of financial instruments on amortised cost 4,267.36 3,007.70
Unwinding of discount on provisions 10.66 312.37
Total Finance Costs 5,092.53 4,616.62
Note 21: Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,268.28 1,620.90
Depreciation on Investment Properties 3.00 3.00
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1.17 0.96
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1,272.45 1,624.86
Note 22: Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Consumption of Stores and Spares 928.93 763.39
Fabrication and Other Charges 1,401.01 1,379.68
Power & Fuel 529.20 700.33
Rent 190.73 263.60

Repairs and Maintenance :
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Buildings 6.00 11.09
Plant and Machinery 51.70 50.38
Others 54.02 64.31
Legal & Professional Fees 1,698.69 1,788.53
Insurance 197.32 314.47
Commission Expenses 9.69 9.00
Director's Fees 8.60 10.60
Rates & Taxes 144.48 43.58
\VAT/ CST written off 2,174.90 -
Cartage & Freight 348.26 309.64
Bank Charges 1,198.01 1,738.93
Travelling 559.21 554.83
Provision for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables and due from customers - 634.93
Duty drawback Claim written off 30.22 -
Provision/Allowance for Doubtful Debts 1,898.47 151.00
Provision for Future Foreseeable Losses in Construction Contracts (1,199.11) (757.51)
Advance written off 385.72 -
Net Foreign Exchange Loss 100.81 5.36
Provision for warranty 4.53 3.62
Liquidated Damages Expenses - 11.99
Royalty - 10.00
Payment to Auditors 48.76 54.41
Subscriptions and donations 2.00 1.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,194.51 1,413.99
Total Other Expenses 11,966.65 9,531.16

Note 23: Income tax expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and
how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in

relation to the Group’s tax positions.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year - -

Provision of earlier years written back (22.00) -

Total current tax expense (22.00) -

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets - -

(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities - -

Total Deferred Tax Expense/(Credit) - -

Total (22.00) -

The effective tax rate and the applicable tax rates for recognition of deferred tax income is same. The applicable tax rate is based

on the enacted tax rates.
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The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses. The Group has concluded that the deferred tax
assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plan and budget for the
Group.

Note 24: Capital Management
Capital Management

The Group strives to manage its capital efficiently with a view to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to bring
returns to its shareholders and stakeholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on management's judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day to day needs. The amount of capital in proportion
to risk is considered for capital structure management in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future developments and growth of its business. For
the purpose of Group's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Group manages
its capital structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements ofthe financial
covenants. However, in view of certain adverse factors and challenges faced by the Group over past few years as explained
in Note 44 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, networth of the Company has been adversely impacted. The Board of
Directors of the Holding Company expects that overall financial health of the Company would improve upon submission of
resolutaion plan by the committee of Creditors. However, one of its subsidiary, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited, has been
drawn to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). The decision is awaited.

Loan Covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Group is required to comply with various financial covenants. The Group
has been under financial stress due to external factors. EBITDA margins of the Group have not been sufficient to service interest/
principal repayment even after infusion of funds by the promoters from time to time during the earlier years. The Group has
not been able to complywith some of the covenants during the current as well as the previous years. The Holding Company
and one of its Subsidiary Companies, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited has persisting default in repayment of borrowings
from Banks and Other Borrowings as on 31st March, 2022 as disclosed in Note 13(a) and 13(b) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Note 25: Risk Management

The Group's activities is exposed to credit risk,liquidity risk and market risk.

The Group's risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Group's operating units.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment of excess liquidity.

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from Cash and Cash Equivalents, other bank balances, investments and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding
receivables and due from customers.

(i) Credit Risk Management

The Group assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on assumptions, inputs and factors specific
to the class of financial assets.

VL1: High-quality assets, negligible credit risk

VL2: Quality assets, low credit risk

VL3: Standard assets, moderate credit risk

VL4: Substandard assets, relatively high credit risk
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VL5: Low quality assets, very high credit risk
VL6: Doubtful assets, credit impaired

Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the
internal rating model.

Financial Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group or where payer/borrower does not have financial capability to repay its debts. Where loans or
receivables have been written off, the group continues to engage in enforcement activities to attempt to recover the receivable
dues.

(ii) Provision for Expected Credit Losses

The Group provides for Expected Credit Loss of trade receivables, due from customers and other financial assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual
credit loss experience and past trends. Wherever required, past trend is adjusted to reflect the effects of the current conditions
and forecasts of future conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical data is based, and to remove effects of
the conditions in the historical period that are not relevant to the future contractual cash flows.

Year ended 31st March, 2022

(a) Expected Credit loss for Loans & Investments, Expenses Recoverables and other Financial Assets

Particulars Asset group Internal | Estimated | Expected Expected Carrying
credit gross probability Credit amount
rating carrying of Losses net of

amount at default impairment
default provision

Loss allowance Financial Assets for which Loans VL3 1,852.46 - - 1,852.46

measured at 12 months | credit risk has not increased | Investments VL1 117.84 - - 117.84

expected credit losses | significantly since initial Claims Recoverable VL3 34,474.51 - 6,362.14| 28,112.37

recognition Others VL1 9,494.43 - - 9,494.43

Loss allowance Financial Assets for which Security deposits/ VL6 2.00 100% 2.00 -

measured at life-time credit risk has increased Earnest Money

Expected Credit Losses | significantly and credit- Deposits

impaired

During the year, the Holding Company has made provision for expenses recoverable wherein it does not expect to receive
future cash flows Rs. 846.81 Lakhs.

(b) Expected Credit Loss for Due from Customers, Trade Receivables and Claims Recoverable under simplified approach

Particulars Internal Due from Trade Claims
credit rating | customer | Receivables | Recoverable

Gross Carrying Amount 3,009.21| 1,35,032.81 34,474.51

Expected Credit Losses (Loss LOS_S a||f>wance measured - 34,841.58 6,362.14

allowance provision) at life-time expected VL3

Carrying amount (net of impairment) | credit losses 3,009.21] 1,00,191.23 28,112.37
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(a) Expected Credit Loss for Loans & Investments, Expenses Recoverables and other Financial Assets

Particulars Asset group | Internal | Estimated | Expected | Expected | Carrying
credit gross probability | credit |amount net
rating carrying of losses of

amount at | default impairment
default provision

Loss allowance Financial assets for Loans VL3 1,430.18 - - 1,430.18
measured at 12 month | which credit risk Investments VL1 120.70 - - 120.70
Expected Credit Losses | has not increased Claims VL3 30,400.08 -| 5515.33| 24,884.75

significantly since Recoverable

initial recognition Others VL1 2,224.00 - - 2,224.00
Loss allowance Financial assets for Security VL6 2.00 100% 2.00 -
measured at life-time which credit risk has | deposits
Expected Credit Losses |increased significantly

and credit-impaired

During the year, the Holding Company has made provision for expenses recoverable wherein it does not expect to receive

future cash flows Rs. 893.32Lakhs.

(b) Expected Credit Loss for Trade Receivables and due from Customers under simplified approach

Particulars Internal Due from Trade Claims
credit rating | customer | Receivables | Recoverable

Gross Carrying Amount 288.79| 1,43,827.36 30,400.08

Expected Credit Losses Loss allowance .| 34466.32] 551533

(Loss Allowance Provision) measured at Iife—time VL3

Carrying Amount (net of Impairment) expected credit losses 288.79| 1,09,361.04 24,884.75

(iii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provisions- Security deposits/ Earnest Money Deposits

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance

Loss Allowance

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

measured at 12 | Financial assets for which credit| Financial assets for which credit
month expected | risk has increased significantly risk has increased significantly
losses and not credit-impaired and credit-impaired
Loss allowance as on 31st March, - 2.00
2020
Loss allowance as on 31st March, - 2.00
2021
Loss allowance as on 31st March, - -
2022
(iv) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables & due from customers under simplified approach
Particulars Trade Due from Total loss
Receivables customers allowance
Loss allowance as on 31st March, 2020 32,170.81 - 32,170.81
Changes in loss allowance 2,295.51 - 2,295.51
Loss allowance as on 31st March, 2021 34,466.32 - 34,466.32
Changes in loss allowance 375.26 - 375.26
Loss allowance as on 31st March, 2022 34,841.58 - 34,841.58
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Significant Estimates and Judgements
Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, industry practices existing market conditions and business environment as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close net market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below)
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.In addition, the Group's liquidity management policy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring Balance
Sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

(i)Maturity of Financial Liability

Thetables belowanalyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
all non-derivative financial liabilities, and net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual cash flows, balances due within 12 months and more than 12 months.

Contractual maturities of Financial Less than 12 months to More than Total
Liabilities (31st March, 2022) 12 months 24 months 24 months

Non Derivatives

Borrowings* 2,30,802.19 - 14,788.69 2,45,590.87
Interest Accrued 4,830.15 - - 4,830.15
Trade Payables 25,863.31 - - 25,863.31
Capital Creditors 13.00 - - 13.00
Employee Benefits payable 1,096.03 - - 1,096.03
Lease Liability 129.60 129.60 128.28 387.48
Security Deposits 90.29 - - 90.29
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 - - 448.50
Liabilities for Expenses 726.43 - - 726.43
Others 224.14 - - 224.14
Total Non Derivative Financial 2,64,223.64 129.60 14,916.97 2,79,270.21
Liabilities

*Excludes the amount of Fair Value Gain recognised by the Holding Company, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities
Rs.83,804.25 Lakhs

Contractual maturities of Financial Less than 12 months to More than Total
Liabilities (31st March, 2021) 12 months 24 months 24 months

Non Derivatives

Borrowings* 2,28,013.57 13,447.67 2,41,461.24
Interest Accrued 4,830.15 - - 4,830.15
Trade Payables 26,469.69 - 0.68 26,470.37
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Contractual maturities of Financial Less than 12 months to More than Total
Liabilities (31st March, 2021) 12 months 24 months 24 months

Capital Creditors 18.51 - - 18.51
Employee Benefits payable 1,539.01 - - 1,539.01
Lease Liability 40.00 40.00 2,413.10 2,493.10
Security Deposits 90.30 - - 90.30
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 - - 448.50
Liabilities for Expenses 953.33 953.33
Others 419.03 - - 419.03
Total Non Derivative Financial Liabilities 2,62,822.10 40.00 15,861.45 2,78,723.54

*Excluding the amount of Fair Value Gain recognised by the Holding Company, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities

Rs. 85,148.69 Lakhs.
(C) Market Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily with respect to the USD
and EUR. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the group's
functional currency . The risk is measured through the expected foreign currency cash flows based on the Group's receipt and
repayment schedule for recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than &. The objective of the hedging
is to minimize the volatility of the INR cash flows of such recognised assets and liabilities.

(a)Foreign Currency Risk Exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. Lakhs is as follow:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
usD EUR ZAR GBP usD EUR ZAR GBP

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 243.00| 2,023.79 - - 142.00 2,139.12 - -
Advance to Supplier 36.00 4.00 - - 189.00 18.00 - -
Net exposure to foreign 279.00| 2,027.79 - - 331.00| 2,157.12 - -
currency risk (assets)
Financial Liabilities
Foreign Currency Loan 502.04 - - - 487.39 - - -
Trade Payables 114.26| 1,129.25 3.92 2.00 173.83| 1,269.02 3.53 2.00
Advance from Customers 29.00 1,575.72 - - 210.00 1,937.61 - -
Net exposure to foreign 645.30| 2,704.97 3.92 2.00 871.22| 3,206.63 3.53 2.00
currency risk (liabilities)
(b)Sensitivity:
Impact on Profit

Particulars Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

USD sensitivity

INR/USD -Increase by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)*

(18.32)

(27.01)

INR/USD -Decrease by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)*

18.32

27.01
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Particulars Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax
EUR sensitivity
INR/EUR-Increase by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* (33.86) (52.48)
INR/EUR-Decrease by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* 33.86 52.48
ZAR sensitivity
INR/ZAR-Increase by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* (0.20) (0.18)
INR/ZAR-Decrease by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* 0.20 0.18
GBP sensitivity
INR/GBP-Increase by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* (0.10) (0.10)
INR/GBP-Decrease by 5% (31st March, 2020-5%)* 0.10 0.10

* Holding all other variables constant

(ii) Cash flow andfair value interest rate risk

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. During the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021, the group's borrowings at variable rate were
mainly denominated in INR.

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. These are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined
in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest
rates.

(a)Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes at end of reporting period are as follow:

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

\Variable rate borrowings 2,18,674.79 2,16,783.41
Fixed rate borrowings* 26,916.08 25,165.23
Total borrowings 2,45,590.87 2,41,948.64

The Group has not entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against fluctuating market interest rates.

* Including interest free ICDs availed by the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 14,788.67 Lakhs (31st March, 2021: 13,444.26
Lakhs) arising due to conversion of amount received from certain companies into long term borrowings.

*Excluding the amount of Fair Value Gain recognised by the Holding Company, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities Rs.
83,804.25 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 : Rs. 85,148.70 Lakhs).

(b)Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Increase/(Decrease) in profit before tax
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Interest rates increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) * (91.54) (91.54)

Interest rates decrease by 50 basispoints (50 bps) * 91.54 91.54

* Holding all other variables constant

However, the Holding Company and one of its Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited have not recognised
interest expense during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. (Refer Note 49 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Note 26: Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at 31st March,
2022 and 31st March, 2021.
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Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
FVTPL FVOCI |Amortised Cost| FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Cost

Financial Assets

Investments

- Equity instruments 39.22 - - 31.68 - -
- Mutual funds 78.62 - - 89.02 - -
Trade Receivables - - 1,00,191.23 - -1 1,09,361.04
Loans - - 1,852.46 - - 1,430.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 4,502.27 - - 3,823.23
Other Bank Balances - - 116.00 - - 365.72
Security deposits - - 5,643.37 - - 1,072.93
Advance to Employees - - 3.17 - - 55.18
Due from customers - - 3,009.21 - - 598.64
Deposits with bank - - 209.58 - - -
Claims Recoverable - - 28,109.00 - - 24,881.72
Others - - 629.10 - - 497.25
Total Financial Assets 117.84 - 1,44,265.39 120.70 -1 1,42,085.89

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - 2,45,590.87 - -1 2,41,461.24
Interest accrued - - 4,830.15 - - 4,830.15
Trade payables - - 25,863.31 - - 26,470.37
Capital creditors - - 13.00 - - 18.51
Employee Benefits payable - - 1,096.03 - - 1,539.01
Lease Liability - - 387.48 - - 2,493.10
Security deposits - - 90.29 - - 90.30
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares - - 448.50 - - 448.50
Liabilities for Expenses - - 726.43 - - 953.33
Others - - 224.14 - - 419.03

Total Financial Liabilities

2,79,270.20

2,78,723.54

*Excluding the amount of Fair Value Gain recognised by the Holding Company, under Other Reserves, on Financial Liabilities Rs.

83,804.25 Lakhs (31st March, 2021 : Rs. 85,148.70 Lakhs)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring

fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31st March, 2022

Financial Assets

Financial instruments at FVTPL

Listed Equity Investments 39.22 - - 39.22
Mutual Funds - 78.62 - 78.62
Total Financial Assets 39.22 78.62 - 117.84
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Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value
At 31st March , 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Financial instruments at FVTPL

Listed Equity Investments 31.68 - - 31.68
Mutual Funds - 89.02 - 89.02
Total Financial Assets 31.68 89.02 - 120.70

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using market approach and
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
Derivatives are valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs such as foreign exchange spot rates and
forward rates at the end of the reporting period, yield curves, risk free rate of returns, volatility etc., as applicable.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one or more
of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit
risk of counterparty.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is considered to be equal
to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are non-current in nature, the
same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis. Similarly, unquoted equity
instruments where most recent information to measure fair value is insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements, cost has been considered as the best estimate of fair value.

There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. The Group has not classified any
material financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
during the year.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date

(iii) Fair value of the Financial Asset and Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Carrying Amount | Fair Value | Carrying Amount | Fair Value

Financial Assets

Security deposits 5,643.37 5,643.37 1,072.93 1,072.93
Loans 1,852.46 1,852.46 1,430.18 1,430.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,502.27 4,502.27 3,823.23 3,823.23
Other Bank Balances 116.00 116.00 365.72 365.72
Due from customers 3,009.21 3,009.21 598.64 598.64
Advance to Employees 3.17 3.17 55.18 55.18
Deposits with bank 209.58 209.58 - -
Trade receivables 1,00,191.23| 1,00,191.23 1,09,361.04 | 1,09,361.04
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Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Carrying Amount | Fair Value | Carrying Amount | Fair Value

Claims Recoverable 28,109.00| 28,109.00 24,881.72| 24,881.72

Others 629.10 629.10 497.25 497.25

Total Financial Assets

1,44,265.40

1,44,265.40

1,42,085.89

1,42,085.89

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 2,45,590.87 | 2,45,590.87 2,41,461.24| 2,41,461.24
Interest accrued 4,830.15 4,830.15 4,830.15 4,830.15
Trade payables 25,863.31| 25,863.31 26,470.37| 26,470.37
Capital creditors 13.00 13.00 18.51 18.51
Employee Benefits payable 1,096.03 1,096.03 1,539.01 1,539.01
Lease Liability 387.48 387.48 2,493.10 2,493.10
Security deposits 90.29 90.29 90.30 90.30
Dividend Accrued on Preference Shares 448.50 448.50 448.50 448.50
Liabilities for Expenses 726.43 726.43 953.33 953.33
Others 224.14 224.14 419.03 419.03

Total Financial Liabilities

2,79,270.21

2,79,270.21

2,78,723.55

2,78,723.55

Trade Receivables, advances to suppliers and expenses recoverable are subject to confirmation,reconciliation and settlement
of certain disputes from respective parties and consequential reconciliation and adjustments arising therefrom, if any. The
management, however, does not expect any material variation. Management is also hopeful for recovery/realisation of these
assets in the normal course of business. Hence, in view of the management, Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated

at carrying value which is equal to their fair value.

Initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities are at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost.

Note 27: Related Party Disclosures

As required by Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures are given below:

(a) Subsidiaries

(b)

(c)

(i) McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL)

(ii) McNally Bharat Equipments Limited (MBEL) #

(iii) MBE Mineral Technologies Pte Limited #

(iv) MBE Minerals Zambia Limited #

(v) McNally Bharat Engineering (SA) Proprietary Limited (deregistered w.e.f. June 30, 2017)#
(vi) MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of MSEL)
Joint Venture

(i) EMC MBE Contracting Company LLC #

(ii) McNally- Trolex

(iii) McNally- AML

(iv) McNally- Trolex- Kilburn

# There is no transaction during the year

Post employment benefit plan of the Company

(i) McNally Bharat Executive Staff Gratuity Fund

(ii) McNally Bharat Employees Provident Fund
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(d) Key Managerial Personnel

(i) Mr. Aditya Khaitan - Chairman

(ii)  Mr. Srinivash Singh - Managing Director

(iii)
(iv)

Mr. Brij Mohan Soni - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Rahul Banerjee- Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f 22-10-2021)

(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(v) Mrs Indrani Roy- Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f 7-12-2021)

(vi)
(vii)

Ms. Arundhati Dhar - Independent Director
Mr. A.K Barman - Independent Director

(viii) Mr. Nilotpal Roy- Independent Director

(ix) Ms. Kasturi Roychoudhury - Independent Director

The following transactions were carried out with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business:

Description McNally- [McNally- AML| McNally-
Trolex Trolex- Kilburn
Sale of Goods/fixed assets 2,532.99 2,689.48 2,232.38
- (529.88) -
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid Reimbursement of Expenses Paid - - -
(0.13) (0.13) (0.13)
Reimbursement of Expenses Received Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 0.54 - -
Rent received - 1.70 1.70
(0.82) (0.54) (0.82)
Balances Outstanding of Joint Ventures
Description EMC MBE McNally- Trolex McNally- AML McNally- Trolex-
Contracting Co LLC Kilburn
Investment at the year end 152.31 - - -
(152.31) - - -
Provision for impairment in value of 152.31 - - -
investments
(152.31) - - -
Outstanding Receivables/Loans 67.06 0.40 2.37 2.65
(67.06) - 625.66 -
IAllowance for doubtful receivables 67.06 - - -
(67.06) - - -
Security Deposit/Rent Receivables - 625.97 2,749.16 773.96
- 200.82 300.54 200.82
Braket indicates previous year figure
Transactions with Key Managerial 2021-22 2020-21
Personnel Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding | Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding
fees Balance fees Balance
payable as at payable as at
year end year end
Mr. Srinivash Singh 201.84 11.75 182.60 - 11.87
Mr. Brij Mohan Soni 64.17 3.93 39.67 - 5.26
Mr. Manoj Kumar Digga - - 43.90 - -
Mr. Indranil Mitra 12.69 2.43 - - -
Mr. Rahul Banerjee 6.46 - 10.74 - 0.96
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Transactions with Key Managerial 2021-22 2020-21
Personnel Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding | Remuneration | Sitting | Outstanding
fees Balance fees Balance
payable as at payable as at
year end year end
Mr. Aditya Khaitan - 1.80 0.40 - 1.00 -
Ms. Arundhati Dhar - 3.40 1.40 - 2.00 -
Mr. A.K Barman - 3.40 1.40 - 2.00 -
Mr. Nilotpal Roy - 1.60 0.60 - 0.80 -
Ms.Kasturi Roy Choudhury - 1.60 0.60 - 1.00 -
Mr. Saroj Kant Singh (Relative to KMP) 25.72 - 1.68 22.85 - 1.68
Remuneration includes 2021-22 2020-21
Short term Post employment Short term Post employment
employee benefits benefits employee benefits benefits

M. Srinivash Singh 201.84 - 182.60 -
Mr. Brij Mohan Soni 60.92 3.25 37.83 1.84
Mr. Manoj Kumar Digga - - 41.05 2.86
Mr. Rahul Banerjee 6.15 0.31 10.19 0.55
Mr. Indranil Mitra 12.12 0.57 - -
Mr. Saroj Kant Singh (Relative to KMP) 25.72 1.26 22.85 1.24

a)

This does not include the impact of provision made on actuarial valuation of retirement benefit/ long term Schemes

and provision made during the year towards Post employment benefits as the same are not separately ascertainable for

individual directors.
b)

Transactions with related parties mentioned above are as per terms and contracts approved by the board. All transactions

disclosed above were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and wherever applicable linked with market rates.

Details of contribution to post employment benefit plans

Remuneration includes 2021-22 2020-21
McNally Bharat Executive Staff Gratuity Fund 76.98 96.39
McNally Bharat Employees Provident Fund* 228.62 267.99

*Considered only Employer Contributation

Note 27: Capital Commitments

There is no capital commitment as at Balance sheet date.

Note 28: Capital Commitments

There is no capital commitment as at Balance sheet date.

Note 29: Lease

The Group has also leasing arrangements in respect of operating leases for premises (guest house, offices etc.). These leasing
arrangements which are cancellable in nature are renewable by mutual consent and agreement. The aggregate of such lease
rentals on account of short-term leases and low-value assets are charged as rent to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amount Recognized inthe Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account or Carrying Amount of Another Asset

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Depreciation recognized 169 174
Interest on lease liabilities 229 305
Expenses relating to short-term leases & of low-value assets 191 280
Total cash outflow for leases 511 618
Additions to ROU during the year 195 -
Deletion from Right of Use Assets during the year (1,730) -
Net Carrying amount of Right of Use at the end of the year 339 2043
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Note 30:

MBE Minerals Technology Pte Ltd (MBEMT), a wholly owned subsidiary has sold its entire 99% stake in MBE EWB Kft to MBE CMT
Gmbh, it’s associate company, for Rs. 1,375.50 Lakhs (USD 2.1 million) on August 14, 2017 through sale agreement pursuant
to which 75% of the consideration was to be received by December 31, 2017 and remaining 25% was to be received by March
31, 2018. MBEMT has not received any consideration by the specified dates, the settlement date for the consideration had
been extended to September 30, 2018 videan addendum to the agreement datedMarch 27, 2018. Due to non-receipt of such
consideration, MBE Minerals Technology Pte Ltd (MBEMT) has been impaired during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities
a.The details of Contingent Liabilities are as under:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Claims against the Group(including under litigation/arbitration) not acknowledged 48,242.62 45,031.46
as debt (Refer note (e) below)
Other money for which the Company is contingently liable: 50,545.77 48,282.33
Income Tax matter pending in appeal relating to disputes regarding the taxable 8,593.28 5,479.10
value and the deduction claimed
Other demands related to claims made by certain ex-employees towards 41.00 41.00
employee benefits due to them
Civil Suits filed by Customer for Equipment issue 117.00 117.00
Civil Suits filed by Suppliers 132.00 132.00
Demand from Jharkhand Mineral Area Development Authority 1,054.70 1,054.70
Arbitration with Odisha Mining Corporation 445.00 445.00
Others
Bank Gurantees issued by company-Performance , Security and Earnest Money 36,522.79 47,774.97
deposit
Liquidated damages relating to contract sales Amount not readily | Amount not readily
ascertainable ascertainable

b. The banks have issued guarantees on behalf of the Holding Company and one of its Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji
Engineering Limited to various parties for performance, security and earnest money deposit aggregating to Rs.36,522.79 Lakhs
as on 31st March, 2022 (Rs. 47,774.97 lakhs as on 31st March, 2021) for which the Group is contingently liable for payment.

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities (contd.)

c. Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (TCFSL), one of the Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shareholders of the
Holding Company has preferred commercial arbitration petition during the year demandingredemption of Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares due to breach of various financial covenants therein for their outstanding balance of Rs.
2,831.63 Lakhs along with 100% liquidation damages which is disputed by the holding company. The Arbitrator hasissuedinterim
directions to deposit an amount of Rs 2,831.63 Lakhs in Specifically designated Escrow Account or alternatively furnish an
unconditional and irrevocable bank guarantee of such amount. The order also restrained an Injunction of any dealing of share
of Mcnally Sayaji Engineering Limited which is pledged against the loan. Further, the Holding Company submitted an affidavit,
the details of all its assets , properties (Movable or immovable) which is restrained for any dealing , transfer and disposing the
assets. Further, TCFSL had filed an application under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the IBC”) before
the National Company Law Tribunal (“the NCLT’”) to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“the CIRP”) against the
Company. The NCLT has dismissed the application filed by the TCFSL not being a financial creditor as per the provisions of the
IBC. Further, TCFSL had filed an application with (“the NCALT).

d. The Director General of GST Intelligence (DGGI) Kolkata had conducted investigation in 2019-20 at the Corporate Office of the
Company and denied Input Tax Credit of Rs. 945.04 Lakhs and also denied Input tax CreditRs 200 Lakhsasin 2020-21availed by
the Company. Pending adjudication of the matter, the Company has included the Input Tax Credit in Note- 11(b) under Balance

188



Annual Report 2021 - 2022

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

with Statutory/Government authorities.

e. In earlier year, the holding company, McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited had entered a put option agreement
with EIG (Mauritus) Limited, who invested in its subsidary (McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited) and the Subsidiary Company
was also a party to the said agreement. In order to exercise the put option, the investor submitted its request for Arbitration to
the International Chamber of Commerce Court, Singapore against the Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company, McNally
Sayaji Engineering Limited as Respondent No. 1 and Respondent No. 2 respectively. The Arbitrator issued a dissenting opinion
requiring the respondents to pay damages amounting to Rs. 21,102.69 Lakhs (including interest) and legal cost. Thereafter
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has since been initiated against the Subsidiary Company on and from 11th
February, 2021 and also in Holding Company, Hence EIG (Mauritus) Limited has submittedclaim as finacial debts under the
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016.

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable only on receipts of judgments / decisions pending at
various forums / authorities. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s financial position and result of operations.

Details of Corporate Guarantees given and covered under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:-

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Particulars
By the Holding Company
On behalf of MBE Coal & Mineral India Private Limited (Banking Facility) 3,000.00 2,850.00
On behalf of McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited(ECB & Rupee Term Loan) 5,000.00 5,000.00
By the Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited
"On behalf of the Holding Company (to the extent of value of earstwhile product 5,950.00 5,950.00
division( Kumardubi Unit-1) [refer note 3 & Note 53]"
Total 13,950.00 13,800.00

Note 32 : Excess Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel of the Holding Company

The Company has received the lender and Shareholder approval in terms of Section 197(17) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the waiver of recovery of excess remuneration paid/payable to the Managing Director of the Company amounting to

Rs141.84 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 98.60 Lakhs)for the year.

Note 33 : Details of future foreseeable losses under construction contracts

Particulars

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Provision for future foreseeable losses

1,009.31

2,208.42

Note 34: Disclosure for Construction Contracts

The details as required in respect of Construction Contracts under Ind AS 115 in respect of the Holding Company are as under.

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Contract costs incurred 18,33,195.82 18,06,627.82
Add : Recognised profit net of recognised losses (44,979.37) (34,531.08)
Contract Revenues 17,88,216.45 17,72,096.74
Progress Billing 16,81,033.40 16,65,359.36
Unbilled Revenue (Net) 5,959.05 5,513.39
Due from Customers 5,959.05 5,513.39
Less: Allowance for doubtful amount 2,586.53 3,016.17
Less: Provision for future foreseeable losses 1,009.31 2,208.42
Net Due from Customers 2,363.22 288.79
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Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Due to Customers - -
Add: Provision for future foreseeable losses - -
Net Due to Customers - -
Advance payments received (636.02) (4,476.77)
Retention amount 29,348.04 30,314.72
Provision for future foreseeable losses recognised 1,009.31 2,208.42

Refer Note 25(A)(ii) for Loss Allowances on Trade Receivables

Sale of equipments and contract revenue in respect of construction contracts as reported in this account is in proportion to the
actual costs incurred on such contracts to their estimated cost. Here costs represent actual costs incurred inclusive of future
losses based on estimates of future costs of all on going projects made by the engineers of the Company and such estimates
verified independently and certified by a Chartered Engineer. Unbilled revenue represents such contract sales values less actual
billing done on the basis of costs incurred.

The Holding Company has made provision, as required under the Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses
on long term contracts.

The Holding Company has made revisions in the cost to complete certain projects during the year as part of their periodical
review of cost estimates.

Note 35

On Commencement of CIRP of one of its Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited as per the advice of RP,
complete evaluation of the Non-moving and slow-moving inventories of the Subsidiary Company ,including physical verifications
vis-a-vis fair estimates of Net Realizable Value (NRV) of the stock of Raw Materials, Stores and Work in Progress have been
conducted. Based on the above evaluation, some items of Raw Material Stock and Work in Progress of estimated value of
3,075 Lakhs in aggregate are considered and charged as Exceptional Items in the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements of the
Company.

Note 36: Interest in Other Entities
(a) Interest in Subsidiaries

The group’s subsidiaries as at 31st March , 2022 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisiting
solely of equity shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting
rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Ownership interest held by Ownership interest held by
the group non controlling interests
Place of business/
Name of Entity country of Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
incorporation 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch,
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % % %
i) | McNally Sayaji Engineering India 81.56 81.56 18.44 18.44
Limited
ii) | McNally Bharat Equipments India 99.40 99.40 0.60 0.60
Limited
iii) | MBE Minerals Zambia Limited Zambia 100.00 100.00 - -
iv) | MBE Mineral Technologies Pte Republic of 100.00 100.00 - -
Limited Singapore
V) MBE Coal & Mineral Technology India 81.56 81.56 18.44 18.44
India Private Limited (Step-down
Subsidiary)
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The Holding Company, McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited had pledged its investment to the extent of 23,37,211
Equity Shares as security against the term loan facilities granted to McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited, one of its subsidiary
company, from ICICI Bank Limited. During the quarter ended 31st December, 2020, ICICI Bank Limited has invoked pledge
created over these shares for a transfer value of Re. 1 adjusted towards the over dues amount of the Company. The Company
has objected the invocation of the said share pledge and undervalued transfer.The Company has also filed a claim amounting to
Rs 73.75 Cr (includinginvocation of pledged shares) with Resolution Professional of MSEL in March, 2021. Further the company
filed for compensation for such invocation at average cost price of shares of MSEL amounting to Rs 40.79 Cr. Accordingly, the
Company has not made any adjustment in respect ofnumber of shares as well asimpairment to the carrying value of Investments/
Receivables from MSEL as on 31st March, 2022pending approval of Resolution plan from COC of the said Subsidiary.

(b) Interest in Joint Venture

Set out below is the Joint Venture of the Group as at 31st March, 2022, which has share capital consisting solely of equity shares
and are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and
the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. The Financial Statements of the Joint
Ventures of the Holding Company whose carrying value in the Financial Statements of the Holding Company is Rs. Nil (net of
impairment) and has not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Name of Entity Place of business/ Proportion of Ownership Carrying Amount
country of
incorporation
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch,
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs

i) |EMC MBE Contracting Co LLC Oman 35.00% 35.00% - -
i) | McNally-AML (JV) India 98.00% 98.00% - -
iii) | McNally-Trolex (JV) India 97.00% 97.00% - -
iv) | McNally-Trolex-Kilburn (JV) India 80.00% 80.00% - -

Note: Profit/Loss for the year of Joint Ventures which are not material have not been considered in the Financial Statements.

Note 37: Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2022

Year ended
31st March, 2021

(a) Basic Earnings Per Share

the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share

Profits/(Losses) attributable to the Equity Holders of the Group (11,254.61) (4,471.53)

[Total Basic Earnings Per Share attributable to the equity holders of the Group (5.32) (2.11)

(b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Profits/(Losses) attributable to the equity holders of the Group (11,254.61) (4,471.53)

[Total Diluted Earnings Per Share attributable to the Equity holders of the Group (5.32) (2.11)

(c) Weighted average numbers of shares used as denominator

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Number of shares | Number of shares

Weighted average number of equity shares and potentional equity shares used as 21,15,70,757 21,15,70,757

Note 38: Segment information

The Group is primarily engaged in a single business segment, viz. “manufacturing and designing of engineering products” and
predominantly operates in one Geographical segment. Hence, in the opinion of the Chief Operating decision maker as defined,
the Group’s operation comprises of only one reporting segment . Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments, as
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Disclosure required under Ind AS 108 “ Operating Segments” for Companies with single segment are as follows :

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Revenue from Customers

- India 41,451.74 48,497.85

- Qutside India 975.00 1,654.00
42,426.74 50,151.85

Non-current Assets

- India 73,585.34 77,961.82

- Outside India 2,197.00 142.00
75,782.34 78,103.82

External customers individually accounting for more than 10% of the revenues havegenerated Nilrevenue from operations for

the Group in the current year. (Year ended 31st March, 2021- Nil)

Note 39: Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as Security for Current and Non-current Borrowings are:

Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 7(a) 99,252.23 1,08,738.97
Loans 7(c) 1,852.46 1,430.18
"Cash and Cash Equivalents 7(b) 4,618.27 4,188.95
(including other Bank Balances)"

Other Financial Assets 7(d) 36,818.85 26,625.64
Non-Financial Assets

Inventories 10 5,465.82 9,449.35
Other Current Assets 11(b) 44,996.32 46,855.47
Total Current Assets pledged as security 1,93,003.97 1,97,288.58
Non-current

Investments* 6 117.84 120.70
Trade Receivables 7(a) 939.00 622.07
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 13,473.15 14,691.90
Capital work in progress 3 482.62 483.51
Investment Property 4 355.42 358.42
Other Intangible Assets 5 53.15 51.32
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 15,421.19 16,327.93
Total assets pledged as security 2,08,425.16 2,13,616.50

Note:

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the holding company and the subsidiary company McNally Sayaji Engineering
Limited (MSEL), the existing charges on the assets of the erstwhile Products Division of Holding Company for facilities enjoyed
by it will continue. Accordingly, working capital demand loans, cash credit facilities, term loans and other non fund based
facilities of MBECL are secured by assets including certain property, plant and equipment of the subsidiary company (net
written down value as at 31.03.2022 of Rs. 457 Lakhs ( 31.03.2021 Rs. 472 Lakhs) comprised in erstwhile Product Division of
MBECL (Kumardhubi Unit 1)[Refer Note 31]

Current assets are pledged for working capital loans and cash credit facilities.
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Non-current assets are pledged under first charge for ECB from ICICI Bank Limited and as second charge for working capital
loans.

Investments of the Holding Company in Mutual Funds of Rs. 89.02 Lakhs were put to lien for Loan taken from L&T Finance
Limited. The given loan has been fully repaid during the year, however lien against the investment pledged has not been
satisfied till date.

The Holding Company has pledged its Investments to the extent of 1,600,000 Equity Shares of McNally Sayaji EngineeringLimited
as securit against loans taken by the Company.

The Holding Company has pledged its Investment to the extent of 2,337,211 Equity Shares of McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited
as security against loans taken by its Subsidiary Company namely McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited which has been invoked
by ICICI Bank Limited during quarter ended 31.03.2020, which is under dispute as referred to in Note 36 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, necessary adjustment pending.

The Holding Company has executed a non-disposal undertaking and a first ranking pledge agreement over 6,331,487 Equity
Shares of McNally Sayaji Engineering Company Limited to ensure a security cover of an amount equivalent to Rs. 6,682 Lakhs.

Note 40: Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Group. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below:

Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 and 540.96 407.81
remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 and remaining 175.64 106.73
unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006, 124.59 638.02
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for principal already paid 2.00 -
Total interest accured and remainning unpaid at the end of each accounting year 177.64 106.73
Amount of futher interest remanning due and payable even in the succeeding 146.00

years

Note 41

As per the Scheme of Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court at Calcutta vide its Order dated July 28, 2009 which
was filed with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal , Kolkata on September 01, 2009, for reconstruction of McNally Bharat
Engineering Company Limited (MBECL) and its subsidiary viz McNally Sayaji Engineering Ltd (MSEL) - the Products Division
of MBECL engaged in the business of manufacture and/or procuring equipments for various engineering and infrastructure
projects and having its units at Kumardhubi, in the State of Jharkhand, Asansol, in the State of West Bengal and Bangalore,
in the State of Karnataka has been transferred to MSEL with effect from the appointed date, i.e. April 01, 2008. As per the
Scheme of Arrangement the transfer and vesting of Products Division of MBECL to MSEL shall be subject to the existing charges,
mortgages and encumbrances, if any, over the assets or any part thereof, provided however, that such charges, mortgages and/
or encumbrances shall be confined only to the assets of MBECL or part thereof on or over which they are subsisting on transfer
to and vesting of such assets in MSEL and no such charges, mortgages and/ or encumbrances shall extend over or apply to any
other asset(s) of MSEL. Thus the existing charges on the assets of the Products Division for facilities enjoyed by MBECL will
continue and vice versa. Accordingly, working capital demand loans, cash credit facilities, term loans and other non fund based
facilities of the Company are secured by assets which include those of the Product Division of MSEL.

Note 42

The Holding Company had entered in September 2003 a joint venture agreement with Elsamex S.A. where officially it was
appointed as a subcontractor in “West Bengal Corridor Development Project — Improvement of Gazole Hilli Section of SH 10
with a link to Balurghat from Patiram,” (the project). However consequent to considerable delay in execution of the project
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the Public Works Department of Government of West Bengal (PWD) had unilaterally terminated the contract in January 2006.
The Holding Company and Elsamex S.A. felt that such delay in execution was due to the inability of PWD to hand over the
stretch of encumbrance free land for widening of road and non-availability of construction drawings on time by PWD. The
Holding Company has a legitimate claim of Rs. 1,517 Lakhs towards receivable and Rs. 1,133 Lakhs on account of deposit
against Performance Guarantee. Elsamex S.A. moved to arbitration and had claimed an amount of Rs. 7,334 Lakhs including
an additional claim on consequential losses as per guidelines of “Federation Internationale Des Ingenieurs-Conseils” (FIDIC).
Arbitral Board in their meeting held on October 25, 2010 has upheld Elsamex S A’s claim and has given award in favour of
Elsamex S A. Under the award, a total amount of Rs. 3,535 Lakhs is receivable by the Holding Company. A claim has already been
lodged with PWD . PWD has preferred to challenge the verdict of the Arbitrators and has appealed to the Hon’ble High Court
for a stay in the matter of payment of award money. The matter is still pending for hearing.

Note 43 : Additional Information required by Schedule Il to the Act

Name of the Entity in

Net Assets (total assets

Share in profit or loss

Share in Other

Share in Total Com

prehensive

the Group minus liabilities) Comprehensive Income Income
Asa % Amount Asa % Amount Asa % Amount Asa % Amount
Consolidated | (Rs. Lakhs) | Consolidated (Rs. Lakhs) Consolidated | (Rs. Lakhs) | Consolidated | (Rs. Lakhs)
Net Assets Profit or Loss Other Total
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income

Holding Company
McNally Bharat
Engineering Company
Limited
31st March 2022 10.20% (1,639.37) 63.99% (7,714.23) 33.65% 17.75 64.12% (7,696.48)
31st March 2021 -269.67% 7,380.90 94.91% (5,003.58) 45.65% 17.75 95.27% (4,985.83)
Subsidiaries (Group's
Share)
Mcnally Sayaji
Engineering Limited
31st March 2022 -11.49% 1,847.68 29.38% (3,542.17) 54.12% 28.55 29.27% (3,513.62)
31st March 2021 -194.95% 5,335.66 -6.71% 535.85 37.76% 14.68 -6.93% 550.53
MBE Mineral
Technologies Pte Ltd.
31st March 2022 -0.99% 159.07 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
31st March 2021 106.06% (2,902.81) 0.04% (3.45) 0.00% - 0.04% (3.45)
Mcnally Bharat
Equipment Limited
31st March 2022 -0.05% 7.54 -0.02% 1.91 0.00% - -0.02% 1.91
31st March 2021 -0.22% 5.91 0.00% (0.18) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.18)
MBE Minerals Zambia
Limited
31st March 2022 2.28% (365.93) 0.00% (0.04) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.04)
31st March 2021 10.68% (292.21) 0.00% (0.03) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.03)
Mcnally Bharat
Engineering (SA)
Proprietary Limited
31st March 2022 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
31st March 2021 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Non-Controlling.
Interest
31st March 2022 -7.66% 1,231.51 6.64% (800.74) 12.23% 6.45 6.62% (794.28)
31st March 2021 -44.99% 2,019.79 10.03% 121.16 16.60% 6.45 10.00% (794.28)
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Adjustment for change

in ownership interest

31st March 2022 (17,307.92)

31st March 2021 (14,251.96)

Total

31st March 2022 100.00% (16,076.39) 100.00% (12,055.26) 100.00% 52.75 100.00% (12,002.52)
31st March 2021 100.00% -2,704.72 100.00% (4,350.22) 100.00% 38.88 100.00% (4,311.34)
Note 44

Pursuant to the application under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Act, 2016 filed by one of Financial Creditors, being C.P
(IB) No 891/KB/2020, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, while disposing off, admitted the application vide
order dated 29.04.2022 and directed to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the Holding Company.
CA Anuj Jain (IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306) has been initially appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP).
Upon commencement of CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and management of the
Company vest in the IRP/Resolution Professional (RP). Committee of Creditors (COC) have been constituted on 25.05.2022 on the
basis of collation of all claims by the IRP and report is submitted to NCLT by IRP.

Note 45

The Holding company and its subsidiary McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited (MSEL) are under CIRP hence ability to continue as a
going concern is dependent upon many factors including continued support from the financial creditors, operational creditors,
customers and submission of viable resolution plan by the prospective investor.Under the CIRP, a resolution plan needs to be
presented to and approved by the COC and thereafter will need to be approved by the NCLT to keep the Company as going
concern.In view of the opinion of the Directors and KMP’s, resolution and revival of the Holding and such subsidiary Company
is possible in the foreseeable future.The IRP/RP is expected to make every endeavour to protect and preserve the value of
the property of the corporate debtor and manage the operations of the corporate debtor as going concern. Accordingly, the
Consolidated financial statements of the holding company have been prepared on going concern basis.

Note 46

There shall be moratorium under section 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the completion of the CIRP or
until the Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under sub section (1) of section 31 of the IBC or pass an order for
liquidation of Corporate Debtors under section 33 of the IBC, as the case may be. The Holding Company had received regulatory
Enquiries /Notices/ Summons /Show-Cause/Demand/ Orders from various government authorities such as Goods and Services
Tax, Income Tax. In view of Holding Company’s admission under CIRP all existing civil legal proceedings will be kept in abeyance
as moratorium u/s 14 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 till the conclusion of CIRP. Therefore, no impact has been
considered in Consolidated Financial Statements as of now.

Note 47

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Holding Company had deferred repayment and converted the advances received
from certain companies aggregating toRs. 98,592.96 Lakhs, into interest free long term loans /ICDs, repayable in five equated
annual instalments commencing after the payment of lender obligation. Fair valuation gain of Rs. 83,804.27 Lakhs (31st March,
2021, Rs. 85,148.70 Lakhs) arising out of aforesaid transaction had been considered as part of “Other Reserves” (Note 12(b)(v))
and Rs. 14,788.69Lakhs (31st March, 2021 Rs. 13,444.26 Lakhs) had been considered as “Long term borrowings” (Note 13(a)) for
which consents have been obtained from the counter parties during the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Note 48

The management has reviewed trade receivables, claims recoverable against bank guarantees invoked by certain parties, advances
to suppliers and Loans to others. Accordingly, no provision has been made against its during the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Note 49

The Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited have been categorised as Non Performing
Asset by the lender banks and majority of the lender banks have stopped debiting interest on their outstanding debts.
Accordingly,the Holding Company and its subsidiary have not recognised interest expense on the borrowings including Inter-
Corporate Deposits. Total interest not reconised by the holding company is Rs 96,472.63 lakhs till 31st March, 2022 as per
management estimates. However, Lenders/ Financial creditors have submitted the claims to the IRP amounting to Rs 5,75,095.90
lakhs (including interest) out of which claims lodged by lenders banks amounting to Rs 3,61,281.37 lakhs (including interest) have
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been provisionally admitted by IRP and as the remaining amount is under verification, the necessary provisions with respect to
such claims shall be made upon final admission of the claims by IRP with respect to such financial creditors.

Note 50

The Hon’ble Calcutta High Court by an order dt. 02.03.2022, has restrained the Holding company from dealing with Banks which
has affected operations of the company badly. The Company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Court for withdrawal of the
order since CIRP process has been initiated on the company and hearing of the petition is scheduled on 06th June, 2022.

Note 51

The World Health Organization (WHQO) declared outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic on 11th March, 2020. Consequent to
this, Government of India (GOI) has declared a national lockdown on 24th March, 2020 which got extended from time to time.
The COVID- 19 has significantly impacted business operations of the Group, by way of interruption in the project activities, supply
chain disruption, limited availability of human resource etc. However, post lockdown, the operations having resumed gradually in
a phased manner following directives from the GOl as well as State Governments, the business of the Group is regaining normalcy
in terms of volume as well as cash flow.The Group has evaluated its liquidity position and recoverability and carrying value of its
Non-Current & Current Assets and has concluded that no material adjustments are required currently at this stage.

Note 52

Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets and Other Financial Assets are subject to confirmation and reconciliation from respective
parties and consequential reconciliation, outcomes of pending arbitration/settlements of claims and adjustments arising
therefrom, if any.The management, however, does not expect any material variation, Management is also hopeful for recovery/
realisation of trade receivables which include Rs 43,402.16 Lakhs under Arbitration/ Proposed Arbitration in the normal course
of business of the holding company, hence no impairment has been considered at this stage.

Note 53

In earlier years, the Subsidiary Company, McNally Sayaji Engineering Limited had issued a corporate guarantee in favour of the
lender banks of the Holding Company to the extent of value of fixed assets at Kumardhubi Unit-1 having a book value of Rs. 457
lakhs as on 31st March, 2022. On commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated against the Subsidiary
Company under the Insolvency and Bankrupcy Code, 2016, the lender Banks of the Holding Company have duly submitted their
claims (Principal and Interest)in respect of the borrowings of the Holding Company in default and the claims has admitted Rs.
6189 Lakh by Subsidiary company.However, pending confirmation of the Resolution Process initiated against the Company under
the Insolvency and Bankrupcy Code, 2016, no provisionsagainst the admitted claims of the lender banks of the Holding Company
have been made in the accounts.

Note 54

The Holding Company’s operation with DBS Bank carried out through the Cash Credit Account, was frozen at outstanding
dues of Rs. 1219 lakhs, in earlier year and recognised as Borrowings under ‘Current Liabilities’. The realization of Rs. 391 lakhs
thereafter in the said account was accounted for and shown as Cash and Cash Equivalent under Current Assets.Similarly, with
the commencement of CIRP, the outstanding balances as on the date of the commencement of CIRP (11th February, 2021) in
other banks’ Cash Credit Accounts were also been frozen andsubsequent reduction in the outstanding balances in these Cash
Credit Accounts aggregating to Rs 26 Lakhs(including Rs 6 Lakhs pertaining to earlier year) as on 31st March, 2022 have been
included in Cash & Cash Equivalents under ‘Current Assets’ so as to reflect the Borrowings under ‘Current Liabilities’ at the frozen
outstanding Cash Credit balance as of 11thFebruary, 2021.

Note 55

Under the CIRP, pursuant to provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016, the claims submitted by the operational creditors
of the Company as admitted and duly disclosed in the public domain are net of advances lying unadjusted to such operational
creditors as on the date of commencement of CIRP (11th February,2021). However, the said adjustment of advances against the
liabilities due to the operational creditors has not been considered in the Consolidated financial statement prepared as per the
provision of Schedule-IIl to the Companies Act 2013.

Note 56

The Central Goods & services tax commissioner of Bolpur has carried out investigation against the Holding company for availing
irregular Input tax creditand issued summons dated 8th Feb,2020 under section 70 of the CGST Act directing the company to pay
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Rs 866.90 Lakhs. Further, the department has blocked Rs 10.47 lakhs and company has paid Rs 46 Lakhs only through DRC-03
to the department by debiting the balance available in GST portal without taking any accounting effect in the books . Thereafter
the department has made instructions to thecompany to pay the balanceamount within fifteen days from the receipt of the
summon.After that the company was admitted into NCLT and in view of the ongoingCorporate Insolvency Resolution process, the
RP has requested not to block any further credit and thus the company has not paid the said amount.

Note 57

Other Statutory Information

(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against it for holding any
Benami property.

(ii) The Group does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Subsidery company has created Rs 1000 Lakhs in favour of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited and satisfica-
tion of charge of Rs 104.87 Lakhs in favour of Tata Capital Finance service Limited with ROC with in the statutory period

(iii

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Group has not advanced or loaned to or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intemediary shall:

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Group has no such transaction unrecorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the yearin the tax assessmentunder the Income tax Act, 1961 Such as, search or survey or any other relevant provi-
sion of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 58
Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is Rs Nil. (31.03.2021 Rs. Nil)
Note 59

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosure in the Consolidated Financial Statements
as on the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 60

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/
disclosure.

Signature to Notes 1 to 60

As per our Report of even date

For V. Singhi & Associates For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 311017E

(V. K. Singhi) (Srinivash Singh) (Anuj Jain) (Asim Kumar Barman)
Partner Managing Director (Taken on Record) Director

Membership Number: 050051 DIN: 00789624 IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00142/2017-18/10306 DIN: 02373956

Place: Kolkata (Brij Mohan Soni) Interim Resolution Professional (Indrani Ray)

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part A: Subsidiaries

SI. No. 1 2 3 4
Name of the subsidiary MBE Mineral MBE Minerals McNally Sayaji McNally Bharat
Technologies Pte Ltd| Zambia Limited Engineering Equipment Limited
Limited
(Consolidated with
CMT India)

The date since when subsidiary
was acquired

19 May 2009

21 May 2010

16 November 2011

07 March 2008

percentage)

2 |Reporting period for the Same as holding Same as holding Same as holding Same as holding
subsidiary concerned, if company's reporting | company's reporting company's company's reporting
different from the holding period period reporting period period
company’s reporting period

3 |Reporting currency and SGDS 56.024 ZMK 0.24 INR INR
Exchange rate as on the last date (Lakhs) (Lakhs)
of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries.

4 [Share capital SGDS 49,95,816 ZMK 50,000 1,259

10.00

5 |Reserves and surplus SGDS -52,86,085 ZMK -87,80,498 1,006

-2.47
6 |Total assets SGD $ 41,912 ZMK 22,10,333 38,889
124.71
7 |Total Liabilities SGDS 3,32,180 ZMK 109,40,831 36,623
117.17
8 |Investments - - -
9 |Turnover - - 18,116
2.43
10 |Profit / Loss before taxation SGDS -6,329 ZMK -1,000 -4343
1.92
11 |Provision for taxation - - 35 -
12 |Profit / Loss after taxation SGDS -6,329 ZMK -1,000 -4308
1.92
13 |Proposed Dividend - - R
14 |Extent of shareholding (in 100% 100% 63% 99.40%
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SI. No. 1 2 3
Name of the Associates or Joint Ventures McNally-Trolex- | McNally-Trolex |McNally-AML (Jv)
Kilburn (Jv) (Jv)

Latest Balance Sheet Date

31 March 2022

31 March 2022

31 March 2022

Date on which the Associate or Joit Venture was associated or

03 September,

07 October, 2020

12 October, 2020

acquired 2020

Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the Company on 80% 96-97% 97-98%

the year end

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Ventures

Extent of Holding (%) 80% 96-97% 97-98%

Joint Control / Significant influence Joint Venture Joint Venture Joint Venture

Reason for not consolidated Profit / (Loss) Profit / (Loss) Profit / (Loss)

for the year not | forthe year not | for the year not

material material material

Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

Profit / Loss for the year

i) Considered in Consolidation

I1) Not Considered in

Consolidation

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil

EMC MBE Contracting Co LLC, a joint venture for MBECL having 35% share is a dormant JV since last couple of years hence

the company has initiated winding up proceedings.

(Srinivash Singh)
Managing Director
DIN: 00789624

For McNally Bharat Engineering Company Limited

(Anuj Jain)
(Taken on Record)
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00142/2017-18/10306

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th May, 2022

(Brij Mohan Soni)
Chief Financial Officer

Interim Resolution Professional

(Asim Kumar Barman)
Director

DIN: 02373956
(Indrani Ray)
Company Secretary
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